
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Bernard Carter 

direct line 0300 300 4175 

date 8 December 2011 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

CUSTOMER AND CENTRAL SERVICES OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 

Monday, 19 December 2011 10.00 a.m. 
 

Venue at 

Room 15, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 
 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the CUSTOMER AND CENTRAL SERVICES OVERVIEW 

& SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs P A Duckett (Chairman), Miss A Sparrow (Vice-Chairman), L Birt, J A E Clarke, 
Mrs R J Drinkwater, Dr R Egan, R W Johnstone, J Murray and Mrs M Mustoe 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
 
Mrs C F Chapman MBE, K Janes, D Jones, J A G Saunders and I Shingler] 

 
 

All other Members of the Council - on request 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 

MEETING 
 



 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members. 
 

2. Minutes 
  

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Customer 
and Central Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 28 November 
2011 and to note actions taken since that meeting. 
 

3. Members' Interests 
  

To receive from Members any declarations and the nature thereof in relation 
to:- 
 
(a) personal interests in any agenda item 
 
(b) personal and prejudicial interests in any agenda item 
 
(c) any political whip in relation to any agenda item. 
 

4. Chairman's Announcements and Communications 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

5. Petitions 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

6. Questions, Statements or Deputations 
  

To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

7. Call-In 
  

To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for 
review  in accordance with Procedure Rule 10.10 of Part D2. 
 

8. Requested Items 
  

To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member 
under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution. 
 



 
Reports 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

9 Executive Member Update 
 
To receive a brief verbal update from the Deputy Leader 
and Executive Member for Corporate Resources. 
 

*   

10 Draft Budget 2012/13, Medium Term Financial Plan 
2012 - 2016 and Capital Programme 2012/13 to 2015/16 
 
The report allows Members the opportunity to review the 
Council’s draft Budget for 2012/13, Medium Term Financial 
Plan and Capital Programme, which was presented to 
Executive on 6 December 2011. 
 
Members are requested to bring their 6 December 2011 
Executive papers (Items 8 & 9) to this Committee 
meeting. 
 

*  11 - 12 

11 Fees and Charges 2012/13 
 
The report proposes the revised fees and charges rates to 
be effective from 1 April 2012. 
 

*  13 - 58 

12 Revenue Budget Management Report Quarter ended 
30 September 2011 for Corporate Resources 
 
The report sets out the Revenue financial position to the 
end of September 2011 and the latest forecast position. 
 

*  59 - 80 

13 Capital Budget Management Report Quarter ended 30 
September 2011 for Corporate Resources 
 
The report sets out the Capital financial position to the end 
of September 2011. 
 

*  81 - 86 

14 Work Programme 2011 - 2012 & Executive Forward 
Plan 
 
The report provides Members with details of the currently 
drafted Committee work programme and the latest 
Executive Forward Plan. 
 

*  87 - 110 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

At a meeting of the CUSTOMER AND CENTRAL SERVICES OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in Room 15, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford on 
Monday, 28 November 2011. 

 
PRESENT 

 
Cllr P A Duckett (Chairman) 

Cllr Miss A Sparrow (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 
Cllrs L Birt 

Mrs R J Drinkwater 
Dr R Egan 
 

Cllrs R W Johnstone 
J Murray 
Mrs M Mustoe 
 

 

Apologies for Absence: Cllrs J A E Clarke 
 

 

Substitutes: Cllrs J A G Saunders 
 

 

Members in Attendance: Cllrs J G Jamieson Leader of the Council 
and Chairman of the 
Executive 

  D Jones  
  M R Jones Deputy Leader and 

Executive Member for 
Corporate Resources 

  M A G Versallion Executive Member for 
Children's Services 

 

Officers in Attendance: Mr B Carter – Corporate Scrutiny & Research 
Manager 

 Mr C Jones – Chief ICT Officer 
 Mr A King – Head of Financial Strategy 
 Mrs G Stanton – Chief Communications Officer 
 Mr J Unsworth – Interim Assistant Chief Executive 

(Resources) 
 Mr C Warboys – Chief Finance Officer & Section 

151 Officer 
 

Others in 
Attendance 

  

 
 

CCS/11/58   Minutes  
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the Minutes of the meeting of the Customer and Central Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 17 October 2011 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 

Agenda Item 2
Page 5



SCR -  28.11.11 
Page 2  

 

 

CCS/11/59   Members' Interests  
 
(a) Personal Interests:- 

 
 None. 

 
(b) Personal and Prejudicial Interests:- 

 
 None. 

 
CCS/11/60   Chairman's Announcements and Communications  

 
The Chairman referred to the previous meeting, when Members had requested 
further detail regarding; the payment of invoices, and Revenues & Benefits 
vacancy rates. He stated that such detail had now been received, which 
confirmed that; the payment of invoices within 30 days was averaging between 
90% and 95% of total in the current financial year, and the vacancy rates (and 
therefore reliance upon contractors) within the Revenues and Benefits team 
had reduced. 
 
A Member also referred to the fact that further information had also been 
requested at the last meeting regarding the number of staff who had attended 
work following the introduction of revised terms and conditions, who had not 
signed acceptance thereof. Officers undertook to provide this information to 
Members via email at the earliest possible opportunity. 

 
CCS/11/61   Petitions  

 
No petitions were received from members of the public in accordance with the 
Public Participation Procedure as set out in Part D2 of the Constitution. 

 
CCS/11/62   Questions, Statements or Deputations  

 
No questions, statements or deputations were received from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 

 
CCS/11/63   Call-In  

 
The Panel was advised that no decisions of the Executive had been referred to 
the Panel under the Call-in Procedures set out in Appendix “A” to Rule No. S18 
of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 

 
CCS/11/64   Requested Items  

 
No items were referred to the Committee for consideration at the request of a 
Member under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution. 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 2
Page 6



SCR -  28.11.11 
Page 3  

 

 

CCS/11/65   Executive Member Update  
 
The Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Corporate Resources provided 
the Committee with an update on current activities pertaining to his portfolio, 
which covered the following issues:- 
 

• The sale of assets, generating capital receipts of circa £500k in the 
current financial year; 

• The appointment of consultants to support the Council’s Medium Term 
Accommodation Plan and restructuring of the Assets Team;  

• The new Housing Revenue Account self financing scheme and the 
consequent additional Council debt of £165.69M; 

• The Council’s new website, which had been launched recently; and 

• The impact strike action would have on the Council and Central 
Bedfordshire schools. 
 

CCS/11/66   ICT Framework  
 
The Chief ICT Officer introduced this item, which consisted of a presentation 
summarising the Council’s Draft ICT Framework, the outcomes of which were 
to provide:- 
 

• A safe, stable and secure ICT voice and data network infrastructure that 
provides the accessibility required from any location. 

• A value for money ICT infrastructure that meets the demands of the 
financial pressures.   

• A highly transactional self service web environment to deliver the best 
service at lowest cost. 

• Accurate, timely and appropriate management information to enable 
effective decision making and drive performance improvement. 

• A customer centric information architecture that understands and meets 
the customer’s expectations. 

• Programme and project management that delivers ICT enhancements to 
time, cost and quality enabling the service to deliver improvements to its 
customers. 

• Social Media harnessed to deliver efficiencies and service 
improvements 

 
The Chief ICT Officer also informed the Committee that the Draft Framework 
would be considered by the Executive at its meeting on 10 January 2012. 
 
Members of the Committee asked a number of detailed questions during the 
presentation, which were answered by officers in attendance. These questions 
centred around:- 
 

• Next generation broadband and the ability of the Council to fund 
broadband in commercially unviable rural areas. In this respect, 

Agenda Item 2
Page 7



SCR -  28.11.11 
Page 4  

 

 

Members were informed of the Council’s ability to draw down 
government funding via Broadband UK; 

• Cloud Computing and The Public Services Network, and how these 
initiatives would generate ICT savings in the future; 

• The future of the Council’s existing Citrix network, the way it had been 
deployed in Central Bedfordshire and its limitations; 

• The use of Video conferencing via the Public Services Network; 

• Initial feedback surrounding the launch of the Council’s new website. In 
this respect, officers agreed to provide Members with early data 
regarding this feedback as soon as possible. 

• The need to reflect within the Framework the importance of adequate 
staff/Member training; and 

• Programme slippage and the need to monitor progress carefully. In this 
respect, officers agreed to submit progress reports to the Committee on 
a quarterly basis. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

1. That the draft ICT Framework be endorsed for submission to the 
Executive, subject to the inclusion of a reference to adequate 
officer/Member training; and 

2. That progress reports be submitted to this Committee on a 
quarterly basis. 

 
CCS/11/67   Treasury Management Strategy And Treasury Policy  

 
The Head of Financial Strategy introduced this item, which provided the 
Committee with details of the proposed changes to the council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy and Treasury Policy. 
 
Members of the Committee asked a number of detailed questions during the 
presentation, which were answered by officers in attendance. These questions 
centred around:- 
 

• The advantages and disadvantages of the Housing Revenue Account 
Self Financing Scheme and the potential to utilise any savings that may 
accrue as a result for housing interventions; 

• The revised credit rating limit; and 

• Treasury management performance and the Council’s average rate of 
return, which compared favourably with benchmarked authorities. 

 
Members were informed that the Treasury Management Strategy and Treasury 
Policy would be submitted to the Executive and full Council for approval in 
January 2012. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Treasury Management Strategy and Treasury Policy be endorsed 
for submission to the Executive. 

 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 8



SCR -  28.11.11 
Page 5  

 

 

CCS/11/68   Capital Programme Review  
 
The Head of Financial Strategy introduced this item, which allowed Members 
the opportunity to review the Council’s revised Capital Programme for 2011/12, 
presented to Executive on 15 November 2011. 
 
Members of the Committee asked, and requested answers to, a number of 
scheme specific questions during the presentation, as follows:- 
 

• The status of the Housing Revenue Account Window Replacement 
scheme, detailing £21k expenditure in the year to date (Page 82); 

• An explanation of the General Leisure Enhancement Contingency within 
Sustainable Communities (Page 72); 

• Further detail regarding Various Children’s ICT Projects (Page 71); 

• Further detail regarding the Grove Theatre Retention payment (Page 
72); and 

• Further information regarding Children’s Services S106 income (Page 
71); 

 
It was agreed that officers would provide a response to these questions via 
email in due course. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Capital Programme Review be noted. 

 
CCS/11/69   Work Programme 2011 - 2012 & Executive Forward Plan  

 
The Committee considered its current work programme and the latest 
Executive Forward Plan. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Committee’s Work Programme be noted; 
2. That quarterly progress reports regarding implementation of the 

ICT Framework be added to the work programme; and 
3. That a progress report on the Channel Shift programme be added 

to the work programme in early Spring. 
 

(Note: The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and concluded at 12.00 
p.m.) 

 
 

Chairman………………………………….. 
 

Date………………………………….. 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Meeting: Customer and Central Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee  

Date: 19 December  2011 

Subject: Draft Budget 2012/13, Medium Term Financial Plan 2012-
2016 and Capital Programme 2012/13 to 2015/16 
 

Report of: Cllr Maurice Jones, Deputy Leader and Executive Member for 
Corporate Resources 
 

Summary: The report allows Members the opportunity to review the Council’s draft 
Budget for2012/13, Medium Term Financial Plan and Capital 
Programme, which was presented to Executive on 6 December 2011. 
 

 

 
Advising Officer: John Unsworth, Assistant Chief Executive Resources 

Contact Officer: Charles Warboys, Chief Finance Officer 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Executive 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

1. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 
 

Financial: 

2. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 

Legal: 

4. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 
 

Risk Management: 

5. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 
 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

6. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 
 

Equalities/Human Rights: 

7. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 
 

Community Safety: 

8. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 11



Sustainability: 

9. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 
 

Procurement: 

10. Please See Executive report (circulated separately). 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
The Committee is asked to:- 
 
1. consider the Council’s Draft Budget for 2012/13, Medium Term Financial 

Plan for 2012-2016 and Capital Programme 2012/13 to 2015/16; and 
2. submit its comments, observations and recommendations in respect of the 

Executive’s proposals with particular reference to the Customer and 
Central Services proposals, to the meeting of the Executive on 14 February 
2012. 

 
 
 
11. Members are requested to bring the following papers issued for the 

meeting of the Executive on 6 December 2011 to this Committee meeting:- 
 

1. Draft Budget 2012/13 and Medium Term Financial Plan 2012-2016 
(Executive Item 8); and 

2. Capital Programme 2012/13 to 2015/16 (Executive Item 9) 
  
 
Appendices – None  
 
 
Background papers and their location: (open to public inspection) 
None 

Agenda Item 10
Page 12



 
 
 

Meeting: Customer and Central Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 19 December 2012  

Subject: Fees and Charges 2012/13 

Report of: Cllr Maurice Jones , Deputy Leader and Executive Member for 
Corporate Resources 
 

Summary: The report proposes the revised fees and charges rates to be effective 
from 1 April 2012 and identifies those charges where increases are 
different from the 2% advisory increase as per the 2012/13 Budget 
Strategy. 
 

 

 
Advising Officer: John Unsworth, Assistant Chief Executive - Resources. 

Contact Officer: Charles Warboys, Chief Finance Officer 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected:  All 

Function of: Council 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

1. The annual review and setting of the Council’s Fees and Charges are integral 
to the Council’s Budget Strategy and the legal requirement to deliver a 
balanced budget. The review ensures a rigorous, responsible and realistic 
approach is taken to determine the appropriateness and relevance of the 
Council’s schedule of fees and charges. Setting a balanced budget ensures the 
Council allocates its resources to deliver the priorities. These are: 

• Supporting and caring for an ageing population 

• Educating, protecting and providing opportunities for children and young 
people 

• Managing growth effectively 

• Creating safer communities 

• Promoting healthier lifestyles. 
 

Financial: 

2. The financial implications are set out in the report. 
 

Legal: 

Agenda Item 11
Page 13



3. The Council has various powers to charge for aspects of the services it 
provides.  The general rule is that when it is carrying out a statutory duty the 
Council can only make a charge where there is specific power to do so.    
 
Section 93 of the Local government Act 2003 provides that when the Council is 
providing a discretionary service, it may charge for the service, provided the 
person receiving the service has agreed to its provision.  Overall the income 
from such charges must not exceed the cost of the provision.     

Risk Management: 

4. Risks relating to service take-up and organisational reputation can be associated 
with increases to fees and charges that are perceived to be 'comparatively' high. 
The key risks are: 
  

- Subject to the level of increase (and in view of the current financial climate), 
services might become unaffordable to some members of the community, which 
may impact take-up and therefore overall income levels.  This may also impact 
on the Council's reputation.  
  
- Those paying fees and charges may perceive that a higher than expected 
increase on any given area will be used to cross-subsidise increased costs of 
other service areas arising from government budget cuts, and not to cover the 
direct cost of the service they receive. This again may present a reputational 
risk. 
  

- Services subject to significant increases in fees might attract unfavourable 
media attention, which again could result in reputational damage to the Council.  
 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

5. Not applicable. 
 

Equalities/Human Rights: 

6. In developing the budget the Council must ensured that decisions were made in 
such a way as to minimise unfairness, and that there was not a 
disproportionately negative effect on people from different ethnic groups, 
disabled people, and men and women.   
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 14



7. The statutory equality duties must be exercised in substance, with rigour and an 
open mind. To ensure that the Council have complied with the equality duties 
and that any decision made does not unfairly discriminate, they should:  
 

• carry out robust equality impact assessments and consult and involve 
relevant stakeholders as part of the decision-making process  

• Consider all relevant, available information in order to anticipate any likely 
negative impact and to seek to avoid that negative impact by taking 
alternative courses of action wherever possible.  

• Keep an adequate record showing that they had actually considered their 
equality duties and pondered relevant questions.    

• Be rigorous in both inquiring and reporting to Members the outcome of the 
assessment and the legal duties.  When decisions are made, decision 
makers must have the relevant data, including the results of equality 
impact assessment, and of consultation and involvement, to ensure they 
reach an informed decision.  

 
Any changes to the Council’s Budget as a result of this report will result in further 
equality impact assessments being undertaken as necessary. 
 

Community Safety: 

8. Not applicable. 
 

Sustainability: 

9. Not applicable. 
 

Procurement: 

10. Not applicable. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
The Committee is asked to:- 
 
1. Consider the report and schedule of proposed fees and charges and 

comment as necessary to the Executive 
 

 
Background 
 
11. 
 

The Council’s Charging Policy states that ‘All fees and charges will be 
reviewed annually and adjusted as necessary in line with [the Council’s 
charging] policy. The Chief Finance Officer will provide services with 
guidance each year as to the maximum inflation rate that may be 
applied.’ 

Agenda Item 11
Page 15



12. Additionally, it also states that ‘All fees and charges should be reviewed 
on a more fundamental basis at least every 3 years, where it will be 
necessary to examine all the factors set out below in accordance with 
good practice guidance i.e. the CIPFA Practical Guide for Local 
Authorities on Income Generation (Fully revised 2008).’ This was 
undertake in 2011/12 with the Revenue Income Optimisation Project 
where successful business cases were integrated into the fees and 
charges as agreed by Council in February 2011 and published 
thereafter. 

13. 
In accordance with the policy, the Chief Finance Officer has advised that 
the minimum inflation rate to be applied in line with the Corporate 
Budget Strategy is 2% which is below the latest reported Retail Price 
Index. Where there have been variations from this advisory level these 
have been identified separately in this report. 

General 2% increase 
 
14. 
 

For the majority of services there will be a 2% increase for 2011/12. 
There are instances where this is not practically possible and these are 
highlighted in the following paragraphs. 

15. 
 

Social Care Health and Housing 
 
Adult Social Care charges have been increased by 2% in line with the 
Council’s budget strategy. It is usual practice to increase these charges 
in line with the DWP statutory increase in benefits and pensions. The 
DWP inflator will not be known until January/February and the charges 
will be reviewed again at that time. 

16. In Housing services, the charges in respect of Bed and Breakfast 
Accommodation have not been fully recouping the Bed and Breakfast 
rental cost which is equivalent to the Local Housing Allowance minus 
10%. It is therefore proposed to change this charge accordingly.  

17. In accordance with the HRA Budget Report Traveller site pitch fees are 
proposed to be increased in line with the average increase in tenants’ 
rents. 

 
18. 

New charges introduced for 2012/13 include: 

• Bed and Breakfast Management Fee which is limited by Housing 
Benefit payments; 

• TV, communal and window cleaning in homeless hostels; 

• Telecare as per the report to Adult Services Overview and 
Scrutiny in December and Executive in January; and 

• The fee for issue of blue badges following a new national scheme 
to produce the badges. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 16



19. Sustainable Communities 
 
Key Changes include: 
 
Parking 
Off street parking charges, permit charges, dispensations and visitor 
tickets – it is proposed that these remain the same as last year as 
further consideration will be given to charges with the development of 
the Parking Strategy. 

20. Rights of Way  
 
Charge for a ‘Certified True Copy of a Definitive Map’ – this is where a 
‘certified‘copy of a legal map showing rights of way is requested. 
Significant increases are proposed which is a move towards full cost 
recovery and the level of charging made by adjacent authorities. 
 

21. Libraries  
 

• Room Hire Charges – it is proposed that the room hire charges at 
Houghton Regis library should be the same as the (lower) hourly 
rate for ‘other libraries’ as there is less space available than at 
Leighton Buzzard and Flitwick libraries where the higher rate is 
applied.  

 

• Standard, Concessions and Children’s Fines: These have all 
been revised to take into account feedback from the library 
consultation. A formula has been applied to obtain the maximum 
charge (after 5 weeks) which is the daily rate based on 6 opening 
days per week x 30 days. A maximum is set to ensure the books 
are returned.  

 
22. Planning 

 

• Section 38 Agreements (technical audit, administration and 
supervision – percentage based on estimated cost of works after 
agreement) – it is proposed for the charge to remain the same as 
last year. These fees are a percentage of highway works costs 
and as such increase with the construction price index.  These 
percentages were increased substantially in 2010/11, from 7.5% 
to 8.5% i.e. a 13% increase in our charge to developers. 

• Planning pre-application advice - charges have been agreed and 
will be introduced from 1st February 2012.  The same charges will 
apply in 2012/13.  

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 17



23. Leighton Buzzard Theatre  
 

• Room & Auditorium Hire - The current Fees and Charges at 
Leighton Buzzard Theatre have been rationalised to make them 
much easier for hirers to understand and for staff to apply.  They 
have also been benchmarked against similar venues to ensure 
competitiveness in the market place.   

 

• Technical Support – The charges for Technical support have been 
stripped out of auditorium hire and will be charged for separately 
for every booking and applied on a hirers / venue needs basis. 

 
24. Corporate Resources 

 
There are a number of services where it is proposed not to increase the 
fees for 2012/13. These include the Registrar’s Service, the Coroners 
Service, Local Land Charges and advertising in News Central.  

25. The Registrar’s Service is provided via a joint Service Level Agreement 
with Bedford Borough Council and fees were reviewed and raised in 
2011/12 based on full cost recovery. The reduction in overheads since 
then makes an increase inappropriate. Full cost recovery will be 
maintained and there will be no impact on the budget. 

26. Local Land Charges are required by a statutory instrument to be non 
profit making and the current set fees are at an appropriate level to 
comply with this. 

27. Charges for Freedom of Information (FOI) requests that require more 
than 18 hours to complete are subject to the FOI Act Fees Regulations 
where the charge can be no more than £25 per hour. 

28. Legal services charges have been re-assessed to be more in line with 
the true costs of the service. 
 

Fees and Charges Schedule 
 
29. 
 

The full revised schedule is shown at Appendix A.  

 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Fees and Charges Schedule 
 
Background papers and their location: (open to public inspection) 
None 

Agenda Item 11
Page 18



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

A
ll
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s

£
£

ro
u
n
d
e
d
to
n
e
a
re
s
t
0
.1
0
p
w
h
e
re
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le

P
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
a
n
d
P
ri
n
ti
n
g
o
f
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
-

a
ll
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
u
n
le
s
s
s
p
e
c
if
ie
d

A
4
S
in
g
le
re
q
u
e
s
t
u
p
to
5
0
s
h
e
e
ts

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

A
4
e
v
e
ry
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
s
h
e
e
t
o
v
e
r
5
0
1
0
p
p
e
r
s
h
e
e
t

1
0
p
p
e
r
s
h
e
e
t

A
3
p
e
r
c
o
p
y

0
.2
5

0
.3
0

C
o
lo
u
r
P
h
o
to
c
o
p
ie
s

A
4
P
e
r
c
o
p
y

1
.1
0

1
.1
0

A
3
p
e
r
c
o
p
y

1
.6
0

1
.6
0

C
o
lo
u
r
K
e
y
:
S
ta
tu
to
ry
C
h
a
rg
e

E
x
c
e
p
t
w
h
e
re
in
d
ic
a
te
d
,
a
ll
fi
g
u
re
s
in
c
lu
d
e
V
A
T
w
h
ic
h
w
il
l
b
e
le
v
ie
d
a
t
th
e
p
re
v
a
il
in
g
ra
te
w
h
e
re

a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 19



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
H
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
H
o
u
s
in
g

£
£

ro
u
n
d
e
d
to
n
e
a
re
s
t
0
.1
0
p
w
h
e
re
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le

H
o
u
s
in
g

S
e
rv
ic
e
C
h
a
rg
e
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(4
8
w
e
e
k
b
a
s
is
)

D
o
o
r
E
n
tr
y
S
y
s
te
m
s

0
.1
9

0
.2
0

D
is
tr
ic
t
H
e
a
ti
n
g

1
0
.0
8
-
1
6
.3
6

1
0
.3
0
-
1
6
.7
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
H
e
a
ti
n
g

0
.1
1
–
4
.0
4

0
.1
0
-
4
.1
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
C
le
a
n
in
g

0
.3
8
–
5
.8
6

0
.4
0
-
6
.0
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
E
le
c
tr
ic

0
.0
8
–
6
.7
0

0
.1
0
-
6
.8
0

W
in
d
o
w
C
le
a
n
in
g

0
.2
9

0
.3
0

G
e
n
e
ra
l
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
fo
r
s
h
e
lt
e
re
d
a
n
d
m
in
i
s
c
h
e
m
e
s

0
.1
1
–
3
.3
6

0
.1
0
-
3
.4
0

S
ta
ir
c
a
s
e
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
-
G
e
n
e
ra
l
D
w
e
lli
n
g
s

0
.1
2
–
1
.4
1

0
.1
0
-
1
.4
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
P
e
o
p
le
C
h
a
rg
e
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(4
8
w
e
e
k
b
a
s
is
)

R
e
d
H
o
u
s
e
C
o
u
rt

1
8
.7
6

1
9
.1
0

O
th
e
r
s
h
e
lt
e
re
d
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

1
8
.6
3

1
9
.0
0

D
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
e
ld
e
rl
y
p
e
rs
o
n
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s

6
.6
5

6
.8
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
A
la
rm
S
y
s
te
m p
e
rs
o
n
s
in
c
o
u
n
c
il
s
h
e
lt
e
re
d
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
o
r
d
is
a
b
le
d

3
.5
9

3
.7
0

n
o
t
in
c
o
u
n
c
il
s
h
e
lt
e
re
d
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
(i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
V
A
T
)

4
.3
1

4
.4
0

G
u
e
s
t
R
o
o
m
s

P
e
r
n
ig
h
t

S
in
g
le

9
.0
7

9
.3
0

D
o
u
b
le

1
4
.2
1

1
4
.5
0

L
a
u
n
d
ry
-
p
e
r
le
t
o
r
w
e
e
k
w
h
ic
h
e
v
e
r
is
th
e
s
h
o
rt
e
r

6
.4
3

6
.6
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 20



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
H
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
H
o
u
s
in
g

£
£

G
a
ra
g
e
s
V
A
T
n
/a
)

P
e
r
w
e
e
k
e
x
c
lu
s
iv
e
o
f
ra
te
s
(4
8
w
e
e
k
b
a
s
is
)

C
o
u
n
c
il
T
e
n
a
n
t

9
.3
8

9
.6
0

N
o
t
C
o
u
n
c
il
T
e
n
a
n
t
(i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
V
A
T
)

1
1
.2
5

1
1
.5
0

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
c
h
a
rg
e

1
5
.2
0

1
5
.5
0

C
e
s
s
p
it
C
h
a
rg
e
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(4
8
w
e
e
k
b
a
s
is
)

3
.9
5

4
.0
0

B
e
d
&
B
re
a
k
fa
s
t
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(5
2
w
e
e
k
s
)

1
4
7
.8
0

L
o
c
a
l
H
o
u
s
in
g
A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
m
in
u
s
1
0
%

B
e
d
&
B
re
a
k
fa
s
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
F
e
e
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
o
n
e
o
ff
c
h
a
rg
e

n
/a

6
0
.0
0

B
re
a
k
fa
s
t
p
e
r
p
e
rs
o
n
(a
n
y
a
g
e
)
p
e
r
w
e
e
k

3
.2
1

3
.3
0

S
h
o
rt
T
e
rm

L
e
a
s
e
d
P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(5
2
w
e
e
k
s
)

1
4
3
.5
1

1
4
6
.4
0

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
H
o
s
te
l
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(5
2
w
e
e
k
s
)

S
c
h
e
m
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
r

3
5
.8
3

3
6
.5
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
H
e
a
ti
n
g

1
.5
1

1
.5
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
E
le
c
tr
ic

2
.9
7

3
.0
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
H
e
a
ti
n
g
&
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
H
o
t
W
a
te
r

3
.7
3
-
5
.5
7

3
.8
0
-5
.7
0

T
V

0
.3
0

0
.3
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
C
le
a
n
in
g

n
/a

2
.3
0

W
in
d
o
w
C
le
a
n
in
g

n
/a

0
.3
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
T
e
le
v
is
io
n
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(4
8
w
e
e
k
b
a
s
is
)

0
.3
0

0
.3
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 21



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
H
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
H
o
u
s
in
g

£
£

C
a
re
li
n
e
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(4
8
w
e
e
k
b
a
s
is
)

2
.6
3

2
.7
0

S
e
a
li
n
g
o
n
R
e
d
e
m
p
ti
o
n
F
e
e
(+
re
g
is
tr
y
s
e
a
rc
h
fe
e
)

S
e
a
lin
g
o
n
R
e
d
e
m
p
ti
o
n
F
e
e
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
o
n
e
o
ff
fe
e

1
0
5
.0
0

1
0
7
.1
0

L
a
n
d
R
e
g
is
tr
y
S
e
a
rc
h
F
e
e
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
o
n
e
o
ff
fe
e

4
.0
0

4
.0
0

C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
re
fe
re
n
c
e
to
b
a
n
k
s
&
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
o
c
ie
ti
e
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

2
7
.3
1

2
7
.9
0

R
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
(R
T
B
)
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

4
0
.4
4

4
1
.2
0

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
fo
r
C
a
b
le
In
s
ta
ll
a
ti
o
n
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

1
1
8
.8
8

1
2
1
.3
0

H
o
u
s
in
g
A
c
t
2
0
0
4
E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

R
e
c
ip
ie
n
t
o
f
H
o
u
s
in
g
A
c
t
E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t
N
o
ti
c
e
(p
e
r
p
e
rs
o
n
)

2
0
0
.0
0

2
0
4
.0
0

A
d
m
in
c
h
a
rg
e
fo
r
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
W
o
rk
s
in
D
e
fa
u
lt
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t

a
c
ti
v
it
y
-
p
e
r
E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t
N
o
ti
c
e

2
0
%
o
f
c
o
s
t

2
0
%
o
f
c
o
s
t

H
o
u
s
e
s
o
f
M
u
lt
ip
le
O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
S
c
h
e
m
e
(p
e
r
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
)
-
lic
e
n
s
e
g
ra
n
te
d
fo
r
5
y
e
a
rs

3
8
2
.0
6

3
8
9
.7
0

T
ra
v
e
ll
e
r
s
it
e
p
it
c
h
fe
e
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
(5
2
w
e
e
k
s
)

S
in
g
le
p
it
c
h

8
9
.0
0

9
5
.2
0

D
o
u
b
le
p
it
c
h

9
7
.0
0

1
0
3
.8
0

S
e
rv
ic
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

1
5
.0
0

1
5
.3
0

S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
H
o
u
s
in
g

S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l
L
o
u
n
g
e
h
ir
e
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)

1
2
.6
0

1
2
.9
0

C
a
re
lin
e
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
C
h
a
rg
e
(V
A
T
n
/a
-
p
e
r
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
)

2
0
.0
0

2
0
.4
0

B
ig
B
u
tt
o
n
T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
s
u
p
p
ly
a
n
d
fi
t

1
3
.9
9

1
4
.3
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
4
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 22



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
H
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
H
o
u
s
in
g

£
£

A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re

C
h
a
rg
e
s
to
C
u
s
to
m
e
rs
a
n
d
In
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

M
a
x
im
u
m
A
p
p
li
c
a
b
le
c
h
a
rg
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
C
a
re
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

L
in
s
e
ll
H
o
u
s
e
(H
o
m
e
fo
r
A
d
u
lt
s
w
it
h
M
u
lt
ip
le
D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
)
(p
e
r
w
e
e
k
)

1
,8
2
6
.6
6

1
,8
6
3
.2
0

D
a
y
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
a
n
d
D
a
y
C
a
re
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

D
a
y
C
e
n
tr
e
s
fo
r
A
d
u
lt
s
w
it
h
L
e
a
rn
in
g
D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
(p
e
r
d
a
y
)

5
0
.5
2

5
1
.5
0

D
a
y
a
n
d
S
o
c
ia
l
C
e
n
tr
e
s
fo
r
O
ld
e
r
P
e
o
p
le
(p
e
r
d
a
y
)

2
8
.3
5

2
8
.9
0

T
ra
v
e
l
to
D
a
y
C
e
n
tr
e
(p
e
r
jo
u
rn
e
y
)

1
.5
0

1
.5
0

D
o
m
ic
il
ia
ry
C
a
re

H
o
m
e
C
a
re
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

1
7
.4
5

1
7
.8
0

C
a
re
p
ro
v
id
e
d
in
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
L
iv
in
g
u
n
it
s
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

1
7
.4
5

1
7
.8
0

C
a
re
p
ro
v
id
e
d
in
E
x
tr
a
C
a
re
S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
H
o
u
s
in
g
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

1
7
.4
5

1
7
.8
0

T
e
le
c
a
re
S
e
rv
ic
e

T
B
A

T
B
A

F
la
t
ra
te
c
h
a
rg
e
to
a
ll
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

M
e
a
ls
:
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

F
ro
z
e
n
m
e
a
l
(p
e
r
m
e
a
l)

3
.1
5

3
.2
0

H
o
t
m
e
a
l
(p
e
r
m
e
a
l)
*

3
.5
0

3
.6
0

M
e
a
ls
a
t
d
a
y
c
e
n
tr
e
s
(p
e
r
m
e
a
l)
*

3
.5
0

3
.6
0

F
e
e
Is
s
u
e
o
f
a
B
lu
e
B
a
d
g
e

n
/a

1
0
.0
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
5
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 23



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
H
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
H
o
u
s
in
g

£
£

C
h
a
rg
e
s
to
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
O
th
e
r
L
o
c
a
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s

S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

L
in
s
e
ll
H
o
u
s
e
(H
o
m
e
fo
r
A
d
u
lt
s
w
it
h
M
u
lt
ip
le
D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
)
(p
e
r
w
e
e
k
)

1
,8
2
6
.6
6

1
,8
6
3
.2
0

D
a
y
C
e
n
tr
e
s
fo
r
A
d
u
lt
s
w
it
h
L
e
a
rn
in
g
D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
in
c
l.
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
(p
e
r
d
a
y
)
(V
A
T

n
/a
)

6
2
.0
5

6
3
.3
0

D
a
y
C
e
n
tr
e
s
fo
r
A
d
u
lt
s
w
it
h
L
e
a
rn
in
g
D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
e
x
c
l.
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
(p
e
r
d
a
y
)
(V
A
T

n
/a
)

5
0
.4
8

5
1
.5
0

D
a
y
C
e
n
tr
e
s
fo
r
O
ld
e
r
P
e
o
p
le
-
p
e
r
d
a
y
in
c
l.
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
(p
e
r
d
a
y
)
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

4
2
.0
6

4
2
.9
0

D
a
y
C
e
n
tr
e
s
fo
r
O
ld
e
r
P
e
o
p
le
e
x
c
l.
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
(p
e
r
d
a
y
)
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

2
8
.3
9

2
9
.0
0

L
e
tt
in
g
s
:
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

S
id
e
R
o
o
m
/
S
m
a
ll
R
o
o
m

u
p
to
4
h
o
u
rs

2
0
.3
5

2
0
.8
0

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
h
o
u
r

5
.1
5

5
.2
0

M
a
in
H
a
ll

u
p
to
4
h
o
u
rs

4
0
.3
7

4
1
.2
0

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
h
o
u
r

1
0
.2
8

1
0
.5
0

K
it
c
h
e
n

u
p
to
4
h
o
u
rs

1
3
.4
9

1
3
.8
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
6
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 24



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

R
e
v
is
e
d
1
S
e
p
t
£

£

ro
u
n
d
e
d
to
n
e
a
re
s
t
0
.1
0
p
w
h
e
re
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le

M
u
s
ic
S
e
rv
ic
e
V
A
T
(n
/a
)

L
e
s
s
o
n
S
e
tt
in
g
(P
e
r
T
e
rm
)

L
o
w
e
r
S
c
h
o
o
ls

G
ro
u
p

8
5
.2
0
b
y
D
D

8
6
.9
0
b
y
D
D

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l

1
2
7
.9
0
b
y
D
D

1
3
0
.5
0
b
y
D
D

M
id
d
le
,
U
p
p
e
r
a
n
d
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

G
ro
u
p

8
5
.2
0
b
y
D
D

8
6
.9
0
b
y
D
D

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l
2
0
m
in
s

1
2
7
.9
0
b
y
D
D

1
3
0
.5
0
b
y
D
D

M
id
d
le
a
n
d
U
p
p
e
r

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l
3
0
m
in
s

1
9
1
.8
0
b
y
D
D

1
9
5
.6
0
b
y
D
D

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l
4
0
m
in
s

2
5
5
.7
0
b
y
D
D

2
6
0
.8
0
b
y
D
D

O
u
t
o
f
C
o
u
n
ty
a
n
d
n
o
n
-L
E
A
s
c
h
o
o
ls

G
ro
u
p

1
8
0
.8
0
b
y
D
D

1
8
4
.4
0
b
y
D
D

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l
2
0
m
in
s

1
6
9
.7
0
b
y
D
D

1
7
3
.1
0
b
y
D
D

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l
3
0
m
in
s

2
5
4
.5
0
b
y
D
D

2
5
9
.6
0
b
y
D
D

S
c
h
o
o
l
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
&
P
o
s
t
1
6
b
u
s
p
a
s
s

p
e
r
te
rm

1
4
4
.0
0

1
4
6
.9
0

h
a
lf
te
rm

7
2
.0
0

7
3
.4
0

y
e
a
r

3
9
1
.0
0

3
9
8
.8
0

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t
B
u
s
P
a
s
s

to
u
r
o
p
e
ra
to
rs
c
h
a
rg
e
p
lu
s
a

h
a
n
d
li
n
g
fe
e
o
f
£
5

to
u
r
o
p
e
ra
to
rs
c
h
a
rg
e
p
lu
s
a
h
a
n
d
li
n
g
fe
e
o
f
£
1
0

Agenda Item 11
Page 25



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

ro
u
n
d
e
d
to
n
e
a
re
s
t
0
.1
0
p
w
h
e
re
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le

P
u
b
li
c
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n

L
ic
e
n
c
e
s

R
id
in
g
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll
L
ic
e
n
c
e

2
5
2
.0
0

2
5
7
.0
0

P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l
L
ic
e
n
c
e

2
5
%
o
f
fu
ll

2
5
%
o
f
fu
ll

D
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s
W
ild
A
n
im
a
ls

5
7
7
.0
0

5
8
8
.5
0

P
e
t
S
h
o
p
s

2
3
1
.0
0

2
3
5
.6
0

D
o
g
B
re
e
d
e
rs

2
1
8
.0
0

2
2
2
.4
0

A
n
im
a
l
B
o
a
rd
in
g
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
ts

2
6
3
.0
0

2
6
8
.3
0

Z
o
o
s

G
ra
n
t
/
N
e
w

1
,0
2
5
.0
0

1
,0
4
5
.5
0

R
e
n
e
w
a
l

6
4
0
.0
0

6
5
2
.8
0

Z
o
o
s
w
it
h
d
is
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
tu
s
fr
o
m
D
E
F
R
A
-
G
ra
n
t/
N
e
w

5
0
%
o
f
G
ra
n
t
/
N
e
w

5
0
%
o
f
G
ra
n
t
/
N
e
w

Z
o
o
s
w
it
h
d
is
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
tu
s
fr
o
m
D
E
F
R
A
-
R
e
n
e
w
a
l

5
0
%
o
f
R
e
n
e
w
a
l

5
0
%
o
f
R
e
n
e
w
a
l

L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
o
f
H
a
c
k
n
e
y
C
a
b
s
a
n
d
P
ri
v
a
te
H
ir
e
V
e
h
ic
le
s

L
ic
e
n
c
e
F
e
e
(1
2
m
o
n
th
s
o
r
le
s
s
)

P
ri
v
a
te
H
ir
e
-
N
e
w

2
4
0
.0
0

2
4
0
.0
0

P
ri
v
a
te
H
ir
e
-
R
e
n
e
w

1
6
2
.0
0

1
6
2
.0
0

H
a
c
k
n
e
y
C
a
rr
ia
g
e
-
N
e
w

2
9
0
.0
0

2
9
0
.0
0

H
a
c
k
n
e
y
C
a
rr
ia
g
e
-
R
e
n
e
w

2
2
0
.0
0

2
2
0
.0
0

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t
P
la
te

2
5
.0
0

2
5
.0
0

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
/
w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l
/
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
fe
e

2
5
.0
0

2
5
.0
0

P
ri
v
a
te
H
ir
e
V
e
h
ic
le
a
n
d
T
a
x
i
D
ri
v
e
r
L
ic
e
n
c
e

N
e
w
o
r
re
n
e
w
a
l
c
o
m
b
in
e
d
3
y
e
a
r
d
ri
v
e
r'
s
lic
e
n
c
e

1
5
0
.0
0

1
5
0
.0
0

N
e
w
o
r
re
n
e
w
a
l
c
o
m
b
in
e
d
1
y
e
a
r
d
ri
v
e
r'
s
lic
e
n
c
e

9
0
.0
0

9
0
.0
0

D
ri
v
e
r
K
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
T
e
s
t

2
5
.0
0

2
5
.0
0

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t
b
a
d
g
e

2
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
0

C
R
B
C
h
e
c
k
-
S
ta
n
d
a
rd

2
6
.0
0
(a
t
c
o
s
t)

2
6
.0
0
(a
t
c
o
s
t)

C
R
B
C
h
e
c
k
-
E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d

4
4
.0
0
(a
t
c
o
s
t)

4
4
.0
0
(a
t
c
o
s
t)

C
R
B
c
h
e
c
k
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
fe
e

1
5
.0
0

1
5
.0
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
8
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 26



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

P
ri
v
a
te
H
ir
e
O
p
e
ra
to
rs
L
ic
e
n
c
e

N
e
w
P
ri
v
a
te
H
ir
e
O
p
e
ra
to
rs
L
ic
e
n
c
e

1
9
5
.0
0

1
9
5
.0
0

R
e
n
e
w
a
l
P
ri
v
a
te
H
ir
e
O
p
e
ra
to
rs
L
ic
e
n
c
e

7
2
.0
0

7
2
.0
0

T
ra
n
s
fe
r
o
f
O
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
o
f
V
e
h
ic
le
s

W
h
e
re
th
e
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
o
f
a
v
e
h
ic
le
a
lr
e
a
d
y
lic
e
n
s
e
d
b
y
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
is
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
to
a
n
o
th
e
r
p
e
rs
o
n
th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
fe
e
s
w
ill
b
e
d
u
e
b
y
th
e
n
e
w

o
w
n
e
r
u
p
o
n
re
c
e
ip
t
o
f
a
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n

W
h
e
re
th
e
v
e
h
ic
le
lic
e
n
c
e
is
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
a
n
d
is
to
re
m
a
in
in
fo
rc
e
u
n
ti
l
it
s
e
x
p
ir
y

d
a
te

1
1
0
.0
0

1
1
0
.0
0

O
th
e
r
L
ic
e
n
s
in
g

D
u
p
lic
a
te
P
e
tr
o
le
u
m
L
ic
e
n
c
e

2
7
.0
0

2
7
.5
0

P
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
A
n
im
a
ls
(p
e
r
lic
e
n
c
e
)

3
2
.0
0

3
2
.6
0

S
k
in
P
ie
rc
in
g
,
in
c
lu
d
in
g
T
a
tt
o
o
in
g
,
A
c
u
p
u
n
c
tu
re
,
E
le
c
tr
o
ly
s
is
a
n
d
E
a
r
P
ie
rc
in
g

O
n
e
-o
ff
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
fe
e
s
:

P
re
m
is
e
s

1
4
6
.0
0

1
4
8
.9
0

P
e
rs
o
n

1
4
0
.0
0

1
4
2
.8
0

L
o
tt
e
ry
C
e
rt

G
ra
n
t
(s
ta
tu
to
ry
fe
e
/
c
h
a
rg
e
)

4
0
.0
0

4
0
.0
0

R
e
n
e
w
a
l
(s
ta
tu
to
ry
fe
e
/
c
h
a
rg
e
)

2
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
0

G
a
m
b
lin
g
A
c
t
2
0
0
5
P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e
F
e
e
s
:

N
e
w
P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e

5
7
7
.0
0

5
8
8
.5
0

V
a
ry
a
P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e

5
7
7
.0
0

5
8
8
.5
0

T
ra
n
s
fe
r
a
P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e

1
4
8
.0
0

1
5
1
.0
0

R
e
-i
n
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t
o
f
a
P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e

2
6
3
.0
0

2
6
8
.3
0

P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t

5
7
7
.0
0

5
8
8
.5
0

P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e
w
it
h
a
P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t

1
0
3
.0
0

1
0
5
.1
0

C
o
p
y
o
f
L
ic
e
n
c
e

2
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
0

N
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
o
f
C
h
a
n
g
e
o
f
A
d
d
re
s
s

3
2
.0
0

3
2
.6
0

A
n
n
u
a
l
P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e
F
e
e

2
6
3
.0
0

2
6
8
.3
0

S
e
x
S
h
o
p
/C
in
e
m
a

G
ra
n
t

5
7
0
.0
0

5
8
1
.4
0

R
e
n
e
w
a
l

4
0
0
.0
0

4
0
8
.0
0

T
ra
n
s
fe
r
o
r
V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

4
0
0
.0
0

4
0
8
.0
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
9
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 27



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

S
e
x
u
a
l
E
n
te
rt
a
in
m
e
n
t
V
e
n
u
e
s

G
ra
n
t

1
,3
4
0
.0
0

1
,3
6
6
.8
0

R
e
n
e
w
a
l

9
6
0
.0
0

9
7
9
.2
0

T
ra
n
s
fe
r
o
r
V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

9
6
0
.0
0

9
7
9
.2
0

M
o
to
r
S
a
lv
a
g
e
O
p
e
ra
to
r
(3
Y
e
a
rs
)

9
0
.0
0

9
1
.8
0

P
o
is
o
n
s
A
c
t
1
9
7
2
:

N
e
w
e
n
tr
y
o
r
c
h
a
n
g
e
o
f
n
a
m
e
o
n
lis
t

3
2
.6
7

3
3
.3
0

S
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
re
n
e
w
a
l
o
f
n
a
m
e
o
n
lis
t

1
7
.2
2

1
7
.6
0

A
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
to
p
re
m
is
e
s
(w
h
e
re
lis
te
d
p
e
rs
o
n
is
e
n
ti
tl
e
d
to
s
e
ll)

8
.8
0

9
.0
0

E
x
p
lo
s
iv
e
s
M
a
n
u
fa
c
tu
re
a
n
d
S
to
ra
g
e
o
f
E
x
p
lo
s
iv
e
s
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
5
(V
A
T
N
/A
)

S
to
ra
g
e
:

N
e
w
-
o
n
e
y
e
a
r
lic
e
n
c
e

1
7
8
.0
0

1
7
8
.0
0

N
e
w
-
tw
o
y
e
a
r
lic
e
n
c
e

2
3
4
.0
0

2
3
4
.0
0

R
e
n
e
w
-
o
n
e
y
e
a
r
lic
e
n
c
e

8
3
.0
0

8
3
.0
0

R
e
n
e
w
-
tw
o
y
e
a
r
lic
e
n
c
e

1
4
1
.0
0

1
4
1
.0
0

R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
:

N
e
w
-
o
n
e
y
e
a
r
lic
e
n
c
e

1
0
5
.0
0

1
0
5
.0
0

N
e
w
-
tw
o
y
e
a
r
lic
e
n
c
e

1
3
6
.0
0

1
3
6
.0
0

R
e
n
e
w
-
o
n
e
y
e
a
r
lic
e
n
c
e

5
2
.0
0

5
2
.0
0

R
e
n
e
w
-
tw
o
y
e
a
r
lic
e
n
c
e

8
3
.0
0

8
3
.0
0

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
/R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
/T
ra
n
s
fe
rs

3
5
.0
0

3
5
.0
0

F
ir
e
w
o
rk
s
A
c
t
2
0
0
3
-F
ir
e
w
o
rk
s
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
4
(l
ic
e
n
c
e
fo
r
a
ll
y
e
a
r
s
a
le
)

5
0
0
.0
0

5
0
0
.0
0

C
o
n
ta
m
in
a
te
d
L
a
n
d

C
o
n
ta
m
in
a
te
d
L
a
n
d
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s

T
o
p
ro
v
id
e
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
to
s
o
lic
it
o
rs
,
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
e
tc
.

8
7
.0
0

8
8
.7
0

F
o
o
d

F
o
o
d
E
x
p
o
rt
C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te

5
1
.0
0

5
2
.0
0

F
o
o
d
H
y
g
ie
n
e
C
o
u
rs
e
L
e
c
tu
ri
n
g

6
3
.0
0

6
4
.3
0

F
o
o
d
P
re
m
is
e
s
R
e
g
is
te
r

F
u
ll

9
7
0
.0
0

9
8
9
.4
0

S
in
g
le
E
n
tr
y

1
9
.0
0

1
9
.4
0

O
th
e
r
-
P
u
b
li
c
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n

W
a
te
r
S
a
m
p
lin
g

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
S
u
rr
e
n
d
e
r
C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te

1
0
1
.0
0

1
0
3
.0
0

P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
re
p
o
rt
fo
r
a
c
c
id
e
n
t
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n

6
7
.0
0

6
8
.3
0

S
tr
e
e
t
T
ra
d
in
g
-
a
n
n
u
a
l

3
7
5
.0
0

3
8
2
.5
0

S
tr
e
e
t
T
ra
d
in
g
-
O
n
e
o
ff
e
v
e
n
t

8
4
.0
0

8
5
.7
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
0
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 28



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

T
ra
d
in
g
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s

A
n
n
u
a
l
M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
F
e
e

1
8
2
.0
0

1
8
5
.6
0

R
e
n
e
w
a
l
F
e
e
fo
r
E
x
is
ti
n
g
M
e
m
b
e
r

1
3
7
.0
0

1
3
9
.7
0

U
K
T
C
M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
F
e
e

1
5
3
.0
0

1
5
6
.1
0

U
K
T
C
R
e
n
e
w
a
l
F
e
e

1
5
3
.0
0

1
5
6
.1
0

T
ra
d
in
g
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
S
ti
c
k
e
rs

p
e
r
1
0
0

1
3
.0
0

1
3
.3
0

p
e
r
5
0
0

1
8
.0
0

1
8
.4
0

p
e
r
1
0
0
0

2
4
.0
0

2
4
.5
0

C
o
n
s
u
m
e
r
G
u
id
e
L
e
a
fl
e
t

p
e
r
1
0
0

2
9
.0
0

2
9
.6
0

p
e
r
5
0
0

7
3
.0
0

7
4
.5
0

p
e
r
1
0
0
0

1
4
9
.0
0

1
5
2
.0
0

T
ra
d
in
g
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
P
la
q
u
e

3
7
.0
0

3
7
.7
0

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t/
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te

1
3
.0
0

1
3
.3
0

M
il
to
n
K
e
y
n
e
s
S
c
a
le
s

P
a
s
s
p
e
r
it
e
m

2
7
.0
0

2
7
.0
0

F
a
il
p
e
r
it
e
m

2
7
.0
0

2
7
.0
0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
a
ry
F
a
re
s

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
a
ry
tr
a
v
e
l
p
e
rm
it
s

5
.5
0

5
.6
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
S
a
fe
ty

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
S
a
fe
ty
-
F
ix
e
d
P
e
n
a
lt
y
N
o
ti
c
e
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)
-
c
h
a
rg
in
g
th
e
m
a
x
im
u
m

a
ll
o
w
e
d
b
y
la
w

M
a
x
im
u
m
/
D
is
c
o
u
n
te
d

M
a
x
im
u
m
/
D
is
c
o
u
n
te
d

N
u
is
a
n
c
e
p
a
rk
in
g
-
c
a
rs
fo
r
s
a
le
a
n
d
re
p
a
ir

1
0
0
/
6
0

1
0
0
/
6
0

A
b
a
n
d
o
n
in
g
a
v
e
h
ic
le

2
0
0
/
1
4
0

2
0
0
/
1
4
0

L
it
te
r

8
0
/
5
0

8
0
/
5
0

S
tr
e
e
t
lit
te
r
c
o
n
tr
o
l
n
o
ti
c
e
s
a
n
d
lit
te
r
c
le
a
ri
n
g
n
o
ti
c
e
s

1
0
0
/
6
0

1
0
0
/
6
0

U
n
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
o
f
fr
e
e
lit
e
ra
tu
re

8
0
/
5
0

8
0
/
5
0

G
ra
ff
it
i
a
n
d
fl
y
p
o
s
ti
n
g

8
0
/
5
0

8
0
/
5
0

F
a
ilu
re
to
p
ro
d
u
c
e
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
(W
a
s
te
T
ra
n
s
fe
r
N
o
te
s
)

3
0
0
/
2
0
0

3
0
0
/
2
0
0

F
a
ilu
re
to
p
o
s
s
e
s
s
a
W
a
s
te
C
a
rr
ie
rs
L
ic
e
n
c
e

3
0
0
/
2
0
0

3
0
0
/
2
0
0

O
ff
e
n
c
e
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
w
a
s
te
re
c
e
p
ta
c
le
s

1
0
0
/
6
0

1
0
0
/
6
0

O
ff
e
n
c
e
s
u
n
d
e
r
D
o
g
C
o
n
tr
o
l
O
rd
e
rs

8
0
/
5
0

8
0
/
5
0

F
a
ilu
re
to
n
o
m
in
a
te
k
e
y
h
o
ld
e
r
a
n
d
in
fo
rm
L
o
c
a
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ty

8
0
/
5
0

8
0
/
5
0

N
o
is
e
fr
o
m
lic
e
n
s
e
d
p
re
m
is
e
s
u
n
d
e
r
N
o
is
e
A
c
t
1
9
9
6

N
o
t
a
d
o
p
te
d

N
o
t
a
d
o
p
te
d

A
llo
w
in
g
a
d
o
g
to
fo
u
l
u
n
d
e
r
D
o
g
F
o
u
lin
g
o
f
L
a
n
d
A
c
t
1
9
7
9
/E
P
A
1
9
9
0

5
0
.0
0
/
n
o
d
is
c
o
u
n
t

5
0
.0
0
/
n
o
d
is
c
o
u
n
t

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
1
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 29



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

P
e
s
t
C
o
n
tr
o
l

R
a
ts
(F
ir
s
t
in
fe
s
ta
ti
o
n
tr
e
a
te
d
in
a
tw
e
lv
e
m
o
n
th
p
e
ri
o
d
)

0
.0
0

0
.0
0

R
a
ts
(S
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
in
fe
s
ta
ti
o
n
tr
e
a
te
d
in
a
tw
e
lv
e
m
o
n
th
p
e
ri
o
d
)

5
5
.0
0

5
6
.1
0

R
a
ts
C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n

2
7
.5
0

2
8
.1
0

M
ic
e
(F
ir
s
t
in
fe
s
ta
ti
o
n
tr
e
a
te
d
in
a
tw
e
lv
e
m
o
n
th
p
e
ri
o
d
)

0
.0
0

0
.0
0

M
ic
e
(S
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
in
fe
s
ta
ti
o
n
tr
e
a
te
d
in
a
tw
e
lv
e
m
o
n
th
p
e
ri
o
d
)

5
5
.0
0

5
6
.1
0

M
ic
e
C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n

2
7
.5
0

2
8
.1
0

B
e
d
b
u
g
s
(
F
ir
s
t
in
fe
s
ta
ti
o
n
tr
e
a
te
d
in
a
tw
e
lv
e
m
o
n
th
p
e
ri
o
d
)

0
.0
0

0
.0
0

B
e
d
B
u
g
s
(S
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
in
fe
s
ta
ti
o
n
tr
e
a
te
d
in
a
tw
e
lv
e
m
o
n
th
p
e
ri
o
d
)

5
5
.0
0

5
6
.1
0

B
e
d
b
u
g
s
C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n

2
7
.5
0

2
8
.1
0

C
o
c
k
ro
a
c
h
(F
ir
s
t
in
fe
s
ta
ti
o
n
tr
e
a
te
d
in
a
tw
e
lv
e
m
o
n
th
p
e
ri
o
d
)

0
.0
0

0
.0
0

C
o
c
k
ro
a
c
h
e
s
(S
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
in
fe
s
ta
ti
o
n
tr
e
a
te
d
in
a
tw
e
lv
e
m
o
n
th
p
e
ri
o
d
)

5
5
.0
0

5
6
.1
0

C
o
c
k
ro
a
c
h
C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n

2
7
.5
0

2
8
.1
0

W
a
s
p
s
(F
ir
s
t
n
e
s
t)

6
0
.0
0

6
1
.2
0

W
a
s
p
s
(C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
)

3
0
.0
0

3
0
.6
0

A
n
ts

6
5
.0
0

6
6
.3
0

A
n
t
(C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
)

3
2
.5
0

3
3
.2
0

F
le
a
s

6
5
.0
0

6
6
.3
0

F
le
a
(C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
)

3
2
.5
0

3
3
.2
0

D
o
g
C
o
n
tr
o
l
-
N
o
V
A
T

V
e
te
ri
n
a
ry
fe
e

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

D
ir
e
c
t
re
tu
rn
to
o
w
n
e
r
w
h
e
re
d
o
g
s
a
re
c
h
ip
p
e
d
/
ta
g
g
e
d

2
6
.5
0

2
7
.0
0

O
w
n
e
r
c
o
lle
c
ts
fr
o
m
k
e
n
n
e
ls

5
2
.5
0

5
3
.6
0

K
e
n
n
e
lli
n
g
(p
e
r
n
ig
h
t)

1
0
.5
0

1
0
.7
0

W
a
rd
e
n
c
o
lle
c
ts
d
o
g
fr
o
m
k
e
n
n
e
ls
a
n
d
re
tu
rn
s
to
o
w
n
e
r

1
0
5
.0
0

1
0
7
.1
0

K
e
n
n
e
lli
n
g
(p
e
r
n
ig
h
t)

1
0
.5
0

1
0
.7
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
2
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 30



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

W
a
s
te

B
u
lk
y
W
a
s
te

T
o
c
o
lle
c
t
b
u
lk
y
w
a
s
te
fr
o
m
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
p
re
m
is
e
s
(p
e
r
lo
a
d
o
r
p
a
rt
th
e
re
o
f)

4
8
.0
0

4
9
.0
0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n

5
0
%
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
o
n
a
b
o
v
e

5
0
%
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
o
n
a
b
o
v
e

F
ri
d
g
e
s
&
F
re
e
z
e
rs

T
o
c
o
lle
c
t
fr
id
g
e
s
a
n
d
fr
e
e
z
e
rs
fr
o
m
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
p
re
m
is
e
s

3
7
.5
0

3
8
.3
0

P
e
rs
o
n
s
in
re
c
e
ip
t
o
f
m
e
a
n
s
te
s
te
d
b
e
n
e
fi
t

5
0
%
o
f
a
b
o
v
e

5
0
%
o
f
a
b
o
v
e

C
e
m
e
n
t
B
o
u
n
d
A
s
b
e
s
to
s

T
o
c
o
lle
c
t
c
e
m
e
n
t-
b
o
u
n
d
a
s
b
e
s
to
s
fr
o
m
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
p
re
m
is
e
s
:

A
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
o
n
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l
c
a
s
e
b
a
s
is
-

c
o
n
ta
c
t
th
e
S
e
rv
ic
e

A
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
o
n
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l
c
a
s
e
b
a
s
is
-
c
o
n
ta
c
t
th
e

S
e
rv
ic
e

P
e
rs
o
n
s
in
re
c
e
ip
t
o
f
m
e
a
n
s
te
s
te
d
b
e
n
e
fi
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
o
n
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l
c
a
s
e
b
a
s
is
-

c
o
n
ta
c
t
th
e
S
e
rv
ic
e

A
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
o
n
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l
c
a
s
e
b
a
s
is
-
c
o
n
ta
c
t
th
e

S
e
rv
ic
e

A
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
/
E
n
d
-o
f-
li
fe
V
e
h
ic
le
s

T
o
c
o
lle
c
t
a
n
d
d
is
p
o
s
e
o
f
e
n
d
-o
f-
lif
e
v
e
h
ic
le
s
fr
o
m
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
p
re
m
is
e
s

F
re
e
(e
x
c
e
p
t
c
a
ra
v
a
n
s
-
c
o
n
ta
c
t
th
e

s
e
rv
ic
e
)

F
re
e
(e
x
c
e
p
t
c
a
ra
v
a
n
s
-
c
o
n
ta
c
t
th
e
s
e
rv
ic
e
)

T
o
c
o
lle
c
t
a
n
d
d
is
p
o
s
e
o
f
e
n
d
-o
f-
lif
e
v
e
h
ic
le
o
r
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
v
e
h
ic
le
s
fr
o
m
n
o
n
-

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
p
re
m
is
e
s

2
7
.0
0

2
7
.5
0

P
la
n
n
in
g

H
ig
h
H
e
d
g
e
s

H
ig
h
H
e
d
g
e
s
L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
-
A
d
m
in
is
te
r
a
c
o
m
p
la
in
t
b
ro
u
g
h
t
u
n
d
e
r
P
a
rt
8
o
f
A
n
ti
-

S
o
c
ia
l
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r
A
c
t
2
0
0
3

4
9
1
.0
0

5
0
0
.8
0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
fo
r
a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
o
n
m
e
a
n
s
te
s
te
d
b
e
n
e
fi
t

5
0
%
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

5
0
%
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

S
tr
e
e
t
N
a
m
in
g
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

E
x
is
ti
n
g
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
-
H
o
u
s
e
N
a
m
e
C
h
a
n
g
e

5
9
.0
0

6
0
.2
0

N
e
w
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
-
N
a
m
in
g
/
N
u
m
b
e
ri
n
g

1
-5
P
lo
ts

1
7
7
.0
0

1
8
0
.5
0

6
-2
5
P
lo
ts

2
9
6
.0
0

3
0
1
.9
0

2
6
-7
5
P
lo
ts

7
1
1
.0
0

7
2
5
.2
0

7
6
+
P
lo
ts

9
7
8
.0
0

9
9
7
.6
0

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
h
a
rg
e
w
h
e
re
th
is
in
c
lu
d
e
s
n
a
m
in
g
a
b
u
ild
in
g
(e
.g
.
b
lo
c
k
o
f
fl
a
ts
)

2
3
7
.0
0

2
4
1
.7
0

E
x
is
ti
n
g
S
tr
e
e
t
-
R
e
n
a
m
e

2
9
6
.0
0

3
0
1
.9
0

E
x
is
ti
n
g
S
tr
e
e
t
-
R
e
n
a
m
e
-
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
h
a
rg
e
p
e
r
p
ro
p
e
rt
y

5
9
.0
0

6
0
.2
0

N
e
w
S
tr
e
e
t
-
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
h
a
rg
e
to
h
o
u
s
e
n
u
m
b
e
ri
n
g
w
h
e
re
th
is
in
c
lu
d
e
s
n
a
m
in
g
o
f

a
s
tr
e
e
t

2
3
7
.0
0

2
4
1
.7
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
3
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 31



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
&
B
u
il
d
in
g
C
o
n
tr
o
l

S
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
6
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
-
L
a
rg
e
r
C
o
lo
u
r
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts

A
s
A
4
s
h
e
e
ts
+
P
la
n
F
e
e
a
t
c
o
s
t

A
s
A
4
s
h
e
e
ts
+
P
la
n
F
e
e
a
t
c
o
s
t

T
re
e
P
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
O
rd
e
rs

A
s
A
4
s
h
e
e
ts
+
P
la
n
F
e
e
a
t
c
o
s
t

A
s
A
4
s
h
e
e
ts
+
P
la
n
F
e
e
a
t
c
o
s
t

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
s
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

if
n
o
t
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
is
s
u
e
d

F
re
e

F
re
e

d
u
p
lic
a
te
c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te

2
9
.5
0

2
9
.5
0

L
e
tt
e
r
o
f
c
o
n
fi
rm
a
ti
o
n
o
f
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
o
f
w
o
rk
s
(B
u
ild
in
g
R
e
g
s
)
(V
A
T

n
/a
)

5
9
.5
0

5
9
.5
0

S
a
le
o
f
P
la
n
s

A
2

9
.0
0

9
.2
0

A
1

1
1
.5
0

1
1
.7
0

A
0

1
4
.5
0

1
4
.8
0

S
1
0
6
T
o
w
n
&
C
o
u
n
tr
y
P
la
n
n
in
g
A
c
t
1
9
9
0
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
U
n
ila
te
ra
l
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
s
:

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
fe
e
:

U
n
ila
te
ra
l
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
s

3
0
0
.0
0

3
0
6
.0
0

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts

4
5
0
.0
0

4
5
9
.0
0

S
3
8
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
-
T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l
a
u
d
it
,
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
-
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

b
a
s
e
d
o
n
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
c
o
s
t
o
f
w
o
rk
s
b
e
fo
re
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t

1
1
%

1
1
%

S
3
8
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
-
T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l
a
u
d
it
,
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
-
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

b
a
s
e
d
o
n
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
c
o
s
t
o
f
w
o
rk
s
a
ft
e
r
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t

8
.5
0
%

8
.5
0
%

S
2
7
8
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
-
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
-
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
s
c
h
e
m
e
v
a
lu
e

7
%

7
%

H
ig
h
w
a
y
E
n
q
u
ir
y
a
n
d
S
e
a
rc
h
le
tt
e
rs
:
p
e
r
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
e
n
q
u
ir
y
(
V
A
T
N
/A
)

1
5
.4
0

1
5
.7
0

H
ig
h
w
a
y
E
n
q
u
ir
y
&
S
e
a
rc
h
L
e
tt
e
rs
:
p
e
r
n
o
n
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
e
n
q
u
ir
y
in
c
lu
d
in
g
V
A
T

4
7
.2
3

4
8
.2
0

M
in
e
ra
ls
L
e
tt
e
rs
:
p
e
r
e
n
q
u
ir
y

4
2
.0
0

4
2
.8
0

D
S
C
R
e
p
o
rt
s

In
it
ia
l
S
e
a
rc
h

4
0
.0
0

4
0
.8
0

P
e
r
A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n

0
.0
5

0
.0
5

G
IS
M
a
p
s

A
4

3
.5
0

3
.6
0

A
3

7
.0
0

7
.1
0

A
2

1
4
.5
0

1
4
.8
0

A
1

1
8
.5
0

1
8
.9
0

A
0

4
7
.5
0

4
8
.5
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
4
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 32



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

S
c
a
n
n
e
r

In
te
rn
a
l
A
n
n
u
a
l
F
e
e
:
u
n
lim
it
e
d
u
s
e

4
2
3
.0
0

4
3
1
.5
0

O
n
e
-o
ff
:
p
e
r
c
o
p
y

3
5
.0
0

3
5
.7
0

E
x
te
rn
a
l:
u
n
lim
it
e
d
u
s
e

4
2
3
.0
0

4
3
1
.5
0

E
x
te
rn
a
l:
p
e
r
c
o
p
y

3
5
.0
0

3
5
.7
0

C
o
m
m
o
n
s
S
e
a
rc
h
e
s
(C
R
2
1
)

1
8
.0
0

1
8
.4
0

M
in
e
ra
l
&
L
a
n
d
fi
ll
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
F
e
e
s
-
(n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
s
e
t
fe
e
s
)

C
u
rr
e
n
t
S
it
e

2
8
8
.0
0

D
o
rm
a
n
t
S
it
e

9
6
.0
0

H
e
ri
ta
g
e

U
s
e
o
f
H
is
to
ri
c
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l
R
e
c
o
rd
s
(H
E
R
):

P
e
r
h
o
u
r
b
y
v
is
it

4
5
.0
0

4
5
.9
0

P
e
r
h
o
u
r
b
y
re
m
o
te
e
n
q
u
ir
y

6
5
.0
0

6
6
.3
0

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
a
n
d
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
(V
A
T
N
/A
)

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
T
ra
ff
ic
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
O
rd
e
rs

*
T
h
is
ra
te
a
ls
o
a
p
p
lie
s
w
h
e
re
th
e
C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
A
c
c
e
s
s
T
e
a
m
m
a
k
e
s
u
c
h
O
rd
e
rs

fo
r
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
(t
h
e
m
a
jo
ri
ty
o
f
c
a
s
e
s
).
W
h
e
re
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
a
re
m
a
d
e
to
th
e

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
A
c
c
e
s
s
T
e
a
m
fr
o
m
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
6
0
%
o
f
th
e
fe
e
is
c
h
a
rg
e
d
.
T
h
e
re
is

a
n
o
p
ti
o
n
to
a
d
d
1
0
%
(i
n
a
ll
c
a
s
e
s
)
fo
r
e
v
e
ry
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
p
a
th
in
v
o
lv
e
d
in

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
.

1
,2
0
0
.0
0

1
2
2
4
.0
0
*

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
T
ra
ff
ic
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
O
rd
e
rs
fo
r
s
p
e
c
ia
l
e
v
e
n
ts

1
,2
0
0
.0
0

1
,2
2
4
.0
0

S
p
e
c
ia
l
E
v
e
n
ts
O
rd
e
rs
fo
r
c
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
a
n
d
lo
c
a
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s

1
5
0
.0
0

1
5
3
.0
0

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
T
ra
ff
ic
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
O
rd
e
rs

*
T
h
is
ra
te
a
ls
o
a
p
p
lie
s
w
h
e
re
th
e
C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
A
c
c
e
s
s
T
e
a
m
m
a
k
e
s
u
c
h
O
rd
e
rs

fo
r
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
(t
h
e
m
a
jo
ri
ty
o
f
c
a
s
e
s
).
W
h
e
re
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
a
re
m
a
d
e
to
th
e

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
A
c
c
e
s
s
T
e
a
m
fr
o
m
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
6
0
%
o
f
th
e
fe
e
is
c
h
a
rg
e
d
.
T
h
e
re
is

a
n
o
p
ti
o
n
to
a
d
d
1
0
%
(i
n
a
ll
c
a
s
e
s
)
fo
r
e
v
e
ry
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
p
a
th
in
v
o
lv
e
d
in

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
.

6
0
0
.0
0

6
1
2
.0
0
*

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
5
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 33



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

S
c
a
ff
o
ld
L
ic
e
n
c
e
s
,
e
x
c
a
v
a
ti
o
n
o
f
c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
a
n
d
h
o
a
rd
in
g

1
0
0
.0
0

1
0
2
.0
0

S
tr
e
e
tw
o
rk
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e
s

2
5
0
.0
0

2
5
5
.0
0

R
o
a
d
O
p
e
n
in
g
P
e
rm
it
F
e
e
(n
o
n
re
fu
n
d
a
b
le
)

9
0
.0
0

9
1
.8
0

R
o
a
d
O
p
e
n
in
g
P
e
rm
it
s
(R
e
fu
n
d
a
b
le
B
o
n
d
)
-
le
s
s
£
1
0
0
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
fe
e

4
5
0
.0
0

4
5
0
.0
0

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
h
a
rg
e
fo
r
a
b
o
v
e
,
o
v
e
r
5
m
2
(R
e
fu
n
d
a
b
le
B
o
n
d
)

9
0
.0
0
p
e
r
m
2

9
0
.0
0
p
e
r
m
2

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
h
a
rg
e
fo
r
e
x
c
a
v
a
ti
o
n
s
o
f
fo
o
tw
a
y
o
r
v
e
rg
e
(R
e
fu
n
d
a
b
le
B
o
n
d
)

3
0
.0
0
p
e
r
m
2

3
0
.0
0
p
e
r
m
2

D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r
D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
a
l
S
ig
n
a
g
e
-
p
e
r
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
(n
o
n
re
fu
n
d
a
b
le
)

1
2
5
.0
0

1
2
7
.5
0

D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r
D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
a
l
S
ig
n
a
g
e
(p
e
r
s
ig
n
)
re
fu
n
d
a
b
le
d
e
p
o
s
it

6
0
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

O
ff
S
tr
e
e
t
C
a
r
P
a
rk
in
g
C
h
a
rg
e
s

D
u
n
s
ta
b
le

W
e
s
t
S
tr
e
e
t
(2
h
r
ti
m
e
lim
it
)

F
re
e

F
re
e

W
e
s
tf
ie
ld
R
o
a
d
(3
h
r
ti
m
e
lim
it
)

F
re
e

F
re
e

H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
e
g
is

B
e
d
fo
rd
S
q
u
a
re
(3
h
r
ti
m
e
lim
it
)

F
re
e

F
re
e

T
it
h
e
F
a
rm
R
o
a
d
(3
h
r
ti
m
e
lim
it
)

F
re
e

F
re
e

L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd

B
a
k
e
r
S
tr
e
e
t
(2
h
r
ti
m
e
lim
it
)

F
re
e

F
re
e

L
in
s
la
d
e

N
e
w
R
o
a
d
(2
h
r
ti
m
e
lim
it
)

F
re
e

F
re
e

O
ff
S
tr
e
e
t
P
a
rk
in
g
C
h
a
rg
e
s

1
H
o
u
r

0
.5
0

0
.5
0

2
H
o
u
r

1
.0
0

1
.0
0

3
H
o
u
r

1
.5
0

1
.5
0

5
H
o
u
r

3
.5
0

3
.5
0

A
ll
D
a
y

6
.0
0

6
.0
0

O
ff
S
tr
e
e
t
C
a
r
P
a
rk
in
g
C
h
a
rg
e
s
A
s
to
n
S
q
u
a
re
,
S
t

M
a
ry
’s
G
a
te
,
E
le
a
n
o
r’
s
C
ro
s
s

1
H
o
u
r

0
.5
0

0
.5
0

2
H
o
u
r

0
.5
0

0
.5
0

3
H
o
u
r

1
.5
0

1
.5
0

5
H
o
u
r

3
.5
0

3
.5
0

A
ll
D
a
y

6
.0
0

6
.0
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
6
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 34



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

P
e
n
a
lt
y
C
h
a
rg
e
N
o
ti
c
e
s
-
N
o
V
A
T

C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
e
t
b
y
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
a
s
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
a
n
d
c
a
n
n
o
t
b
e
c
h
a
n
g
e
d

w
it
h
o
u
t
th
e
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
R
a
te

7
0
.0
0
(h
ig
h
le
v
e
l)

5
0
.0
0
(l
o
w
le
v
e
l)

7
0
.0
0
(h
ig
h
le
v
e
l)

5
0
.0
0
(l
o
w
le
v
e
l)

D
is
c
o
u
n
te
d
R
a
te
-
if
p
a
id
w
it
h
in
1
4
d
a
y
s

3
5
.0
0
(h
ig
h
le
v
e
l)

2
5
.0
0
(l
o
w
le
v
e
l)

3
5
.0
0
(h
ig
h
le
v
e
l)

2
5
.0
0
(l
o
w
le
v
e
l)

C
h
a
rg
e
C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
s
ta
g
e

1
0
5
.0
0
(h
ig
h
le
v
e
l)

7
5
.0
0
(l
o
w
le
v
e
l)

1
0
5
.0
0
(h
ig
h
le
v
e
l)

7
5
.0
0
(l
o
w
le
v
e
l)

C
o
u
rt
a
n
d
B
a
ili
ff
S
ta
g
e

1
1
0
.0
0
(h
ig
h
le
v
e
l)
p
lu
s
c
o
s
ts

8
0
.0
0
(l
o
w
le
v
e
l)
p
lu
s
c
o
s
ts

1
1
0
.0
0
(h
ig
h
le
v
e
l)
p
lu
s
c
o
s
ts

8
0
.0
0
(l
o
w
le
v
e
l)
p
lu
s
c
o
s
ts

P
e
rm
it
s

R
e
s
id
e
n
t
P
e
rm
it
p
e
r
a
n
n
u
m

5
0
.0
0

5
0
.0
0

R
e
s
id
e
n
t
P
e
rm
it
:
In
c
re
m
e
n
ta
l
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
fe
e
-
2
n
d
v
e
h
ic
le

7
0
.0
0

7
0
.0
0

R
e
s
id
e
n
t
P
e
rm
it
:
In
c
re
m
e
n
ta
l
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
fe
e
-
3
rd
v
e
h
ic
le

9
0
.0
0

9
0
.0
0

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
P
e
rm
it
(f
o
r
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
)
(f
o
r
u
s
e
in
C
B
C
c
a
r
p
a
rk
s
)

1
2
m
o
n
th
s

3
8
6
.0
0

3
8
6
.0
0

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
(f
o
r
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
w
o
rk
e
rs
)
(f
o
r
u
s
e
in
C
B
C
c
a
r
p
a
rk
s
)

1
2
m
o
n
th
s

3
8
6
.0
0

3
8
6
.0
0

3
m
o
n
th
s

1
2
9
.0
0

1
2
9
.0
0

1
m
o
n
th

5
2
.0
0

5
2
.0
0

M
a
rk
e
t
T
ra
d
e
r
-
p
e
r
p
it
c
h
p
e
r
m
a
rk
e
t
d
a
y

1
2
m
o
n
th
s

6
4
.0
0

6
4
.0
0

1
d
a
y

3
.5
0

3
.5
0

G
e
n
e
ra
l
P
u
b
lic
P
e
rm
it
(f
o
r
u
s
e
in
C
B
C
c
a
r
p
a
rk
s
)

1
w
e
e
k

1
2
.8
0

1
2
.8
0

D
is
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
-
p
e
r
d
a
y

5
.0
0

5
.0
0

D
is
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
:
p
e
r
w
e
e
k

2
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
0

B
o
o
k
2
5
v
is
it
o
r'
s
d
a
y
ti
c
k
e
ts

5
0
.0
0

5
0
.0
0

D
is
a
b
le
d
b
a
d
g
e
h
o
ld
e
rs

F
re
e
in
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
b
a
y
s
o
n
ly

F
re
e
in
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
b
a
y
s
o
n
ly

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
7
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 35



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

H
ig
h
w
a
y
L
ic
e
n
c
e
s
(V
A
T
N
/A
)

D
e
p
o
s
it
fo
r
s
c
a
ff
o
ld
in
g
o
n
o
r
o
v
e
r
h
ig
h
w
a
y

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

D
e
p
o
s
it
fo
r
h
o
a
rd
in
g
/f
e
n
c
e
s
o
n
h
ig
h
w
a
y

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

D
e
p
o
s
it
fo
r
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
c
ro
s
s
o
v
e
rs

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
to
d
e
p
o
s
it
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
o
n
th
e
h
ig
h
w
a
y

3
3
.0
0

3
3
.7
0

O
v
e
rs
a
ili
n
g
o
f
c
ra
n
e
o
v
e
r
th
e
h
ig
h
w
a
y

9
9
.0
0

1
0
1
.0
0

P
e
rm
is
s
io
n
to
p
la
c
e
s
k
ip
o
n
h
ig
h
w
a
y

3
3
.0
0

3
3
.7
0

P
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
q
u
o
ta
ti
o
n
fo
r
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
o
f
c
ro
s
s
o
v
e
r

9
7
.5
0

9
9
.5
0

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
o
f
c
ro
s
s
o
v
e
r

A
t
c
o
s
t

A
t
c
o
s
t

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
o
f
c
o
v
e
r

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

P
e
rm
is
s
io
n
-
ta
b
le
/c
h
a
ir
s
o
n
h
ig
h
w
a
y

£
1
5
0
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
fe
e

£
5
0
0
p
e
r
a
n
n
u
m
-
u
p
to
1
0
s
e
ts
o
f
ta
b
le
s
a
n
d

c
h
a
ir
s

£
1
,0
0
0
p
e
r
a
n
n
u
m
-
o
v
e
r
1
0
s
e
ts
o
f
ta
b
le
s
a
n
d

c
h
a
ir
s

M
o
b
ile
c
a
te
ri
n
g
,
b
u
rg
e
r
v
a
n
s
e
tc
.

£
5
0
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
fe
e

£
5
0
0
p
e
r
a
n
n
u
m

A
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
F
ra
m
e
s

£
5
0
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
fe
e

£
1
0
0
p
e
r
a
n
n
u
m
p
e
r
A
F
ra
m
e

C
u
lt
iv
a
ti
o
n
o
f
v
e
rg
e
lic
e
n
c
e

3
3
.0
0

3
3
.7
0

P
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
H
b
a
r
ro
a
d
m
a
rk
in
g
s

C
o
s
t

C
o
s
t

P
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
w
ri
tt
e
n
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
d
a
m
a
g
e
d
h
ig
h
w
a
y
p
la
n
t

C
o
s
t

C
o
s
t

R
e
n
e
w
c
o
n
c
re
te
b
o
lla
rd

C
o
s
t

C
o
s
t

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
P
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

H
ig
h
w
a
y
G
e
n
e
ra
l
S
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
A
id
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

7
.0
0

F
re
e

H
ig
h
w
a
y
D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e

F
re
e

F
re
e

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
8
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 36



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

R
ig
h
ts
o
f
W
a
y

P
u
b
li
c
P
a
th
/T
o
w
n
&
C
o
u
n
tr
y
P
la
n
n
in
g
A
c
t
O
rd
e
rs

P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
w
h
e
re
n
o
o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
re
c
e
iv
e
d

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
w
h
e
re
a
n
o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
is
re
c
e
iv
e
d

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

A
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
c
o
s
ts

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

C
o
s
t
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

P
u
b
li
c
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts

D
e
fi
n
it
iv
e
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t

0
.6
0

0
.6
0

C
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
O
rd
e
rs

3
.5
0

3
.6
0

P
o
lic
y
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

1
1
.0
0

1
1
.2
0

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
/r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
re
la
ti
n
g
to
s
ta
tu
to
ry
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
u
s
e
r
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
fo
rm
s

0
.6
0

0
.6
0

W
it
n
e
s
s
in
te
rv
ie
w
w
ri
te
u
p
s

0
.6
0

0
.6
0

S
ta
tu
to
ry
d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
b
y
C
o
u
n
c
il
o
ff
ic
e
rs
[p
e
r
h
o
u
r]

3
4
.0
0

3
4
.7
0

C
e
rt
if
ie
d
tr
u
e
c
o
p
y
o
f
D
e
fi
n
it
iv
e
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t

0
.6
0

0
.6
0

C
e
rt
if
ie
d
tr
u
e
c
o
p
y
o
f
D
e
fi
n
it
iv
e
M
a
p

p
e
r
c
o
p
y
A
4

5
.5
0

2
2
.5
0

p
e
r
c
o
p
y
A
3

1
1
.0
0

3
0
.0
0

p
e
r
c
o
p
y
6
0
x
8
0
c
m

2
2
.5
0

4
0
.0
0

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
n
o
t
o
ri
g
in
a
ti
n
g
fr
o
m
C
B
C

In
s
p
e
c
to
rs
'd
e
c
is
io
n
le
tt
e
rs

4
.3
0

4
.4
0

O
th
e
r

O
n
e
-o
ff
D
M
s
e
a
rc
h
e
s
,
p
la
n
n
in
g
e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
e
tc

5
5
.9
0

5
7
.0
0

P
ro
d
u
c
e
p
la
n

3
4
.0
0

3
4
.7
0

A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
w
it
h
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
p
u
b
lic
p
a
th
o
rd
e
rs
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)

4
3
.0
0

4
3
.9
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
1
9
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 37



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s

R
o
o
m
H
ir
e
C
h
a
rg
e
s
(n
o
n
V
A
T
)

i)
F
lit
w
ic
k
,
H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
e
g
is
,
L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd
-
H
o
u
rl
y
c
h
a
rg
e
:

W
it
h
in
o
p
e
n
in
g
h
o
u
rs

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

1
9
.0
0

1
9
.4
0
(F
li
tw
ic
k
a
n
d
L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd
li
b
ra
ri
e
s

o
n
ly
)

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

9
.5
0

9
.7
0
(F
li
tw
ic
k
a
n
d
L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd
li
b
ra
ri
e
s
o
n
ly
)

O
u
ts
id
e
o
p
e
n
in
g
h
o
u
rs

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

3
2
.0
0

3
2
.6
0
(F
li
tw
ic
k
a
n
d
L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd
li
b
ra
ri
e
s

o
n
ly
)

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

2
2
.5
0

2
3
.0
0
(F
li
tw
ic
k
a
n
d
L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd
li
b
ra
ri
e
s

o
n
ly
)

ii)
O
th
e
r
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
-
H
o
u
rl
y
c
h
a
rg
e

W
it
h
in
o
p
e
n
in
g
h
o
u
rs

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

1
3
.0
0

1
3
.3
0
(o
th
e
r
li
b
ra
ri
e
s
in
c
lu
d
in
g
H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
e
g
is

L
ib
ra
ry
)

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

6
.5
0

6
.6
0
(o
th
e
r
li
b
ra
ri
e
s
in
c
lu
d
in
g
H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
e
g
is

L
ib
ra
ry
)

O
u
ts
id
e
o
p
e
n
in
g
h
o
u
rs

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

2
5
.0
0

2
5
.5
0
(o
th
e
r
li
b
ra
ri
e
s
in
c
lu
d
in
g
H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
e
g
is

L
ib
ra
ry
)

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

1
9
.0
0

1
9
.4
0
(o
th
e
r
li
b
ra
ri
e
s
in
c
lu
d
in
g
H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
e
g
is

L
ib
ra
ry
)

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
0
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 38



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

A
u
d
io
V
is
u
a
l
(n
o
n
V
A
T
)
(p
e
r
it
e
m
)

C
D
s
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
ra
te

1
.0
0

1
.0
0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s

0
.5
0

0
.5
0

R
e
g
is
te
re
d
b
lin
d
,
p
a
rt
ia
lly
s
ig
h
te
d
a
n
d
h
e
a
ri
n
g
im
p
a
ir
e
d
p
e
o
p
le

F
re
e

F
re
e

V
id
e
o
s
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
ra
te

1
.5
0

1
.5
0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
&
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
V
id
e
o
s

0
.7
5

0
.8
0

R
e
g
is
te
re
d
b
lin
d
,
p
a
rt
ia
lly
s
ig
h
te
d
a
n
d
h
e
a
ri
n
g
im
p
a
ir
e
d
p
e
o
p
le
,
p
e
o
p
le
w
it
h

d
y
s
le
x
ia
,
p
e
o
p
le
w
it
h
d
y
s
p
ra
x
ia

F
re
e

F
re
e

D
V
D
’s
-
p
e
r
w
e
e
k

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
ra
te

2
.2
5

2
.3
0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
a
n
d
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
D
V
D
s

1
.1
5

1
.2
0

R
e
g
is
te
re
d
b
lin
d
,
p
a
rt
ia
lly
s
ig
h
te
d
a
n
d
h
e
a
ri
n
g
im
p
a
ir
e
d
p
e
o
p
le
,
p
e
o
p
le
w
it
h

d
y
s
le
x
ia
,
p
e
o
p
le
w
it
h
d
y
s
p
ra
x
ia

F
re
e

F
re
e

S
p
o
k
e
n
W
o
rd
C
D
s
a
n
d
C
a
s
s
e
tt
e
s
(3
w
e
e
k
lo
a
n
p
e
ri
o
d
)

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
ra
te

1
.2
5

1
.3
0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s

0
.6
5

0
.7
0

R
e
g
is
te
re
d
b
lin
d
,
p
a
rt
ia
lly
s
ig
h
te
d
a
n
d
h
e
a
ri
n
g
im
p
a
ir
e
d
p
e
o
p
le
;
h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d

s
e
rv
ic
e
c
lie
n
ts
;
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
s
p
o
k
e
n
w
o
rd
;
p
e
o
p
le
w
it
h
d
y
s
le
x
ia
,
p
e
o
p
le
w
it
h

d
y
s
p
ra
x
ia

F
re
e

F
re
e

L
ib
ra
ry
F
in
e
s

S
ta
n
d
a
rd

p
e
r
d
a
y
o
p
e
n

0
.2
5

0
.2
6

M
a
x
im
u
m
(a
ft
e
r
5
w
e
e
k
s
)

7
.5
0

7
.8
0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s

p
e
r
d
a
y
o
p
e
n

0
.1
2

0
.1
3

M
a
x
im
u
m
(a
ft
e
r
5
w
e
e
k
s
)

3
.6
0

3
.9
0

C
h
ild
re
n
's
T
ic
k
e
ts
a
n
d
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
B
o
o
k
s

p
e
r
d
a
y
o
p
e
n

0
.0
5

0
.0
6

M
a
x
im
u
m
(a
ft
e
r
5
w
e
e
k
s
)

1
.5
0

1
.8
0

C
D
's
,
D
V
D
's
a
n
d
V
id
e
o
s
.

F
u
rt
h
e
r
h
ir
e
c
h
a
rg
e
is
m
a
d
e

F
u
rt
h
e
r
h
ir
e
c
h
a
rg
e
is
m
a
d
e

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
1
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 39



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

L
o
s
t
a
n
d
D
a
m
a
g
e
d
it
e
m
s

C
h
a
rg
e
o
n
li
b
ra
ry
c
a
ta
lo
g
u
e
p
lu
s

£
1
.
If
n
o
t
o
n
c
a
ta
lo
g
u
e
re
fe
r
to

S
e
rv
ic
e
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
r

C
h
a
rg
e
o
n
li
b
ra
ry
c
a
ta
lo
g
u
e
p
lu
s
£
1
.
If
n
o
t
o
n

c
a
ta
lo
g
u
e
re
fe
r
to
S
e
rv
ic
e
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
r

M
a
g
a
z
in
e
s
-
c
h
a
rg
e
d
a
t
fa
c
e
v
a
lu
e
p
lu
s

0
.5
5

0
.6
0

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e
fo
r
d
a
m
a
g
e
d
b
o
o
k
s
b
o
rr
o
w
e
d
b
y
o
r
fo
r
c
h
ild
re
n
a
g
e
d
0
–
5
y
e
a
rs
.

C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
lo
s
t
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
b
o
o
k
s
,
a
d
u
lt
b
o
o
k
s
d
a
m
a
g
e
d
b
y
a
c
h
ild
,
o
r
d
a
m
a
g
e
d

a
u
d
io
v
is
u
a
l
it
e
m
s
s
ti
ll
a
p
p
ly
.

B
ri
ti
s
h
L
ib
ra
ry
L
o
s
t
B
o
o
k
C
h
a
rg
e

(5
0
%
re
m
is
s
io
n
if
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
re
tu
rn
e
d
)

A
c
tu
a
l
+
3
.2
0
a
d
m
in
fe
e

A
c
tu
a
l
+
3
.3
0
a
d
m
in
fe
e

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
(v
ie
w
p
o
in
t
a
n
d
s
ta
ff
a
s
s
is
te
d
)
c
h
a
rg
e
p
e
r
re
q
u
e
s
t

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
ra
te

1
.0
0

1
.2
0

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
ra
te

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s

0
.5
0

0
.6
0

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
h
a
rg
e
fo
r
b
o
o
k
s
b
o
rr
o
w
e
d
fr
o
m
o
u
ts
id
e
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e

2
.0
0

2
.0
0

V
o
c
a
l
s
c
o
re
s
:
p
e
r
s
e
t
o
f
5
-
3
0

6
.0
0

6
.1
0

V
o
c
a
l
s
c
o
re
s
p
e
r
s
e
t
o
f
3
1
+

1
2
.0
0

1
2
.2
0

R
e
q
u
e
s
t
c
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
1
6
–
1
8
y
e
a
r
o
ld
s
a
re
a
t
th
e
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
a
ry
ra
te

L
o
s
t
T
ic
k
e
t
R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t

C
h
a
rg
e
p
e
r
lo
s
t
ti
c
k
e
t
(A
d
u
lt
o
n
ly
)

1
.0
0

1
.0
0

P
ic
tu
re
H
a
n
g
in
g
S
e
rv
ic
e

D
is
p
la
y
c
h
a
rg
e
o
f
£
1
0
.0
0
p
e
r
w
e
e
k
w
h
e
re
it
e
m
s
a
re
fo
r
s
a
le

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
-
P
h
o
to
c
o
p
ie
s
a
n
d
P
ri
n
t
O
u
ts

i)
B
la
c
k
a
n
d
w
h
it
e
p
h
o
to
c
o
p
ie
s
,
fa
x
,
C
D
-R
O
M
a
n
d
in
te
rn
e
t
p
ri
n
ts

P
e
r
c
o
p
y
A
4

0
.1
0

0
.1
0

A
3

0
.1
5

0
.1
5

ii)
B
la
c
k
a
n
d
w
h
it
e
m
ic
ro
fo
rm
re
a
d
e
r/
p
ri
n
te
rs

P
e
r
c
o
p
y
A
4

0
.2
5

0
.3
0

iii
)
C
o
lo
u
r
C
D
-R
O
M
a
n
d
In
te
rn
e
t
p
ri
n
ts

c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
p
h
o
to
g
ra
p
h
s
,
a
rt
w
o
rk
o
r
c
h
a
rt
s

0
.5
0

0
.5
0

iv
)
C
o
lo
u
r
p
h
o
to
c
o
p
ie
s

P
e
r
c
o
p
y
A
4

1
.0
0

1
.0
0

A
3

1
.5
0

1
.5
0

(U
s
e
d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
w
h
e
re
lib
ra
ry
o
n
ly
h
a
s
c
o
lo
u
r
p
ri
n
te
rs
a
n
d
p
ri
n
t
w
o
u
ld
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
b

&
w
if
a
v
a
ila
b
le
)

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
2
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 40



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
fa
x
c
h
a
rg
e
s
p
e
r
c
o
p
y
s
e
n
t

U
K

fi
rs
t
s
h
e
e
t

1
.5
0

1
.5
0

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
s
h
e
e
ts

0
.7
0

0
.7
0

E
u
ro
p
e
&
N
A
m
e
ri
c
a

fi
rs
t
s
h
e
e
t

2
.7
0

2
.8
0

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
s
h
e
e
ts

1
.5
0

1
.5
0

R
e
s
t
o
f
w
o
rl
d

fi
rs
t
s
h
e
e
t

4
.0
0

4
.1
0

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
s
h
e
e
ts

2
.1
0

2
.1
0

R
e
c
e
iv
in
g
fa
x
e
s
(p
e
r
s
h
e
e
t)

1
.0
0

1
.0
0

R
e
c
e
iv
in
g
fa
x
e
s
fr
o
m
p
re
m
iu
m
ra
te
lin
e
s

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
c
h
a
rg
e

3
.2
0

3
.3
0

p
lu
s
p
ri
c
e
p
e
r
s
h
e
e
t

1
.0
0

1
.0
0

O
c
c
a
s
io
n
a
l
lo
c
a
l
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
(t
o
b
e
a
g
re
e
d
w
it
h
O
P
S
M
a
n
a
g
e
r)
a
t
c
o
s
t
+

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n

D
is
p
la
y
o
f
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
P
o
s
te
rs

A
ll
c
h
a
rg
e
s
to
b
e
fo
r
a
m
a
x
im
u
m
d
is
p
la
y
p
e
ri
o
d
o
f
4
w
e
e
k
s
.
C
h
a
rg
e
p
e
r
w
e
e
k

A
3

2
9
.0
0

2
9
.6
0

A
4

1
7
.5
0

1
7
.9
0

A
5

1
0
.5
0

1
0
.7
0

P
o
s
tc
a
rd
s
iz
e

5
.0
0

5
.1
0

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
S
a
le
s
it
e
m
s

O
c
c
a
s
io
n
a
l
lo
c
a
l
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
(t
o
b
e
a
g
re
e
d
w
it
h
O
P
S
M
a
n
a
g
e
r)
a
t
c
o
s
t
+

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
c
h
a
rg
e
o
f

1
1
%

1
0
%

C
h
a
ri
ty
a
n
d
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
G
ro
u
p
S
a
le
s

B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
D
u
n
s
ta
b
le
,
F
lit
w
ic
k
,
H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
e
g
is
,
L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd

1
8
.0
0
p
e
r
d
a
y

1
8
.4
0
p
e
r
d
a
y

O
th
e
r
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s

1
2
.0
0
p
e
r
d
a
y

1
2
.2
0
p
e
r
d
a
y

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
3
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 41



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

A
rc
h
iv
e
s
-
c
h
a
rg
e
s
s
e
t
b
y
B
e
d
fo
rd
B
o
ro
u
g
h
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
it
s
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

u
n
d
e
r
th
e
S
L
A
(p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
o
n
th
e
ir
in
te
rn
e
t
s
it
e
)

L
E
IG
H
T
O
N
B
U
Z
Z
A
R
D
T
H
E
A
T
R
E

A
-
C
H
A
R
G
E
S
T
O
C
H
A
R
IT
Y
A
N
D
V
O
L
U
N
T
A
R
Y
O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S

i)
H
ir
e
C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
S
IN
G
L
E
E
V
E
N
T
P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
S
in
th
e
a
u
d
it
o
ri
u
m
-

W
it
h
o
u
t
T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia
n
(N
o
V
A
T
o
n
R
o
o
m
H
ir
e
)

M
o
n
/
T
u
e
s
d
a
y

S
e
e
n
e
w
L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd
T
h
e
a
tr
e
C
h
a
rg
e
s

b
e
lo
w

0
9
3
0
-
1
6
2
0

1
9
6
.8
8

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

2
5
9
.3
8

0
9
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

4
5
1
.0
6

W
e
d
/
T
h
u
rs
d
a
y

0
9
3
0
-
1
6
3
0

1
9
6
.8
8

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

3
3
2
.3
0

0
9
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

5
1
8
.7
7

F
ri
/
S
a
tu
rd
a
y

0
9
3
0
-1
6
3
0

1
9
6
.8
8

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

3
8
8
.5
5

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
0
0

5
8
6
.4
8

M
o
n
d
a
y
/
W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

1
2
5
.0
0

0
9
3
0
-1
7
3
0

2
0
8
.3
4

1
7
3
0
-2
3
0
0

3
1
0
.9
5

0
9
3
0
-2
3
0
0

4
7
7
.6
2

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
/S
u
n
d
a
y
4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

1
7
5
.0
1

0
9
3
0
-1
7
3
0

3
0
8
.3
4

1
7
3
0
-2
3
0
0

4
4
2
.7
2

0
9
3
0
-2
3
0
0

7
0
2
.1
1

E
x
tr
a
H
o
u
rs
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)
M
o
rn
/
A
ft

2
6
.0
4

E
v
e
n
in
g

4
1
.6
7

L
a
te
V
a
c
a
ti
n
g

5
2
.0
9

S
u
n
d
a
y
G
e
t
In
/
G
e
t
O
u
t
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)

4
1
.6
7

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
4
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 42



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

ii)
H
ir
e
C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
S
IN
G
L
E
E
V
E
N
T
P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
S
in
th
e
a
u
d
it
o
ri
u
m
-
W
it
h

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia
n
(N
o
V
A
T
o
n
R
o
o
m
H
ir
e
)

M
o
n
/
T
u
e
s
d
a
y

0
9
3
0
-
1
6
2
0

3
5
5
.2
2

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

3
8
3
.3
5

0
9
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

7
3
2
.3
2

W
e
d
/
T
h
u
rs
d
a
y

0
9
3
0
-
1
6
3
0

3
5
5
.2
2

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

4
5
1
.0
6

0
9
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

8
0
0
.0
3

F
ri
/
S
a
tu
rd
a
y

0
9
3
0
-1
6
3
0

3
5
5
.2
2

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

5
1
2
.5
2

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
0
0

8
6
7
.7
4

M
o
n
d
a
y
/
W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y

4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

1
6
6
.6
7

0
9
3
0
-1
7
3
0

3
3
3
.3
4

1
7
3
0
-2
3
0
0

3
8
3
.8
7

0
9
3
0
-2
3
0
0

7
1
7
.2
1

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
/S
u
n
d
a
y

4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

2
1
6
.6
7

0
9
3
0
-1
7
3
0

4
3
3
.3
5

1
7
3
0
-2
3
0
0

5
1
5
.6
4

0
9
3
0
-2
3
0
0

9
4
2
.2
2

E
x
tr
a
H
o
u
rs
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)
M
o
rn
/
A
ft

2
6
.0
4

E
v
e
n
in
g

4
1
.6
7

L
a
te
V
a
c
a
ti
n
g

5
2
.0
9

S
u
n
d
a
y
G
e
t
In
/
G
e
t
O
u
t
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)

4
1
.6
7

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
5
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 43



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

L
o
u
n
g
e

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
.0
0

1
9
.7
9

0
9
.3
0
-1
7
.3
0

1
2
.5
0

1
8
.0
0
-2
3
.0
0

1
4
.5
8

M
e
e
ti
n
g
R
o
o
m

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
.0
0

1
3
.5
4

0
9
.3
0
-1
7
.3
0

8
.3
3

1
8
.0
0
-2
3
.0
0

1
0
.4
2

T
h
e
a
tr
e

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
.0
0

2
7
.0
8

0
9
.3
0
-1
7
.3
0

2
6
.0
4

1
8
.0
0
-2
3
.0
0

2
8
.1
3

B
-
C
H
A
R
G
E
S
T
O
C
O
M
M
E
R
C
IA
L
O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S

i)
H
ir
e
C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
S
IN
G
L
E
E
V
E
N
T
P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
S
in
th
e
a
u
d
it
o
ri
u
m
-

W
it
h
o
u
t
T
e
c
h
(N
o
V
A
T
o
n
R
o
o
m
H
ir
e
)

M
o
n
/
T
u
e
s
d
a
y

0
9
3
0
-
1
6
2
0

3
2
7
.0
9

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

3
8
8
.5
5

0
9
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

5
1
8
.7
7

W
e
d
/
T
h
u
rs
d
a
y

0
9
3
0
-
1
6
3
0

3
2
7
.0
9

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

3
8
8
.5
5

0
9
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

5
8
6
.4
8

F
ri
/
S
a
tu
rd
a
y

0
9
3
0
-1
6
3
0

3
2
7
.0
9

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

4
5
1
.0
6

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
0
0

6
4
7
.9
4

M
o
n
d
a
y
/
W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y

4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

1
3
3
.3
4

0
9
3
0
-1
7
3
0

2
2
5
.0
1

1
7
3
0
-2
3
0
0

3
3
9
.5
9

0
9
3
0
-2
3
0
0

5
1
9
.8
1

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
6
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 44



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
/S
u
n
d
a
y
4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

1
8
7
.5
1

0
9
3
0
-1
7
3
0

3
3
3
.3
4

1
7
3
0
-2
3
0
0

4
8
2
.8
3

0
9
3
0
-2
3
0
0

E
x
tr
a
H
o
u
rs
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)
M
o
rn
/
A
ft

2
8
.6
5

E
v
e
n
in
g

4
5
.8
3

L
a
te
V
a
c
a
ti
n
g

5
7
.2
9

S
u
n
d
a
y
G
e
t
In
/
G
e
t
O
u
t
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)

1
1
.4
6

ii)
H
ir
e
C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
S
IN
G
L
E
E
V
E
N
T
P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
S
in
th
e
a
u
d
it
o
ri
u
m
-
W
it
h

T
e
c
h
(N
o
V
A
T
o
n
R
o
o
m
H
ir
e
)

M
o
n
/
T
u
e
s
d
a
y

0
9
3
0
-
1
6
2
0

4
8
4
.3
9

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

5
1
2
.5
2

0
9
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

8
0
0
.0
3

W
e
d
/
T
h
u
rs
d
a
y

0
9
3
0
-
1
6
3
0

4
8
4
.3
9

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

5
1
2
.5
2

0
9
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

8
6
7
.7
4

F
ri
/
S
a
tu
rd
a
y

0
9
3
0
-1
6
3
0

4
8
4
.3
9

1
7
3
0
-
2
3
0
0

5
7
5
.0
2

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
0
0

9
3
0
.2
4

M
o
n
d
a
y
/
W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y

4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

1
7
5
.0
1

0
9
3
0
-1
7
3
0

3
5
0
.0
1

1
7
3
0
-2
3
0
0

4
1
2
.5
1

0
9
3
0
-2
3
0
0

7
5
9
.4
0

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
/S
u
n
d
a
y

4
h
o
u
r
s
lo
t

2
2
9
.1
7

0
9
3
0
-1
7
3
0

4
5
8
.3
5

1
7
3
0
-2
3
0
0

5
5
5
.7
5

0
9
3
0
-2
3
0
0

1
0
1
2
.5
3

E
x
tr
a
H
o
u
rs
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)
M
o
rn
/
A
ft

2
8
.6
5

E
v
e
n
in
g

4
5
.8
3

L
a
te
V
a
c
a
ti
n
g

5
7
.2
9

S
u
n
d
a
y
G
e
t
In
/
G
e
t
O
u
t
(p
e
r
h
o
u
r)

4
5
.8
3

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
7
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 45



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

iii
)
H
ir
e
C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
N
O
N
P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
S
E
V
E
N
T
in
A
L
L
A
R
E
A
S
(N
o
V
A
T
o
n

R
o
o
m
H
ir
e
)

L
o
u
n
g
e

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
.0
0

2
7
.0
8

0
9
.3
0
-1
7
.3
0

1
4
.5
8

1
8
.0
0
-2
3
.0
0

1
6
.6
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
R
o
o
m

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
.0
0

1
9
.7
9

0
9
.3
0
-1
7
.3
0

1
0
.4
2

1
8
.0
0
-2
3
.0
0

1
2
.5
0

T
h
e
a
tr
e

0
9
.3
0
-
2
3
.0
0

3
9
.5
8

0
9
.3
0
-1
7
.3
0

3
1
.2
5

1
8
.0
0
-2
3
.0
0

4
1
.6
7

N
e
w
L
e
ig
h
to
n
B
u
z
z
a
rd
T
h
e
a
tr
e
P
ri
c
e
s

L
o
u
n
g
e

N
o
n
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

1
8
.0
0

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

2
5
.0
0

M
e
e
ti
n
g
R
o
o
m

N
o
n
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

1
3
.0
0

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

2
0
.0
0

A
u
d
it
o
ri
u
m
N
o
n
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

N
o
n
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

3
0
.0
0

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

4
0
.0
0

A
u
d
it
o
ri
u
m
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

M
o
n
-W
e
d
p
e
r
h
o
u
r
4
h
o
u
rs
m
in
n
o
n
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

4
0
.0
0

M
o
n
-W
e
d
p
e
r
h
o
u
r
4
h
o
u
rs
m
in
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

4
5
.0
0

M
o
n
-W
e
d
9
.3
0
to
2
3
.0
0
n
o
n
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

5
0
0
.0
0

M
o
n
-W
e
d
9
.3
0
to
2
3
.0
0
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

5
8
0
.0
0

T
h
u
r-
S
a
t
p
e
r
h
o
u
r
4
h
o
u
rs
m
in
n
o
n
-c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

5
0
.0
0

T
h
u
r-
S
a
t
p
e
r
h
o
u
r
4
h
o
u
rs
m
in
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

5
5
.0
0

T
h
u
r-
S
a
t
9
.3
0
to
2
3
.0
0
n
o
n
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

5
5
0
.0
0

T
h
u
r-
S
a
t
9
.3
0
to
2
3
.0
0
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

6
5
0
.0
0

L
a
te
V
a
c
a
ti
n
g
p
e
r
1
/2
h
r
o
r
p
o
rt
io
n
th
e
re
o
f

3
0
.0
0

S
u
n
d
a
y
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

5
0
.0
0

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia
n
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

2
0
.0
0

B
lo
c
k
b
o
o
k
in
g
s
o
f
5
d
a
y
s
in
c
lu
s
iv
e
o
f
'g
e
t
in
a
n
d
g
e
t
o
u
t'
2
0
%
d
is
c
o
u
n
t

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
8
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 46



2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

N
o
te
s
-
A
ll
ro
o
m
h
ir
e
-
n
o
n
V
A
T
.
T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l
h
ir
e
is
a
s
e
p
a
ra
te
it
e
m
.

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
2
9
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 47



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

P
la
n
C
h
a
rg
e

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
C
h
a
rg
e

£
£

£

1
1
9
5
.0
0

4
6
0
.0
0

6
5
5
.0
0

2
2
5
5
.0
0

5
1
5
.0
0

7
7
0
.0
0

3
3
1
5
.0
0

6
3
5
.0
0

9
5
0
.0
0

4
3
7
5
.0
0

6
9
0
.0
0

1
,0
6
5
.0
0

5
4
3
5
.0
0

8
7
0
.0
0

1
,3
0
5
.0
0

6
4
9
5
.0
0

9
3
0
.0
0

1
,4
2
5
.0
0

7
5
5
5
.0
0

9
8
5
.0
0

1
,5
4
0
.0
0

8
6
1
5
.0
0

1
,1
1
0
.0
0

1
,7
2
5
.0
0

9
6
7
5
.0
0

1
,2
2
5
.0
0

1
,9
0
0
.0
0

1
0

7
2
5
.0
0

1
,3
5
0
.0
0

2
,0
7
5
.0
0

1
1

7
7
5
.0
0

1
,4
2
0
.0
0

2
,1
9
5
.0
0

1
2

8
2
5
.0
0

1
,4
9
0
.0
0

2
,3
1
5
.0
0

1
3

8
7
5
.0
0

1
,6
1
5
.0
0

2
,4
9
0
.0
0

1
4

9
2
5
.0
0

1
,6
8
5
.0
0

2
,6
1
0
.0
0

1
5

9
7
5
.0
0

1
,8
1
5
.0
0

2
,7
9
0
.0
0

1
6

1
,0
2
5
.0
0

1
,8
8
0
.0
0

2
,9
0
5
.0
0

1
7

1
,0
7
5
.0
0

2
,0
0
5
.0
0

3
,0
8
0
.0
0

1
8

1
,1
2
5
.0
0

2
,0
7
5
.0
0

3
,2
0
0
.0
0

1
9

1
,1
7
5
.0
0

2
,2
0
5
.0
0

3
,3
8
0
.0
0

2
0

1
,2
2
5
.0
0

2
,3
3
5
.0
0

3
,5
6
0
.0
0

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

B
u
il
d
in
g
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
C
h
a
rg
e
s

N
o
o
f

D
w
e
ll
in
g
s

F
u
ll
P
la
n
s

B
u
il
d
in
g
N
o
ti
c
e
C
h
a
rg
e

2
0
1
1
/1
2
&
2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te
s

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
C
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
th
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
o
r
c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
to
N
e
w
D
w
e
ll
in
g
s

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
0
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 48



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

C
a
te
g
o
ry

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

P
la
n
C
h
a
rg
e

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
C
h
a
rg
e

B
u
ild
in
g
N
o
ti
c
e
c
h
a
rg
e

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
C
h
a
rg
e

£
£

£
£

1
S
in
g
le
S
to
re
y
E
x
te
n
s
io
n
fl
o
o
r

a
re
a
n
o
t
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
4
0
m
2

1
6
0
.0
0

1
9
5
.0
0

3
5
5
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

2

S
in
g
le
S
to
re
y
E
x
te
n
s
io
n

e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
4
0
m
2
b
u
t
n
o
t

e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
6
0
m
2

1
6
0
.0
0

2
8
5
.0
0

4
4
5
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

3

S
in
g
le
S
to
re
y
E
x
te
n
s
io
n

e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
6
0
m
2
b
u
t
n
o
t

e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
1
0
0
m
2

1
6
0
.0
0

3
7
5
.0
0

5
3
5
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

C
a
te
g
o
ry

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

P
la
n
C
h
a
rg
e

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
C
h
a
rg
e

B
u
ild
in
g
N
o
ti
c
e
c
h
a
rg
e

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
C
h
a
rg
e

£
£

£
£

4
T
w
o
S
to
re
y
E
x
te
n
s
io
n
fl
o
o
r

a
re
a
n
o
t
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
6
0
m
2

1
6
0
.0
0

2
8
5
.0
0

4
4
5
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

5

T
w
o
S
to
re
y
E
x
te
n
s
io
n

e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
6
0
m
2
b
u
t
n
o
t

e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
1
0
0
m
2

1
6
0
.0
0

3
7
5
.0
0

5
3
5
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

C
a
te
g
o
ry

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

P
la
n
C
h
a
rg
e

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
C
h
a
rg
e

B
u
ild
in
g
N
o
ti
c
e
c
h
a
rg
e

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
C
h
a
rg
e

£
£

£
£

6
L
o
ft
c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
n
o
t
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g

4
0
m
2
fl
o
o
r
a
re
a

1
6
0
.0
0

2
5
5
.0
0

4
1
5
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

7

L
o
ft
c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g

4
0
m
2
fl
o
o
r
a
re
a
b
u
t
n
o
t

e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
1
0
0
m
2

1
6
0
.0
0

3
7
5
.0
0

5
3
5
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

2
0
1
1
/1
2
a
n
d
2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te
s

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
E
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
to
a
S
in
g
le
B
u
il
d
in
g

S
IN
G
L
E
S
T
O
R
E
Y
E
X
T
E
N
S
IO
N
S

T
W
O
S
T
O
R
E
Y
E
X
T
E
N
S
IO
N
S

L
O
F
T
C
O
N
V
E
R
S
IO
N
S

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
1
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 49



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

C
a
te
g
o
ry

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

P
la
n
C
h
a
rg
e

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
C
h
a
rg
e

B
u
ild
in
g
N
o
ti
c
e
c
h
a
rg
e

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
C
h
a
rg
e

£
£

£
£

8

E
re
c
ti
o
n
o
r
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
o
f
a
n
o
n

e
x
e
m
p
t
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
o
r
d
e
ta
c
h
e
d

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
g
a
ra
g
e
o
r
c
a
rp
o
rt
u
p

to
1
0
0
m
2

1
6
0
.0
0

1
4
0
.0
0

3
0
0
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

9
C
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
o
f
a
g
a
ra
g
e
to
a

d
w
e
lli
n
g
to
a
h
a
b
it
a
b
le
ro
o
m
(s
)

2
1
0
.0
0

N
il

2
1
0
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

1
0

A
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
to
e
x
te
n
d
o
r
c
re
a
te

a
b
a
s
e
m
e
n
t
u
p
to
1
0
0
m
2

2
1
0
.0
0

N
il

2
1
0
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

C
a
te
g
o
ry

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

B
a
s
is
o
f
C
h
a
rg
e

P
la
n
C
h
a
rg
e

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
C
h
a
rg
e

B
u
ild
in
g
N
o
ti
c
e

C
h
a
rg
e

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
fo
r
w
o
rk
c
a
rr
ie
d

o
u
t
a
t
th
e
s
a
m
e
ti
m
e
a
s
a
n

e
x
te
n
s
io
n

£
£

£
£

1

T
h
e
in
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
o
f
a
c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d

fi
tt
in
g
o
r
o
th
e
r
b
u
ild
in
g
w
o
rk

a
n
c
ill
a
ry
to
th
e
b
u
ild
in
g
o
f
a
n

e
x
te
n
s
io
n

In
c
lu
d
e
d
in
c
h
a
rg
e
fo
r

e
x
te
n
s
io
n

n
/a

n
/a

n
/a

n
/a

2
T
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l
U
n
d
e
rp
in
n
in
g

U
p
to
2
5
m
in
le
n
g
th

2
6
5
.0
0

N
il

2
6
5
.0
0

5
0
.0
0

3
R
e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
o
f
a
th
e
rm
a
l

e
le
m
e
n
t

F
ix
e
d
P
ri
c
e

2
0
0
.0
0

N
il

2
0
0
.0
0

5
0
.0
0

4
O
th
e
r
A
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
,
in
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
s

o
f
fi
tt
in
g
s
(n
o
t
e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l)
a
n
d
/o
r

s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l
a
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
.

F
ix
e
d
P
ri
c
e
B
a
s
e
d
o
n

E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
C
o
s
t
B
a
n
d
s

(I
f
a
n
c
ill
a
ry
to
th
e
b
u
ild
in
g
o
f

a
n
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
n
o
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l

c
h
a
rg
e
)

E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
C
o
s
t
u
p
to
£
5
0
0
0

1
7
5
.0
0

N
il

1
7
5
.0
0

E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
C
o
s
t
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g

£
5
0
0
0
u
p
to
£
2
5
,0
0
0

1
7
5
.0
0

1
5
0
.0
0

3
2
5
.0
0

E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
c
o
s
t
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g

£
2
5
,0
0
0
u
p
to
£
5
0
,0
0
0

1
7
5
.0
0

3
0
0
.0
0

4
7
5
.0
0

D
O
M
E
S
T
IC
A
L
T
E
R
A
T
IO
N
S
T
O
A
S
IN
G
L
E
B
U
IL
D
IN
G

G
A
R
A
G
E
S
A
N
D
C
A
R
P
O
R
T
S

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
2
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 50



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
c
o
s
t
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g

£
5
0
,0
0
0
u
p
to
£
7
5
,0
0
0

1
7
5
.0
0

3
6
0
.0
0

5
3
5
.0
0

5
W
in
d
o
w
R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t
(n
o
n

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t
p
e
rs
o
n
s
s
c
h
e
m
e
)

F
ix
e
d
P
ri
c
e
g
ro
u
p
e
d
b
y
n
u
m
b
e
r

o
f
w
in
d
o
w
s

P
e
r
in
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
u
p
to
2
0

1
2
5
.0
0

N
il

1
2
5
.0
0

5
0
.0
0

P
e
r
In
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
o
v
e
r
2
0

1
7
5
.0
0

N
il

1
7
5
.0
0

5
0
.0
0

6
E
le
c
tr
ic
a
l
W
o
rk
(n
o
t
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t

p
e
rs
o
n
s
s
c
h
e
m
e

F
ix
e
d
P
ri
c
e
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d

c
o
s
t
b
a
n
d
s

E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
c
o
s
t
u
p
to
£
1
0
,0
0
0

2
1
0
.0
0

N
il

2
1
0
.0
0

5
0
.0
0

E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
C
o
s
t
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g

£
1
0
,0
0
0

2
7
0
.0
0

N
il

2
7
0
.0
0

5
0
.0
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
3
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 51



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

N
o
.
o
f
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l

U
n
it
s

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0
-2
4

2
5
-9
9

1
0
0
-2
4
9

2
5
0
-
4
9
9

5
0
0
-9
9
9

1
0
0
0
-
1
9
9
9

1
0
1
–

2
0
1
–

3
0
1
–

4
0
1
–

5
0
1
–

6
0
1
–

7
0
1
–

8
0
1
–

9
0
1
–

1
0
0
1
-

2
0
0
1
-

3
0
0
1
–

5
0
0
1
-

1
3
0
0
1
-

2
0
0
m
2

3
0
0
m
2

4
0
0
m
2

5
0
0
m
2

6
0
0
m
2

7
0
0
m
2

8
0
0
m
2

9
0
0
m
2

1
0
0
0
m
2

2
0
0
0
m
2

3
0
0
0
m
2

5
0
0
0
m
2

1
3
0
0
0
m
2

2
2
0
0
0
m
2

P
re
-a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n

A
d
v
ic
e

£
6
7
0
–

£
1
,6
7
5
–

£
4
,3
1
3
–

£
7
,3
1
3
–

£
1
2
,9
1
3
–

£
2
2
,3
1
3
–

C
h
a
rg
e

£
1
,6
0
8

£
4
,2
9
3

£
7
,2
9
3

£
1
2
,2
9
3

£
2
2
,2
9
3

£
4
2
,2
9
3

£
6
0
3

C
F
S

(C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
F
lo
o
r

S
p
a
c
e
)

<
1
0
0
m
2

£
3
3
5

£
4
0
2

£
4
6
9

£
5
3
6

3
h
o
u
rs
w
o
rt
h
o
f

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
w
it
h
a
P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l

P
la
n
n
in
g
o
ff
ic
e
r

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

P
la
n
n
in
g
P
re
-A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
A
d
v
ic
e
C
h
a
rg
in
g
2
0
1
1
/1
2
*
a
n
d
2
0
1
2
/1
3

*C
h
a
rg
e
s
to
b
e
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
fr
o
m
1
s
t
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
2
0
1
2

V
A
T
N
o
t
In
c
lu
d
e
d

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s

1
h
o
u
rs
w
o
rt
h
o
f
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
w
it
h
a
P
la
n
n
in
g
O
ff
ic
e
r/
S
e
n
io
r
P
la
n
n
in
g
O
ff
ic
e
r

2
h
o
u
rs
w
o
rt
h
o
f

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
w
it
h
a

S
e
n
io
r
P
la
n
n
in
g

O
ff
ic
e
r

3
h
o
u
rs
w
o
rt
h
o
f

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
w
it
h
a

S
e
n
io
r/
P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l

P
la
n
n
in
g
o
ff
ic
e
r

£
6
7

£
1
3
4

£
2
0
1

£
2
6
8

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

p
a
g
e
3
4
o
f3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 52



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
C
o
p
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

£
£

ro
u
n
d
e
d
to
n
e
a
re
s
t
0
.1
0
p
w
h
e
re
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le

F
re
e
d
o
m
o
f
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
th
a
t
re
q
u
ir
e
1
8
h
o
u
rs
o
r
le
s
s
to
c
o
m
p
ile

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
th
a
t
re
q
u
ir
e
1
8
h
o
u
rs
to
c
o
m
p
ile

4
8
2
.6
0

4
5
0
.0
0

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
o
s
t
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

2
7
.0
0

2
5
.0
0

D
is
b
u
rs
e
m
e
n
t
C
o
s
ts

P
o
s
ta
g
e
u
n
d
e
r
£
2
0

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

P
o
s
ta
g
e
£
2
0
o
r
o
v
e
r

A
c
tu
a
l
c
o
s
t

A
c
tu
a
l
c
o
s
t

E
-m
a
il
T
ra
n
s
m
is
s
io
n

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

N
o
c
h
a
rg
e

C
D
/
D
V
D
p
e
r
d
is
k

5
.4
0

5
.5
0

R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
(F
e
e
s
jo
in
tl
y
a
g
re
e
d
w
it
h
B
e
d
s
B
o
ro
u
g
h
u
n
d
e
r
a
S
e
rv
ic
e
L
e
v
e
l

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t)

M
a
rr
ia
g
e
s
-
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
P
re
m
is
e
s

L
o
c
a
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
V
e
n
u
e
M
o
n
d
a
y
-
T
h
u
rs
d
a
y

1
1
5
.0
0

1
1
5
.0
0

L
o
c
a
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
V
e
n
u
e
F
ri
d
a
y

1
2
0
.0
0

1
2
0
.0
0

L
o
c
a
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
V
e
n
u
e
S
a
tu
rd
a
y

1
6
5
.0
0

1
6
5
.0
0

O
u
ts
id
e
V
e
n
u
e
M
o
n
d
a
y
-
F
ri
d
a
y

3
9
0
.0
0

3
9
0
.0
0

O
u
ts
id
e
V
e
n
u
e
S
a
tu
rd
a
y

4
6
5
.0
0

4
6
5
.0
0

O
u
ts
id
e
V
e
n
u
e
S
u
n
d
a
y
a
n
d
B
a
n
k
H
o
lid
a
y
s

5
2
0
.0
0

5
2
0
.0
0

C
iv
il
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
s
-
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
P
re
m
is
e
s

L
o
c
a
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
V
e
n
u
e
M
o
n
d
a
y
-
T
h
u
rs
d
a
y

1
1
5
.0
0

1
1
5
.0
0

L
o
c
a
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
V
e
n
u
e
F
ri
d
a
y

1
2
0
.0
0

1
2
0
.0
0

L
o
c
a
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
V
e
n
u
e
S
a
tu
rd
a
y

1
6
5
.0
0

1
6
5
.0
0

O
u
ts
id
e
V
e
n
u
e
M
o
n
d
a
y
-
F
ri
d
a
y

3
4
0
.0
0

3
4
0
.0
0

O
u
ts
id
e
V
e
n
u
e
S
a
tu
rd
a
y

3
9
5
.0
0

3
9
5
.0
0

O
u
ts
id
e
V
e
n
u
e
S
u
n
d
a
y
a
n
d
B
a
n
k
H
o
lid
a
y
s

4
5
5
.0
0

4
5
5
.0
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
5
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 53



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
C
o
p
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

£
£

C
e
le
b
ra
to
ry
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
-
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
P
re
m
is
e
s
-
O
u
ts
id
e
V
e
n
u
e

w
e
e
k
d
a
y
s

2
5
5
.0
0

2
5
5
.0
0

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
s

3
1
5
.0
0

3
1
5
.0
0

S
u
n
d
a
y
s
&
B
a
n
k
H
o
lid
a
y
s

3
7
0
.0
0

3
7
0
.0
0

C
e
le
b
ra
to
ry
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
-
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
P
re
m
is
e
s
-
L
o
c
a
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
V
e
n
u
e

w
e
e
k
d
a
y
s

2
7
0
.0
0

2
7
0
.0
0

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
s

3
2
5
.0
0

3
2
5
.0
0

S
u
n
d
a
y
s
&
B
a
n
k
H
o
lid
a
y
s

3
8
0
.0
0

3
8
0
.0
0

N
a
ti
o
n
a
lit
y
C
h
e
c
k
in
g
S
e
rv
ic
e

A
d
u
lt
s
w
h
o
s
u
b
m
it
a
s
in
g
le
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
p
a
y
s
o
n
e
fe
e

6
0
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

H
u
s
b
a
n
d
a
n
d
w
if
e
liv
in
g
to
g
e
th
e
r
w
h
o
a
p
p
ly
a
t
th
e
s
a
m
e
ti
m
e
p
a
y
o
n
e
fe
e

1
0
0
.0
0

1
0
0
.0
0

C
h
ild
re
n
s
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

3
0
.0
0

3
0
.0
0

C
it
iz
e
n
s
h
ip
C
e
re
m
o
n
ie
s
-
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l
C
e
re
m
o
n
y
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

1
1
0
.0
0

1
1
0
.0
0

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e
F
e
e
(T
h
re
e
y
e
a
r)
F
ir
s
t
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
(m
in
im
u
m
fe
e

fo
r
2
ro
o
m
s
o
n
ly
-
£
1
0
0
to
b
e
a
d
d
e
d
fo
r
e
a
c
h
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
ro
o
m
to
b
e
lic
e
n
c
e
d
)

1
3
1
0
.0
0

1
,3
1
0
.0
0

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
P
re
m
is
e
s
L
ic
e
n
c
e
F
e
e
(T
h
re
e
y
e
a
r)
R
e
n
e
w
a
l
(m
in
im
u
m
fe
e
fo
r
2

ro
o
m
s
o
n
ly
-
£
1
0
0
to
b
e
a
d
d
e
d
fo
r
e
a
c
h
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
ro
o
m
to
b
e
lic
e
n
c
e
d
)

9
6
0
.0
0

9
6
0
.0
0

C
iv
il
F
u
n
e
ra
ls

2
0
0
.0
0

2
0
0
.0
0

E
x
p
re
s
s
C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
s
(i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
s
ta
tu
to
ry
fe
e
)

2
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
0

P
o
s
ta
g
e
fo
r
c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
s

1
.0
0

1
.0
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
6
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 54



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
C
o
p
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

£
£

F
e
e
s
s
e
t
b
y
G
e
n
e
ra
l
R
e
g
is
te
r
O
ff
ic
e
(p
e
r
it
e
m
)

N
o
ti
c
e
o
f
M
a
rr
ia
g
e

3
3
.5
0

3
3
.5
0

N
o
ti
c
e
o
f
C
iv
il
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

3
3
.5
0

3
3
.5
0

R
e
g
is
te
r
O
ff
ic
e
M
a
rr
ia
g
e

4
0
.0
0

4
0
.0
0

R
e
g
is
te
r
O
ff
ic
e
C
iv
il
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

4
0
.0
0

4
0
.0
0

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
o
f
b
ir
th
,
d
e
a
th
o
r
m
a
rr
ia
g
e
-
fo
rm
c
lo
s
e
d
re
g
is
te
r

9
.0
0

9
.0
0

S
h
o
rt
b
ir
th
c
e
rt
fr
o
m
c
lo
s
e
d
re
g
is
te
r

9
.0
0

9
.0
0

S
h
o
rt
b
ir
th
c
e
rt
is
s
u
e
d
a
t
ti
m
e
o
f
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

F
re
e

F
re
e

A
n
y
o
th
e
r
s
h
o
rt
b
ir
th
c
e
rt
is
s
u
e
d
a
t
ti
m
e
o
f
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

3
.5
0

3
.5
0

A
n
y
o
th
e
r
s
h
o
rt
b
ir
th
c
e
rt
is
s
u
e
d
a
ft
e
r
th
e
ti
m
e
o
f
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

7
.0
0

7
.0
0

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
o
f
b
ir
th
,
d
e
a
th
o
r
m
a
rr
ia
g
e
-
a
t
th
e
ti
m
e
o
f
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

3
.5
0

3
.5
0

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
o
f
b
ir
th
,
d
e
a
th
o
r
m
a
rr
ia
g
e
-
a
ft
e
r
th
e
ti
m
e
o
f
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

7
.0
0

7
.0
0

C
iv
il
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
-
c
e
rt
if
ie
d
c
o
p
y
o
r
e
x
tr
a
c
t
is
s
u
e
d
a
t
th
e
ti
m
e
o
f
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

3
.5
0

3
.5
0

C
iv
il
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
-
c
e
rt
if
ie
d
c
o
p
y
o
r
e
x
tr
a
c
t
is
s
u
e
d
a
ft
e
r
th
e
ti
m
e
o
f
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

9
.0
0

9
.0
0

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
to
ta
k
e
a
n
o
ti
c
e
-
h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
o
r
d
e
ta
in
e
d
(e
.g
.
p
ri
s
o
n
)

4
9
.0
0

4
9
.0
0

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
o
f
S
R
to
c
o
n
d
u
c
t
m
a
rr
ia
g
e
o
r
C
P
-
h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
o
r
d
e
ta
in
e
d

8
5
.0
0

8
5
.0
0

R
e
g
is
te
r
m
a
rr
ia
g
e
a
t
C
h
u
rc
h
,
h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
o
r
d
e
ta
in
e
d
-
R
e
g
is
tr
a
r'
s
fe
e

8
0
.0
0

8
0
.0
0

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
o
f
w
o
rs
h
ip
(t
o
lic
e
n
c
e
a
b
u
ild
in
g
fo
r
w
o
rs
h
ip
)

2
8
.0
0

2
8
.0
0

L
ic
e
n
c
e
a
re
lig
io
u
s
b
u
ild
in
g
fo
r
m
a
rr
ia
g
e

1
2
0
.0
0

1
2
0
.0
0

C
o
ro
n
e
rs

S
u
p
p
ly
o
f
tr
a
n
s
c
ri
p
t
o
f
in
q
u
e
s
t
o
n
C
D

3
2
.2
0

3
2
.2
0

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
o
p
ie
s

1
0
.8
0

1
0
.8
0

S
ta
tu
to
ry
c
h
a
rg
e
fo
r
p
a
p
e
r
c
o
p
ie
s
(p
e
r
s
h
e
e
t)

1
.1
0

1
.1
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
7
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 55



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
C
o
p
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

£
£

E
le
c
ti
o
n
s

F
o
r
e
a
c
h
re
g
is
te
r
p
e
r
1
0
0
0
n
a
m
e
s
o
r
p
a
rt
th
e
re
o
f

1
.5
0

1
.5
0

L
o
c
a
l
L
a
n
d
C
h
a
rg
e
s

F
u
ll
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
S
e
a
rc
h
(L
L
C
1
a
n
d
C
o
n
2
9
)

1
3
3
.0
0

1
3
3
.0
0

F
u
ll
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
S
e
a
rc
h
(L
L
C
1
a
n
d
C
o
n
2
9
)

2
0
1
.0
0

2
0
1
.0
0

L
L
C
1
C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
o
f
S
e
a
rc
h

2
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
0

C
o
n
2
9
L
o
c
a
l
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
(R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l)

1
1
3
.0
0

1
1
3
.0
0

C
o
n
2
9
L
o
c
a
l
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
(C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l)

1
8
1
.0
0

1
8
1
.0
0

P
a
rt
II
o
p
ti
o
n
a
l

1
5
.0
0

1
5
.0
0

S
o
lic
it
o
rs
o
w
n
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

2
5
.0
0

2
5
.0
0

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
p
a
rc
e
l
o
f
la
n
d

1
3
.5
0

1
3
.5
0

P
e
rs
o
n
a
l
S
e
a
rc
h

F
re
e
s
in
c
e
A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
1
0

F
re
e

C
o
p
y
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts

2
.1
5

2
.2
0

H
u
m
a
n
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s

C
ri
m
in
a
l
R
e
c
o
rd
s
B
u
re
a
u
(C
R
B
)
C
h
e
c
k
s

C
o
s
t
P
e
r
C
R
B
c
h
e
c
k

S
ta
n
d
a
rd

3
6
.0
0

2
6
.0
0

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d

4
4
.0
0

A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
C
h
a
rg
e

1
9
.3
0

2
0
.0
0

L
o
c
a
l
T
a
x
a
ti
o
n

C
o
s
t
o
f
C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
c
h
a
rg
e
o
n
C
o
u
rt
C
o
s
ts

C
o
u
n
c
il
T
a
x

6
7
.6
0

8
3
.0
0

N
N
D
R

8
9
.0
0

8
3
.0
0

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
8
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 56



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

2
0
1
1
/1
2
R
a
te

2
0
1
2
/1
3
R
a
te

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
:
C
o
p
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

£
£

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

A
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
in
N
e
w
s
C
e
n
tr
a
l

F
u
ll
p
a
g
e

1
7
9
8
.8
0

1
,7
9
8
.8
0

H
a
lf
p
a
g
e

1
1
9
8
.8
0

1
,1
9
8
.8
0

Q
u
a
rt
e
r
p
a
g
e

5
9
8
.8
0

5
9
8
.8
0

E
ig
h
th
o
f
p
a
g
e

3
2
2
.8
0

3
2
2
.8
0

L
e
g
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

S
3
8

1
2
1
.0
0
p
e
r
h
o
u
r,
m
in
im
u
m

c
h
a
rg
e
9
7
5
.0
0

1
5
2
.4
0
p
e
r
h
o
u
r,
m
in
im
u
m
c
h
a
rg
e
1
0
0
0
.0
0

S
2
7
8

1
2
1
.0
0
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

1
9
8
.0
0
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

P
la
n
n
in
g
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts

1
5
8
.0
0

1
9
8
.0
0
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

U
n
ila
te
ra
l
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

M
in
im
u
m
c
h
a
rg
e
3
1
0
.0
0

F
ix
e
d
F
e
e
4
0
0
.0
0

N
o
ti
c
e
o
f
R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

M
in
im
u
m
c
h
a
rg
e
5
0
.0
0

F
ix
e
d
F
e
e
7
5
.0
0

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
to
P
o
s
tp
o
n
e
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

M
in
im
u
m
c
h
a
rg
e
5
0
.0
0

F
ix
e
d
F
e
e
7
5
.0
0

D
e
e
d
o
f
C
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

M
in
im
u
m
c
h
a
rg
e
5
0
.0
0

F
ix
e
d
F
e
e
7
5
.0
0

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
to
S
u
b
-l
e
t
(V
A
T
n
/a
)

M
in
im
u
m
c
h
a
rg
e
5
0
.0
0

F
ix
e
d
F
e
e
7
5
.0
0

D
e
fe
rr
e
d
P
a
y
m
e
n
t
C
h
a
tg
e

T
B
A

2
0
0
.0
0

A
N
O
P
a
y
in
g

1
2
1
.0
0

1
5
2
.4
0
p
e
r
h
o
u
r

L
e
a
s
h
o
ld
e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s

1
5
2
.4
0
p
e
r
h
o
u
r,
m
in
im
u
m
c
h
a
rg
e
1
5
2
.4
0

P
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
(e
x
te
rn
a
l
s
o
lic
it
o
rs
a
n
d
o
th
e
r
p
a
rt
ie
s
)

0
.3
0
p
e
r
s
h
e
e
t
p
lu
s
£
5
a
d
m
in

1
1
1
1
2
9
2
0
1
2
1
3
F
e
e
s
C
h
a
rg
e
s
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
m
a
s
te
r
v
5

P
a
g
e
3
9
o
f
3
9

Agenda Item 11
Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

 

 
Meeting: Customer & Central Services Overview and Scrutiny Meeting  

Date: 19th December 2011 

Subject: Revenue Budget Management Report Quarter ended 30th 
September 2011 for Corporate Resources 

Report of: Executive Member for Corporate Resources 

Summary: The report sets out the Revenue financial position to the end of 
September 2011 and the latest forecast position. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: John Unsworth- Assistant Chief Executive Resources 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

Sound financial management contributes to the delivery of the Council’s value for 
money, enabling the Council to successfully deliver its priorities 
 
Financial: 

The financial implications are set out in the report 
 
Legal: 

None 
 
Risk Management: 

None 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

None 
 
Community Safety: 

None 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 59



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

Sustainability: 

None 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. that the Committee 
 

 (a) Notes and considers the report 
 

 

 

1. Introduction and Key Highlights (Appendices A1-A3) 

1.1. The full year forecast position, before contingency and reserves, 
following planned use of earmarked reserves identifies pressures of 
£357k. 

The key reasons for the forecast variance are due to: 

Chief Executive (-£287k) – forecast under spend due to savings 
against AD Strategy & Performance and the Director of Customer & 
Shared Services largely due to the organisational restructure which has 
resulted in three funded posts being deleted part way through the 
financial year.   

ACE People & Organisation (-£241k) 

ACE People & Organisation (+£177k) pressure due to ACE People & 
Organisation interim costs, following restructure, the savings of which 
are included within Chief Executive. 

Customer Services (-£161k) – forecast under spend as a result of 
vacant posts and the deletion of the Head of Service post. 

People (+£82k) – pressures in Schools HR and Payroll provision due to 
a reduction in the number of schools buying back, and one off costs 
resulting from recovery work. 

Legal & Democratic (-£284k) – pressure due to additional lawyers 
having to be recruited as a result of increases in child protection cases; 
staff savings in Committee Services and the release of the Elections 
earmarked reserve.  

ACE Resources (+£798k) 

ACE Resources (+£149k) pressure due to ACE Resources interim 
costs, following restructure, the savings of which are included within 
Chief Executive. 

E Procurement & Payments (+£106k) pressure due to interim Head of 
Service cost and unachievable rebate income. 

Agenda Item 12
Page 60



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

Finance (+£274k) - pressures in Customer Accounts due to an 
increase in the number of benefit claimants, together with an 
adjustment to previous years’ benefit subsidy, partly offset by an 
additional subsidy receipt.  There is a pressure within Finance due to 
the costs of interim staffing. 

Assets (+£312k) – pressures surrounding rent income achievement on 
various properties, budget shortfalls for NNDR costs, shortfall against 
capitalised salaries and costs for interim cover of AD post. 

Corporate Costs (+£87k) 

Pressures around non achievement of some cross cutting efficiencies, 
partly offset by a forecast reduction in debt management and 
premature retirement costs. 

Contingency & Reserves (+£316k) 

A breakdown of Contingency and Reserves is included within Appendix 
A2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 61



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

2. Summary Table A: Directorate Overall position 

Servicer Area Approved 
Budget 

 

Provisional 
Outturn 
Spend for 
Year 

 

 

Full Year 
Forecast 
Variance (-
under)/ 

overspend 

Full Year Forecast 
Variance after 
transfers to/from 

reserves 
(-under)/ overspend 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

TOTAL: Chief 
Executive 

1,061 986                 (74) (287) 

ACE People & 
Organisation: 

    

Communications 788 761 (28) (38) 

Customer Services 2,069 1,908 (161) (161) 

Policy & Strategy 543 528 (15) (17) 

Customer & 
Community  Insight 

140 140 (1) (1) 

People 2,268 2,350 82 82 

Legal & Democratic 
Services 

2,399 2,295 (104) (284) 

TOTAL: ACE 
People & 
Organisation 

8,208 8,159 (49) (241) 

ACE Resources:     

Programme and 
Performance  

1,200 1,254 54 (42) 

E Procurement & 
Payments 

421 550 130 (106) 

Finance 4,319 4,641 322 274 

ICT  6,545 6,545 0 0 

Assets 4,325 4,636 312 312 

TOTAL: ACE 
Resources 

16,809 

 

17,776 967 798 

Corporate Costs 11,974 12,061 87 87 

Contingency & 
Reserves 

792 1,338 546 316 

TOTAL: 
CORPORATE 
SERVICES 

38,843 40,320 1,477 673 

Agenda Item 12
Page 62



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

 

3. Table B – Subjective Analysis – Corporate Services Total 

 

Expenditure type Forecast 
(Before use 

of 
Reserves) 
£000 

Staffing Costs 26,710 

Premises and 
Transport 

3,434 

Supplies and 
Services 

13,976 

Third Party 
Payments 

917 

Other 84,909 

Total Expenditure 129,946 

Income 84,100 

Grants 5,526 

Total Income 89,626 

Net Expenditure 40,320 

 

 

Narrative- Chief Executive (note 4) 

 

4. Chief Executive 

4.1. Forecasting an under spend of £287k, key variances being: 

 

The deletion of three posts within AD Strategy and Performance and the 
Director of Customer and Shared Services following the organisational 
restructure resulting in a forecast under spend.   

 

 

Narrative- ACE People and Organisations (notes 5 to 10) 

 

5. Communications 

5.1 Forecasting an under spend of £38k, key variances being: 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 63



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

A £20k forecast under spend against the Consultation budget due to the 
Residents Survey and Budget Survey being combined as one survey and a 
decision to formulate the staff survey in house. 

A £21k forecast under spend against the staffing budget primarily resulting 
from a decision not to fill an External Communications post before the end of 
the financial year and further under spends against the car mileage and car 
allowance budgets. 

There is a £3k pressure against the News Central budget due to an 
anticipated £10k shortfall in advertising income which has largely been 
mitigated by a reduction in forecast expenditure.  

   

6.   Customer Services 

6.1  Forecast under spend of £161k, key variances being: 

Holding staff vacancies, under spend of £144k 

Deletion of Head of Service post, under spend of £31k 

 

7.  Policy and Strategy 

    7.1  Forecast under spend of £17k, key variances being: 

A £10k under spend against the Professional Services budget resulting from a 
decision not to implement the new Customer Relation Management System 
until next financial year. 

A £7k under spend against the staffing budget primarily due to a Research 
Officer post being vacant at the start of the year and then filled part way 
through the financial year.   

    

8.  Customer Insight and Risk 

       8.1  Forecasting a £1k under spend.    

 

9.  People 

9.1 The quarterly movement of £82k, mainly due to Schools HR and 
payroll provision buyback income pressures; fewer schools buying 
back services following price increase.  

 

10.  Legal & Democratic 

10.1  Forecast movement of a under spend of £284k over the last quarter                      
is due to: 

Overachievement of efficiency target in Committee Services 
restructure, under spending by £108k 

Need to recruit two additional lawyers to meet demand in Children’s 
Services, pressure of £77k 

Agenda Item 12
Page 64



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

A review of Election Services has resulted in the release of £180k 
reserve. 

Additional service charges and property costs in Coroners Services, 
pressure of £32k 

 

Narrative - ACE Resources (notes 11 to 16) 

 

11.  Programme and Performance Operations 

11.1 Operational- Forecasting an under spend of £33k, key variances 
being:  

Staff costs for notice period working, not included in original budget, 
resulting in a pressure of £41k. 

Programme Manager post being held vacant, forecast under spend of 
£57k. 

The postponement of the purchase of a new Performance 
Management System resulting in reduction of £17k 

 

11.2 Non Operational- including Invest To Save, Pan Public Working 
and Corporate Subscriptions, forecasting an under spend of £10k due 
to the termination of the LGIU subscription. 

 

12.  E Procurement and Payments 

12.1 Forecast over spend of £106k, largely due to the interim Head of 
Service cost and unachievable rebate income. 

 

13.  Finance 

       13.1 Forecast pressure of £274k, key variances being: 

Pressure against Chief Finance Officer post due to interim cover, of 
£42k. 

Forecast additional irrecoverable benefit subsidy due to increased 
number of benefit claims, creating a  pressure of £158k. 

Repayment of 2008/09 SBDC Housing benefit subsidy claim, following 
audit- pressure of £104k. 

Additional subsidy forecast as a result of fewer local authority errors, 
forecast benefit of £133k. 

Salary protection and interim costs in Financial Management partly 
creating a pressure of £28k. 

Interim costs in Financial Strategy partly offset by savings in vacant 
posts held, resulting in a pressure of £4k. 

Agenda Item 12
Page 65



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

Additional professional service costs and Bank charges in Income and 
Sundry Debt, resulting in a pressure of £61k. 

Net increase in Insurance Premiums £71k. 

Staff cost savings within Audit, resulting in an under spend of £43k. 

  13.2 Year to date variance against budget is largely due a timing 
difference between the payment of benefits and receipt of the subsidy. 

 

14.ICT 

      14.1 Overall position of ICT is forecast to budget. 

 

15.Assets 

      15.1 There is a forecast pressure of £312k, with a quarterly increase of 
£63k, the key variances being: 

Pressure against Chief Finance Officer post due to interim cover, of 
£81k. 

Pressures around rental income achievement, £262k. 

Pressures around property costs, £142k . 

Underachievement against capitalised salaries budget £170k 

Savings against Development Disposals budget, £117k 

Staff costs savings, partly as a result of changes to print room service, 
£230k 

 

16. Corporate Costs and Contingency & Reserves 

      16.1 Corporate Costs has a forecast pressure of £87k, and                  
Contingency is forecast to be over spent by £316k, the key variances 
being: 

Non achievement of some cross cutting efficiencies, pressure of £415k. 

Forecast reduction in Premature Retirement costs of £200k. 

Forecast reduction in Debt management costs £132k. 

16.2 The year to date variance against budget is due to non 
achievement of some of the cross cutting efficiencies and a difference 
between the budget profile and actual achievement of the Terms and 
Conditions efficiency. 

 

17. Reserves position (Appendix B) 

      17.1 The balance brought forward for Earmarked Reserves is £5.671m.  
This includes £2.117m Redundancy /Restructure Reserve, £3.059m 
Insurance Reserve £0.180m Elections Fund and £0.315m of Corporate 

Agenda Item 12
Page 66



 

$fyc23vhm.doc 

Services reserves.  To date, the forecast includes a planned £804k use of 
Reserves. 

 

18. Debt Management (Appendix C) 

     18.1 The level of debt less than 30 days old is largely as a result of 
school buy back invoices being raised. A summary of debt ageing is 
appended. 

 

 

 

Appendices: 

Appendix A1 Council Summary  

Appendix A2 Directorate Position analysed by service 

Appendix A3 Movement between Current and Previous Forecast 
Position 

Appendix B Earmarked Reserves 

Appendix C Debt Analysis 

Agenda Item 12
Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
1

M
o
n
th
:
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
1

D
ir
e
c
to
r

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu
a
l

U
s
e
o
f

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
u
s
e

o
f
E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
a
ft
e
r

u
s
e
o
f

e
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s
.

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
H
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
H
o
u
s
in
g

2
5
,8
7
3

2
6
,3
1
8

-4
0
7

3
9

5
6
,0
7
2

5
8
,0
2
0

1
,9
4
9

-1
,5
6
7

3
8
2

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
7
,0
3
8

1
6
,4
4
7

-2
0
0

-7
9
1

3
5
,1
7
6

3
5
,2
1
0

3
4

-2
0
0

-1
6
6

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

2
5
,5
7
1

2
3
,7
0
9

-2
4
4

-2
,1
0
6

5
1
,1
7
8

5
0
,8
8
1

-2
9
7

-5
0
5

-8
0
2

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
3
,4
4
0

1
3
,7
5
3

-5
1
7

-2
0
4

2
6
,0
7
7

2
6
,9
2
2

8
4
5

-5
7
4

2
7
1

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
a
n
d
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

-1
,5
3
9

-1
,6
5
9

0
-1
2
0

7
9
2

1
,3
3
8

5
4
6

-2
3
0

3
1
6

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
C
o
s
ts

2
,6
3
4

3
,3
8
4

0
7
5
0

1
1
,9
7
4

1
2
,0
6
1

8
7

0
8
7

T
o
ta
l

8
3
,0
1
7

8
1
,9
5
2

-1
,3
6
8

-2
,4
3
2

1
8
1
,2
6
9

1
8
4
,4
3
2

3
,1
6
3

-3
,0
7
6

8
6

Y
e
a
r
to
d
a
te

F
u
ll
Y
e
a
r

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 69



D
ir
e
c
to
r

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu
a
l

T
rf
s
to

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

A
c
tu
a
ls

a
ft
e
r

tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
to

re
s
e
rv
e
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
u
s
e

o
f
E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

a
ft
e
r
u
s
e
o
f

e
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s
.

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
%

o
f
B
u
d
g
e
t

R
A
G

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
H
IE
F
E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E

C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

1
4
8

1
4
4

1
4
4

-4
2
9
6

2
9
6

-1
-1

0
%

g
re
e
n

D
ir
e
c
to
r
o
f
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
n
d
S
h
a
re
d

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
8
7

2
2
0

-7
9

1
4
1

-4
6

3
7
5

2
4
8

-1
2
7

-7
9

-2
0
6

-5
5
%

a
m
b
e
r

A
D
S
tr
a
te
g
y
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

7
5

1
2
9

-5
7

7
2

-3
1
4
9

1
2
9

-2
0

-5
7

-7
7

-5
2
%

a
m
b
e
r

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
a
n
d
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
s
ig
h
t

4
2
3

4
4
0

-3
7

4
0
3

-2
0

6
1
3

6
8
6

7
4

-7
7

-4
-1
%

g
re
e
n

D
ir
e
c
to
r
o
f
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

-1
8
7

6
2

6
2

2
4
9

-3
7
3

-3
7
3

0
0

0
%

g
re
e
n

T
O
T
A
L
-
C
H
IE
F
E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E

6
4
7

9
9
5

-1
7
2

8
2
3

1
7
6

1
,0
6
0

9
8
6

-7
4

-2
1
3

-2
8
7

-2
7
%

a
m
b
e
r

A
C
E
P
E
O
P
L
E
A
N
D
O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N

A
C
E
P
e
o
p
le

0
2
7

0
2
7

2
7

0
1
7
7

1
7
7

0
1
7
7

0
%

re
d

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
A
C
E
P
e
o
p
le

0
2
7

0
2
7

2
7

0
1
7
7

1
7
7

0
1
7
7

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

C
h
ie
f
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
O
ff
ic
e
r

7
9

7
0

7
0

-1
0

1
2
3

1
1
6

-7
-7

-6
%

g
re
e
n

N
e
w
s
C
e
n
tr
a
l
M
a
g
a
z
in
e

1
8

1
9

1
9

2
4
0

4
2

2
2

6
%

a
m
b
e
r

In
te
rn
a
l
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

8
8

1
0
0

-1
0

8
9

1
1
8
1

1
8
4

3
-1
0

-7
-4
%

g
re
e
n

E
x
te
rn
a
l
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

1
1
8

1
2
6

1
2
6

8
2
3
1

2
2
4

-6
-6

-3
%

g
re
e
n

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

1
0
3

8
6

8
6

-1
6

2
1
4

1
9
3

-2
1

-2
1

-1
0
%

g
re
e
n

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

4
0
5

4
0
1

-1
0

3
9
0

-1
5

7
8
8

7
6
1

-2
8

-1
0

-3
8

-5
%

g
re
e
n

C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
to
D
a
te

Y
e
a
r

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
2

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 70



D
ir
e
c
to
r

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu
a
l

T
rf
s
to

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

A
c
tu
a
ls

a
ft
e
r

tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
to

re
s
e
rv
e
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
u
s
e

o
f
E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

a
ft
e
r
u
s
e
o
f

e
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s
.

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
%

o
f
B
u
d
g
e
t

R
A
G

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
to
D
a
te

Y
e
a
r

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
2

C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
,1
0
5

1
,0
2
0

1
,0
2
0

-8
5

2
,0
6
9

1
,9
0
8

-1
6
1

-1
6
1

-8
%

g
re
e
n

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
,1
0
5

1
,0
2
0

0
1
,0
2
0

-8
5

2
,0
6
9

1
,9
0
8

-1
6
1

0
-1
6
1

-8
%

g
re
e
n

P
o
li
c
y
a
n
d
S
tr
a
te
g
y

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
o
lic
y

2
6
7

2
4
4

-1
2
4
2

-2
5

5
4
3

5
2
8

-1
5

-1
-1
7

-3
%

g
re
e
n

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
P
o
li
c
y
a
n
d
S
tr
a
te
g
y

2
6
7

2
4
4

-1
2
4
2

-2
5

5
4
3

5
2
8

-1
5

-1
-1
7

-3
%

g
re
e
n

C
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
n
d
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
s
ig
h
t

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
s
ig
h
t
a
n
d
R
is
k

7
0

6
5

6
5

-6
1
4
0

1
4
0

-1
-1

0
%

g
re
e
n

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
n
d
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

In
s
ig
h
t

7
0

6
5

0
6
5

-6
1
4
0

1
4
0

-1
0

-1
0
%

g
re
e
n

P
e
o
p
le

H
e
a
d
o
f
H
R
S
tr
a
te
g
y

1
,2
2
5

1
,2
3
6

1
,2
3
6

1
1

2
,3
8
2

2
,4
3
9

5
7

5
7

2
%

a
m
b
e
r

H
e
a
d
o
f
H
R
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

-2
0
5

-1
0
8

-1
0
8

9
7

-4
1
0

-3
7
6

3
4

3
4

-8
%

g
re
e
n

H
e
a
d
o
f
R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t
&
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

1
4
8

-7
6

-7
6

-2
2
4

2
9
6

2
8
7

-8
-8

-3
%

g
re
e
n

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
P
e
o
p
le

1
,1
6
8

1
,0
5
1

0
1
,0
5
1

-1
1
7

2
,2
6
8

2
,3
5
0

8
2

0
8
2

4
%

a
m
b
e
r

L
e
g
a
l
a
n
d
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

H
e
a
d
o
f
L
e
g
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

6
2
6

5
4
6

5
4
6

-8
0

1
,2
0
4

1
,2
8
2

7
7

7
7

6
%

a
m
b
e
r

H
e
a
d
o
f
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

2
3
8

2
4
2

-1
8
0

6
2

-1
7
6

4
7
7

3
6
5

-1
1
2

-1
8
0

-2
9
2

-6
1
%

a
m
b
e
r

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
7
9

1
2
2

1
2
2

-5
7

3
5
9

2
5
0

-1
0
8

-1
0
8

-3
0
%

a
m
b
e
r

R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
C
o
ro
n
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e

8
0

8
5

8
5

6
3
5
9

3
9
9

3
9

3
9

1
1
%

re
d

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
L
e
g
a
l
a
n
d
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
,1
2
3

9
9
5

-1
8
0

8
1
5

-3
0
8

2
,3
9
9

2
,2
9
5

-1
0
4

-1
8
0

-2
8
4

-1
2
%

a
m
b
e
r

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 71



D
ir
e
c
to
r

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu
a
l

T
rf
s
to

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

A
c
tu
a
ls

a
ft
e
r

tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
to

re
s
e
rv
e
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
u
s
e

o
f
E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

a
ft
e
r
u
s
e
o
f

e
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s
.

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
%

o
f
B
u
d
g
e
t

R
A
G

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
to
D
a
te

Y
e
a
r

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
2

T
O
T
A
L
-
A
C
E
P
E
O
P
L
E
&
O
R
G

4
,1
3
9

3
,8
0
3

-1
9
2

3
,6
1
1

-5
2
8

8
,2
0
8

8
,1
5
9

-4
9

-1
9
2

-2
4
1

-3
%

g
re
e
n

A
C
E
R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S

A
C
E
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

0
3
3

3
3

3
3

0
1
4
9

1
4
9

1
4
9

0
%

re
d

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
A
C
E
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

0
3
3

0
3
3

3
3

0
1
4
9

1
4
9

0
1
4
9

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
7
4

3
0
9

-2
8

2
8
1

8
5
4
7

5
4
3

-5
-2
8

-3
3

-6
%

g
re
e
n

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
N
o
n
-

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

3
5
4

2
6
4

-6
9

1
9
5

-1
6
0

6
5
2

7
1
2

5
9

-6
9

-1
0

-1
%

g
re
e
n

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
o
f
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

6
2
8

5
7
3

-9
7

4
7
6

-1
5
2

1
,2
0
0

1
,2
5
4

5
4

-9
7

-4
2

-7
%

g
re
e
n

E
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
&
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

E
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
&
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

2
2
3

2
4
3

-2
4

2
1
9

-4
4
2
1

5
5
0

1
3
0

-2
4

1
0
6

2
5
%

re
d

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
E
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
&
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

2
2
3

2
4
3

-2
4

2
1
9

-4
4
2
1

5
5
0

1
3
0

-2
4

1
0
6

2
5
%

re
d

F
in
a
n
c
e

H
e
a
d
o
f
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
&
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

5
1
6

4
6
0

4
6
0

-5
6

1
,0
3
2

1
,1
5
3

1
2
1

1
2
1

1
2
%

re
d

C
h
ie
f
F
in
a
n
c
e
O
ff
ic
e
r

1
2
5

1
7
4

1
7
4

4
9

6
7

1
0
9

4
2

4
2

6
2
%

re
d

H
e
a
d
O
f
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
S
tr
a
te
g
y

4
6
6

7
9
0

-1
5

7
7
5

3
0
8

1
,2
0
9

1
,3
6
8

1
5
9

-3
1

1
2
8

1
1
%

re
d

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

5
7
5

5
8
0

-1
7

5
6
3

-1
2

1
,1
5
1

1
,1
9
6

4
5

-1
7

2
8

2
%

a
m
b
e
r

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 72



D
ir
e
c
to
r

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu
a
l

T
rf
s
to

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

A
c
tu
a
ls

a
ft
e
r

tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
to

re
s
e
rv
e
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
u
s
e

o
f
E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

a
ft
e
r
u
s
e
o
f

e
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s
.

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
%

o
f
B
u
d
g
e
t

R
A
G

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
to
D
a
te

Y
e
a
r

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
2

H
e
a
d
o
f
A
u
d
it

4
4
1

4
0
0

4
0
0

-4
2

8
6
0

8
1
5

-4
6

-4
6

-5
%

g
re
e
n

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
F
in
a
n
c
e

2
,1
2
4

2
,4
0
4

-3
2

2
,3
7
2

2
4
8

4
,3
1
9

4
,6
4
1

3
2
2

-4
8

2
7
4

8
2
%

re
d

IC
T

H
e
a
d
o
f
S
y
s
te
m
s
(O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
)

H
e
a
d
o
f
S
y
s
te
m
s
(O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
)

1
,6
9
4

1
,6
2
2

1
,6
2
2

-7
2

3
,2
4
8

3
,2
3
7

-1
1

-1
1

0
%

g
re
e
n

C
h
ie
f
IT
O
ff
ic
e
r

6
8

6
8

6
8

0
1
3
5

1
3
6

1
1

1
%

a
m
b
e
r

H
e
a
d
o
f
S
y
s
te
m
s
(S
tr
a
te
g
y
&
A
s

1
,6
7
0

1
,6
8
3

1
,6
8
3

1
3

3
,1
6
2

3
,1
7
2

1
0

1
0

0
%

g
re
e
n

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
IC
T

3
,4
3
1

3
,3
7
3

0
3
,3
7
3

-5
8

6
,5
4
5

6
,5
4
5

-0
0

-0
1
%

a
m
b
e
r

A
s
s
e
ts

A
s
s
e
ts

6
9

8
3

8
3

1
5

1
3
7

3
3
7

1
9
9

1
9
9

1
4
5
%

re
d

C
h
ie
f
A
s
s
e
ts
O
ff
ic
e
r

1
0
0

9
5

9
5

-6
2
7

1
0
9

8
1

8
1

3
0
1
%

re
d

H
e
a
d
o
f
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
,
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

2
,0
8
0

2
,1
5
2

2
,1
5
2

7
2

4
,1
6
0

4
,1
9
1

3
1

3
1

1
%

a
m
b
e
r

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
A
s
s
e
ts

2
,2
4
9

2
,3
3
0

0
2
,3
3
0

8
1

4
,3
2
5

4
,6
3
6

3
1
2

0
3
1
2

4
4
7
%

re
d

T
O
T
A
L
-
A
C
E
R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S

8
,6
5
5

8
,9
5
6

-1
5
3

8
,8
0
3

1
4
8

1
6
,8
0
9

1
7
,7
7
6

9
6
7

-1
6
9

7
9
8

5
%

a
m
b
e
r

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
C
o
s
ts

D
e
b
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

2
,7
6
2

2
,2
9
6

2
,2
9
6

-4
6
6

1
0
,6
1
7

1
0
,4
8
5

-1
3
2

-1
3
2

-1
%

g
re
e
n

M
e
m
b
e
rs
'c
o
s
ts

6
6
5

5
9
2

5
9
2

-7
3

1
,3
3
0

1
,3
3
4

4
4

0
%

g
re
e
n

P
re
m
a
tu
re
R
e
ti
re
m
e
n
t
C
o
s
ts

6
1
8

8
7
2

8
7
2

2
5
4

2
,9
5
4

2
,7
5
4

-2
0
0

-2
0
0

-7
%

g
re
e
n

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 73



D
ir
e
c
to
r

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu
a
l

T
rf
s
to

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

A
c
tu
a
ls

a
ft
e
r

tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
to

re
s
e
rv
e
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
u
s
e

o
f
E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

a
ft
e
r
u
s
e
o
f

e
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

re
s
e
rv
e
s
.

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
%

o
f
B
u
d
g
e
t

R
A
G

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
to
D
a
te

Y
e
a
r

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
2

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
H
R
A
R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

0
0

0
0

-1
0
4

-1
0
4

0
0

0
%

g
re
e
n

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s

-1
,4
1
2

-3
7
7

-3
7
7

1
,0
3
5

-2
,8
2
3

-2
,4
0
8

4
1
5

4
1
5

-1
5
%

a
m
b
e
r

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
C
o
s
ts

2
,6
3
4

3
,3
8
4

0
3
,3
8
4

7
5
0

1
1
,9
7
4

1
2
,0
6
1

8
7

0
8
7

-2
2
%

a
m
b
e
r

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
&
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
*

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

-1
,5
3
9

-1
,6
5
9

-1
,6
5
9

-1
2
0

7
9
2

1
,3
3
8

5
4
6

-2
3
0

3
1
6

4
0
%

re
d

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
&
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

-1
,5
3
9

-1
,6
5
9

0
-1
,6
5
9

-1
2
0

7
9
2

1
,3
3
8

5
4
6

-2
3
0

3
1
6

4
0
%

re
d

T
o
ta
l

1
4
,5
3
6

1
5
,4
7
9

-5
1
7

1
4
,9
6
2

4
2
6

3
8
,8
4
3

4
0
,3
1
9

1
,4
7
6

-8
0
4

6
7
3

2
%

a
m
b
e
r

K
e
y
:

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
fa
v
o
u
ra
b
le
u
p
to
1
0
%

g
re
e
n

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
fa
v
o
u
ra
b
le
g
re
a
te
r
th
a
n
1
0
%

a
m
b
e
r

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
a
d
v
e
rs
e
u
p
to
1
0
%

a
m
b
e
r

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
a
d
v
e
rs
e
g
re
a
te
r
th
a
n
1
0
%

re
d

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
a
n
d
re
s
e
rv
e
s
*

B
u
d
g
e
t

F
o
re
c
a
s
t

V
a
r

N
e
w
H
o
m
e
s
B
o
n
u
s

-1
,8
0
3

-1
,1
2
1

6
8
2

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
to
G
e
n
e
ra
l
F
u
n
d

1
,4
0
0

1
,4
0
0

0

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
to
R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
re
s
e
rv
e

7
5
0

7
5
0

0

In
fl
a
ti
o
n
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

1
4
5

8
0
0

6
5
5

G
e
n
e
ra
l
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

0
8
0
0

8
0
0

A
d
u
lt
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
L
e
a
rn
in
g
G
ra
n
t

0
-1
,2
9
1

-1
,2
9
1

R
e
le
a
s
e
o
f
J
T
U
re
s
e
rv
e

0
-2
3
0

-2
3
0

S
E
P
T
tr
a
n
s
fe
r
fr
o
m
A
S
C

3
0
0

0
-3
0
0

7
9
2

1
,1
0
8

3
1
6

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 74



M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
b
e
tw
e
e
n
S
e
p
fo
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
a
n
d
J
u
n
fo
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
3

D
ir
e
c
to
r

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
S
e
p

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
J
u
n

C
h
a
n
g
e
in

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

C
O
M
M
E
N
T
A
R
Y

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

-1
0

-1

D
ir
e
c
to
r
o
f
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
n
d
S
h
a
re
d
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

-2
0
6

-8
-1
9
8
A
C
E
c
o
s
ts
n
o
w
re
p
o
rt
e
d
s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly

A
D
S
tr
a
te
g
y
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

-7
7

-2
-7
5

M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
d
u
e
to
a
d
e
c
is
io
n
ta
k
e
n
a
ft
e
r
th
e
J
u
n
e
re
p
o
rt
to
m
a
k
e
th
e
A
D

S
tr
a
te
g
y
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
p
o
s
t
a
n
d
P
A
p
o
s
t
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
t.

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
a
n
d
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
s
ig
h
t

-4
-4

0

D
ir
e
c
to
r
o
f
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

0
0

0

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

-2
8
7

-1
4

-2
7
3

A
C
E
P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

A
C
E
P
e
o
p
le
&
O
rg

1
7
7

0
1
7
7
A
C
E
c
o
s
ts
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

C
h
ie
f
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
O
ff
ic
e
r

-7
7

-1
4

N
e
w
s
C
e
n
tr
a
l
M
a
g
a
z
in
e

2
-3
0

3
2

In
te
rn
a
l
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

-7
1
4

-2
1

E
x
te
rn
a
l
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

-6
1
0

-1
6

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

-2
1

-1
-2
0

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

-3
8

0
-3
8

C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

-1
6
1

-7
3

-8
8

S
e
rv
ic
e
m
ig
ra
ti
o
n
b
u
d
g
e
t
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t
v
ir
e
d
in
m
o
n
th
a
n
d
a
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
c
a
r

m
ile
a
g
e
fo
re
c
a
s
t.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

-1
6
1

-7
3

-8
8

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
o
lic
y

-1
7

0
-1
7

T
h
is
is
a
n
e
w
b
u
d
g
e
t
a
re
a
fo
r
th
e
S
e
p
t
re
p
o
rt
d
e
ri
v
e
d
fr
o
m
e
le
m
e
n
ts
o
f
th
e

'o
ld
'P
la
n
n
in
g
a
n
d
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
th
e
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
a
n
d

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
b
u
d
g
e
ts
.
T
h
e
S
e
p
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
is
d
u
e
to
a
£
1
0
k
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in

fo
re
c
a
s
t
fo
r
e
x
te
rn
a
l
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
re
s
u
lt
in
g
fr
o
m
a
d
e
c
is
io
n
n
o
t
to

im
p
le
m
e
n
t
th
e
n
e
w
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
S
y
s
te
m
u
n
ti
l
n
e
x
t

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
y
e
a
r,
a
n
d
a
£
7
k
u
n
d
e
r
s
p
e
n
d
a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e
s
ta
ff
in
g
b
u
d
g
e
t.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
P
o
li
c
y
a
n
d
S
tr
a
te
g
y

-1
7

0
-1
7

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
s
ig
h
t
a
n
d
R
is
k

-1
0

-1

A
s
a
b
o
v
e
th
is
is
a
n
e
w
b
u
d
g
e
t
a
re
a
fo
r
th
e
S
e
p
t
re
p
o
rt
.
C
u
rr
e
n
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e

re
la
te
s
to
a
n
u
n
d
e
r
s
p
e
n
d
fo
r
c
a
r
m
ile
a
g
e
.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
n
d
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
s
ig
h
t

-1
0

-1

H
e
a
d
o
f
H
R
S
tr
a
te
g
y

5
7

0
5
7

H
e
a
d
o
f
H
R
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

3
4

0
3
4

H
e
a
d
o
f
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

-8
0

-8

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
P
e
o
p
le

8
2

0
8
2

H
e
a
d
o
f
L
e
g
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

7
7

3
7
4

in
c
re
a
s
e
in
C
h
ild
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
c
a
s
e
s
w
it
h
in
L
e
g
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
w
h
ic
h
h
a
s

re
s
u
lt
e
d
in
re
c
ru
it
in
g
tw
o
m
e
m
b
e
rs
o
f
s
ta
ff
.

H
e
a
d
o
f
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

-2
9
2

7
-2
9
9
R
e
v
ie
w
o
f
E
le
c
ti
o
n
s
c
o
s
t,
in
c
lu
d
in
g
re
le
a
s
e
o
f
£
1
8
0
k
re
s
e
rv
e
.

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

-1
0
8

-1
0
8

-0

B
u
d
g
e
ts
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
re
-a
lig
n
e
d
s
in
c
e
th
e
J
u
n
e
re
p
o
rt
.
O
v
e
ra
ll,
th
is
£
3
8
k

m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
in
c
lu
d
e
s
a
£
2
0
k
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
th
e
fo
re
c
a
s
t
fo
r
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
c
o
s
ts

d
u
e
to
to
th
e
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
S
u
rv
e
y
a
n
d
B
u
d
g
e
t
S
u
rv
e
y
b
e
in
g
c
o
m
b
in
e
d
a
s
o
n
e

s
u
rv
e
y
a
n
d
a
d
e
c
is
io
n
to
fo
rm
u
la
te
th
e
s
ta
ff
s
u
rv
e
y
in
h
o
u
s
e
,
a
£
2
0
k

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e
s
ta
ff
in
g
b
u
d
g
e
t
p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
d
u
e
to
a
d
e
c
is
io
n
n
o
t
to
fi
ll
a

v
a
c
a
n
t
p
o
s
t
o
ff
s
e
t
b
y
a
£
3
k
in
c
re
a
s
e
in
th
e
fo
re
c
a
s
t
fo
r
th
e
N
e
w
s
C
e
n
tr
a
l

m
a
g
a
z
in
e
.

T
h
e
m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
£
8
2
6
in
c
re
a
s
e
w
it
h
in
A
D
P
e
o
p
le
is
d
u
e
to
fo
re
c
a
s
t

p
re
s
s
u
re
s
in
in
c
o
m
e
,
d
u
e
la
rg
e
ly
to
re
d
u
c
e
d
s
c
h
o
o
ls
b
u
y
in
g
b
a
c
k
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

P
re
v
io
u
s
ly
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
a
s
a
ri
s
k
.

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 75



M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
b
e
tw
e
e
n
S
e
p
fo
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
a
n
d
J
u
n
fo
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
3

D
ir
e
c
to
r

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
S
e
p

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
J
u
n

C
h
a
n
g
e
in

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

C
O
M
M
E
N
T
A
R
Y

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
C
o
ro
n
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e

3
9

0
3
9

R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
-
In
c
re
a
s
e
in
fo
re
a
s
t
fo
r
u
n
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
ra
te
s
c
h
a
rg
e
s

fo
r
2
0
1
0
/1
1
&
2
0
1
1
/1
2
,
a
n
d
a
n
in
c
re
a
s
e
in
c
le
a
n
in
g
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
re
c
h
a
rg
e
d
.

C
o
ro
n
e
rs
S
e
rv
ic
e
-
U
n
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
re
n
t
c
h
a
rg
e
s
g
o
in
g
b
a
c
k
to
2
0
0
6
/7
-

2
0
1
1
/1
2
.
In
c
re
a
s
e
in
P
o
s
t
M
o
rt
e
m
c
h
a
rg
e
s
in
lin
e
w
it
h
s
e
rv
ic
e
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
L
e
g
a
l
a
n
d
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

-2
8
4

-9
8

-1
8
6

T
o
ta
l,
A
C
E
P
e
o
p
le

-2
4
1

-1
7
1

-7
0

A
C
E
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

A
C
E
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

1
4
9

0
1
4
9
A
C
E
c
o
s
ts
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

-3
3

0
-3
3

T
h
e
c
u
rr
e
n
t
S
e
p
t
v
a
ra
in
c
e
in
c
lu
d
e
s
a
£
1
6
k
u
n
d
e
r
s
p
e
n
d
a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e
s
ta
ff
in
g

b
u
d
g
e
t
a
n
d
a
fu
rt
h
e
r
£
1
7
k
u
n
d
e
r
s
p
e
n
d
a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e
P
ro
f
S
v
s
b
u
d
g
e
t
d
u
e
to

th
e
d
e
la
y
e
d
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
S
y
s
te
m
.

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
N
o
n
-
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

-1
0

0
-1
0

T
h
is
m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
is
d
u
e
to
a
£
1
0
k
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
fo
re
c
a
s
t
fo
r
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

S
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
h
a
s
re
s
u
lt
e
d
fr
o
m
a
d
e
c
is
io
n
to
te
rm
in
a
te
th
e
L
G
IU

s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

-4
2

0
-4
2

E
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
&
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

1
0
6

-2
9

1
3
5
C
o
s
t
o
f
In
te
ri
m
H
e
a
d
o
f
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
E
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
&
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

1
0
6

-2
9

1
3
5

H
e
a
d
o
f
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
&
B
e
n
e
fi
t

1
2
1

1
3
7

-1
6
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
A
g
e
n
c
y
c
o
s
ts
.

C
h
ie
f
F
in
a
n
c
e
O
ff
ic
e
r

4
2

8
3

-4
1
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
in
te
ri
m
A
D
F
in
a
n
c
e
c
o
s
ts
£
4
1
k
.

H
e
a
d
o
f
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
S
tr
a
te
g
y

1
2
8

6
4

6
4
N
e
t
in
c
re
a
s
e
in
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
p
re
m
iu
m
s
a
ft
e
r
re
c
h
a
rg
e
s
(£
7
1
k
).

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

2
8

1
2
5

-9
7

S
u
p
p
o
rt
fo
r
in
te
ri
m
S
F
M
c
o
s
ts
,
£
3
4
k
,
B
u
rs
a
ry
fo
re
c
a
s
t
re
d
u
c
e
d
b
y
£
4
0
k

fo
llo
w
in
g
c
o
s
t
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
,
S
u
p
p
o
rt
fr
o
m
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
fo
r
lo
s
s
o
f

s
c
h
o
o
ls
'i
n
c
o
m
e
£
2
0
k

H
e
a
d
o
f
A
u
d
it

-4
6

2
-4
8

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
s
a
la
ry
c
o
s
ts
d
u
e
to
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
o
f
s
e
c
o
n
d
m
e
n
t
ti
ll
e
n
d
o
f
S
e
p
t

a
n
d
a
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
A
u
d
it
F
e
e
s
£
3
4
k
.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
F
in
a
n
c
e

2
7
4

4
1
1

-1
3
7

H
e
a
d
o
f
S
y
s
te
m
s
(O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
)

-1
1

0
-1
1

C
h
ie
f
IT
O
ff
ic
e
r

1
0

1

H
e
a
d
o
f
S
y
s
te
m
s
(S
tr
a
te
g
y
&
A
s

1
0

0
1
0

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
IC
T

-0
0

-0

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 76



M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
b
e
tw
e
e
n
S
e
p
fo
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
a
n
d
J
u
n
fo
re
c
a
s
t
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
3

D
ir
e
c
to
r

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
S
e
p

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
J
u
n

C
h
a
n
g
e
in

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

C
O
M
M
E
N
T
A
R
Y

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

A
s
s
e
ts

1
9
9

5
2

1
4
7

A
m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
£
1
4
7
k
in
c
re
a
s
e
o
v
e
r
th
e
la
s
t
q
u
a
rt
e
r
is
d
u
e
to
v
a
ri
o
u
s

re
a
s
o
n
s
.
C
a
p
it
a
l
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
w
a
s
u
n
a
b
le
to
m
e
e
t
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
to
tr
a
d
e
a
s
a
T
ra
d
in
g
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
c
a
u
s
in
g
a
p
re
s
s
u
re
o
f
£
1
7
0
k
.

T
h
e
re
w
a
s
a
£
5
5
k
in
c
o
m
e
p
re
s
s
u
re
w
it
h
in
S
h
o
p
s
&
S
o
p
p
in
g
C
e
n
tr
e
s
w
h
ic
h

w
a
s
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
fr
o
m
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
fo
r
s
h
a
ri
n
g
o
f
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
w
it
h

J
C
P
.
T
h
is
w
a
s
o
ff
s
e
t
b
u
y
s
a
v
in
g
s
o
n
v
a
ri
o
u
s
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
c
u
tt
in
g
b
a
c
k
o
n

s
u
c
h
it
e
m
s
a
s
B
u
ild
in
g
re
p
a
ir
s
a
n
d
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
,
C
le
a
n
in
g
s
u
p
p
lie
s
a
n
d

G
ro
u
n
d
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
.

C
h
ie
f
A
s
s
e
ts
O
ff
ic
e
r

8
1

8
1

0

H
e
a
d
o
f
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
,
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

3
1

1
1
6

-8
5

A
m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
£
8
5
k
o
v
e
r
th
e
la
s
t
q
u
a
rt
e
r
is
d
u
e
to
v
a
ri
o
u
s
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s

w
it
h
in
F
M
,
fr
o
m
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
s
ta
ff
in
g
c
o
s
ts
a
n
d
s
a
v
in
g
s
o
n
v
a
ri
o
u
s

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
c
u
tt
in
g
b
a
c
k
o
n
s
u
c
h
it
e
m
s
a
s
B
u
ild
in
g
re
p
a
ir
s
a
n
d
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
,

C
le
a
n
in
g
s
u
p
p
lie
s
a
n
d
G
ro
u
n
d
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
A
s
s
e
ts

3
1
2

2
4
9

6
3

T
o
ta
l
A
C
E
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

7
9
8

6
3
1

1
6
7

D
e
b
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

-1
3
2

1
6
8

-3
0
0

F
o
re
c
a
s
t
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
c
h
a
rg
e
s
re
v
is
e
d
fo
llo
w
in
g
re
v
ie
w
(
£
1
0
0
k
p
re
s
s
u
re

a
g
a
in
s
t
in
te
re
s
t
re
c
e
iv
a
b
le
,
a
n
d
M
R
P
re
v
is
e
d
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
a
d
v
ic
e
fr
o
m
o
u
r

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
A
rl
in
g
c
lo
s
e
).

M
e
m
b
e
rs
'c
o
s
ts

4
2

2

P
re
m
a
tu
re
R
e
ti
re
m
e
n
t
C
o
s
ts

-2
0
0

0
-2
0
0

R
e
v
is
e
d
a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
re
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
re
c
e
n
t
e
s
ti
m
a
te
o
f
te
a
c
h
e
rs
'p
e
n
s
io
n

re
c
h
a
rg
e
fr
o
m
B
e
d
s
B
o
ro
u
g
h
C
o
u
n
c
il.

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
H
R
A
R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

0
0

0

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s

4
1
5

0
4
1
5

N
o
n
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
u
n
a
llo
c
a
te
d
R
IO
ta
rg
e
ts
,
d
e
la
y
in
fu
lly
im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g

th
e
W
e
b
T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
P
ro
je
c
t
a
n
d
a
s
h
o
rt
fa
ll
in
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
ig
ra
ti
o
n
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
C
o
s
ts

8
7

1
7
0

-8
3

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

3
1
6

3
4
5

-2
9
N
o
n
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
fr
o
m
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
to

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
(£
3
5
0
k
),
J
T
U
s
u
rp
lu
s
(£
2
3
0
k
),
a
n
d
S
E
P
T
fu
n
d
in
g
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d

fr
o
m
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
(£
3
0
0
)
p
lu
s
in
c
re
s
e
d
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
to
re
fl
e
c
t

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
ri
s
k
.a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
£
8
0
0
.

S
u
b
T
o
ta
l
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
&
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

3
1
6

3
4
5

-2
9

T
o
ta
l

6
7
3

9
6
1

-2
8
8

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 77



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B

E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
-

M
o
n
th
:A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
1
1

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

O
p
e
n
in
g

B
a
la
n
c
e

2
0
1
1
/1
2

In
c
re
a
s
e
in

re
s
e
rv
e
s

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

S
p
e
n
d

a
g
a
in
s
t

re
s
e
rv
e
s

O
th
e
r

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

S
p
e
n
d

a
g
a
in
s
t

re
s
e
rv
e
s

O
u
r
s
p
e
n
d

a
g
a
in
s
t
o
th
e
r

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s

re
s
e
rv
e
s

R
e
le
a
s
e
o
f

re
s
e
rv
e
s

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d

C
lo
s
in
g

B
a
la
n
c
e

2
0
1
1
/1
2

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
R
e
w
a
rd
G
ra
n
t

1
7
4

5
1
6
8

L
S
P
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

4
8

4
8

0

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
w
o
rk

6
6

0

T
a
rg
e
te
d
S
u
p
p
o
rt
fo
r

E
m
p
o
w
e
rm
e
n
t
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

P
ro
je
c
t

1
8

1
8

0

In
v
e
s
t
to
S
a
v
e
,
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
p
ro
je
c
t
-

L
e
g
a
l

5
5

0

In
v
e
s
t
to
s
a
v
e
,
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
p
ro
je
c
t

H
R

4
3

4
3

0

In
v
e
s
t
to
S
a
v
e
,
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
p
ro
je
c
t
-

W
e
b
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

2
1

2
1

0

3
1
5

0
1
4
6

0
0

0
1
6
8

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
/R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
R
e
s
e
rv
e

2
,1
1
7

7
5
0

2
1
6

1
1
0

2
,5
4
1

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
re
s
e
rv
e

3
,0
5
9

3
1

3
,0
2
8

E
le
c
ti
o
n
s
F
u
n
d

1
8
0

1
8
0

0

5
,3
5
6

7
5
0

4
2
7

1
1
0

0
0

5
,5
6
9

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

J
T
U
R
e
s
e
rv
e

2
3
0

-2
3
0

0
0

0
0

2
3
0

0
-2
3
0

T
o
ta
l
E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

5
,6
7
1

7
5
0

5
7
3

1
1
0

2
3
0

0
5
,5
0
8

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 78



D
e
b
to
rs
R
e
p
o
rt
-
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
1

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
C

C
U
S
T
O
M
E
R
G
R
O
U
P

1
to
1
4

D
a
y
s

1
5
to
3
0

D
a
y
s

3
1
to
6
0

D
a
y
s

6
1
to
9
0

D
a
y
s

9
1
to
3
6
5

d
a
y
s

1
y
e
a
r

a
n
d
o
v
e
r

T
o
ta
l
D
e
b
t

£
k

%
£
k

%
£
k

%
£
k

%
£
k

%
£
k

%
£
k

%

S
c
h
o
o
ls

4
4
8

2
4
%

4
6
5

2
5
%

9
0
%

8
6

5
%

2
8

1
%

4
0
%

1
,0
4
0

5
5
%

B
e
d
fo
rd
B
o
ro
u
g
h

0
0
%

3
2

2
%

0
0
%

0
0
%

1
0

1
%

1
0
9

6
%

1
5
1

8
%

B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
P
C
T

0
0
%

0
0
%

0
0
%

0
0
%

0
0
%

0
0
%

0
0
%

G
e
n
e
ra
l
d
e
b
ts

7
6

4
%

2
9
5

1
6
%

1
5

1
%

6
5

3
%

1
1
5

6
%

1
3
9

7
%

7
0
5

3
7
%

T
O
T
A
L
D
E
B
T

5
2
4

2
8
%

7
9
2

4
2
%

2
4

1
%

1
5
1

8
%

1
5
3

8
%

2
5
2

1
3
%

1
,8
9
6

1
0
0
%

P
R
E
V
IO
U
S
Q
U
A
R
T
E
R

1
,5
8
0

5
2
%

8
4
4

2
8
%

9
6

3
%

2
3

1
%

2
1
1

7
%

2
5
5

8
%

3
,0
1
0

1
0
0
%

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
R
e
v
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 12
Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



120711 C&SS Qtr 1 BMR Report Draft  

 
 

Meeting: Customer & Central Services Overview & Scrutiny Meeting  

Date: 19th December 2011 

Subject: Capital Budget Management Report Quarter ended 30th 
September 2011 for Corporate Resources 

Report of: Executive Member- Corporate Resources 

Summary: The report sets out the Capital financial position to the end of September 
2011.  
 

 

 
Contact Officer: John Unsworth- Assistant Chief Executive Resources 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

Sound financial management contributes to the delivery of the Council’s value for 
money, enabling the Council to successfully deliver its priorities 
 
Financial: 

The financial implications are set out in the report 
 
Legal: 

None 
 
Risk Management: 

None 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

None 
 
Community Safety: 

None 
 
Sustainability: 

None 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 81



120711 C&SS Qtr 1 BMR Report Draft  

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. that the Committee: 
 

 (a) Notes and considers this report. 
 

 
 

Introduction 

1. 

 

The report sets out the financial position to the end of September 2011. 

2. KEY HIGHLIGHTS (Appendix A1 and A2) 

 2.1 

 

Capital – ACE Resources 

The approved gross capital programme, following review in August, is 
£5,733k (£5,454k net) with spend to date running £182k behind profiled 
budget. 

 

 2.2 Capital – ACE People & Organisation 

The approved gross capital programme, following review in August, is 
£154k with spend to date running £2k behind profiled budget.  

 

 
 
Appendices: 

Appendix A1 – Capital Summary- ACE Resources 

Appendix A2 – Capital Summary- ACE People & Organisation 

 
Background Papers: None 
 
Location of papers: Technology House, Bedford. 

Agenda Item 13
Page 82



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

C
E
N
T
R
A
L
B
E
D
F
O
R
D
S
H
IR
E
C
A
P
IT
A
L
P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2
C
a
p
it
a
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

C
B
C
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
R
o
lli
n
g
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
(
R
)
in
c
lu
d
e
s

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
e
s
ta
te
a
n
d

c
a
p
it
a
l
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
.
T
h
e
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t
fo
r
2
0
1
1
/1
2
is

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
to
b
e
c
.
£
3
m
,
o
f
w
h
ic
h
£
1
m
w
ill
b
e
c
o
v
e
re
d
b
y

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
s
lip
p
a
g
e
fr
o
m
2
0
1
0
/1
1
.

8
8

8
8

5
4

5
4

-3
4

0
-3
4

1
,4
5
6

0
1
,4
5
6

A
m
p
th
ill
C
o
u
rt
H
o
u
s
e
-
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
B
lo
c
k
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

P
ri
o
ry
H
o
u
s
e
-
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
ro
p
e
rt
y

B
lo
c
k
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
1
2

2
1
2

H
o
u
g
h
to
n
L
o
d
g
e
/R
e
g
is
-
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
B
lo
c
k
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
4

7
4

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
-
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
B
lo
c
k
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
7
1

3
7
1

C
a
rb
o
n
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
B
lo
c
k
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
3
0

3
3
0

W
a
tl
in
g
H
o
u
s
e
-
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
ro
p
e
rt
y

B
lo
c
k
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
7
1

1
7
1

S
ils
o
e
H
o
rt
ic
u
lt
u
ra
l
C
e
n
tr
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
6

6
6

A
rl
e
s
e
y
-
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
B
lo
c
k
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
2
3

1
2
3

T
id
d
e
n
fo
o
t
L
e
is
u
re
C
e
n
tr
e
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
B
lo
c
k
)
-
p
a
th
s
a
n
d
c
a
r
p
a
rk
in
g

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
7
6

0
1
7
6

P
ri
o
ry
H
o
u
s
e
(O
ri
g
in
a
lly
s
h
o
w
n
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
ro
p
e
rt
y

B
lo
c
k
)
-
c
a
r
p
a
rk
in
g

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

IC
T
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
-
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
(f
ro
m
R
o
lli
n
g

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
)

4
9

4
9

3
1
3

3
1
3

2
6
4

0
2
6
4

9
6

0
9
6

IC
T
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
-
H
a
rd
w
a
re
(f
ro
m
R
o
lli
n
g
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
)

1
8
5

1
8
5

4
9

4
9

-1
3
6

0
-1
3
6

2
3
5

0
2
3
5

IC
T
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
-
S
o
ft
w
a
re
(f
ro
m
R
o
lli
n
g
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
)

1
0
0

1
0
0

3
3

-9
7

0
-9
7

2
4
0

0
2
4
0

A
IS
F
a
c
e

6
-6

0
0

0
-6

6
0

6
4

(6
4
)

0

T
it
le
a
n
d
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
c
h
e
m
e

R
e
v
is
e
d
C
a
p
it
a
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
-

A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
1
1

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
1

P
R
O
F
IL
E
D
B
U
D
G
E
T
Y
T
D

A
C
T
U
A
L

V
A
R
IA
N
C
E

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
C
a
p
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 13
Page 83



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

C
E
N
T
R
A
L
B
E
D
F
O
R
D
S
H
IR
E
C
A
P
IT
A
L
P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2
C
a
p
it
a
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

T
it
le
a
n
d
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
c
h
e
m
e

R
e
v
is
e
d
C
a
p
it
a
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
-

A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
1
1

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
1

P
R
O
F
IL
E
D
B
U
D
G
E
T
Y
T
D

A
C
T
U
A
L

V
A
R
IA
N
C
E

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
C
o
n
te
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
(K
E
Y
E
C
M
)
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ts
ti
o
n

T
o
d
e
liv
e
r
a
s
in
g
le
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
C
o
n
te
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
(K
E
Y

E
C
M
)
s
y
s
te
m
fo
r
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
th
a
t
w
ill
:

•
c
re
a
te
a
c
e
n
tr
a
l
s
e
c
u
re
re
c
o
rd
s
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
s
to
ra
g
e

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry
fo
r
a
ll
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
c
ri
ti
c
a
l
e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
(a
n
d
p
a
p
e
r)

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
;

•
a
c
t
a
s
a
c
e
n
tr
a
l
e
m
a
il
a
rc
h
iv
e
u
n
d
e
rp
in
n
in
g
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
a
n
d

re
g
u
la
to
ry
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

3
0

3
0

0
0

-3
0

0
-3
0

1
5
0

0
1
5
0

C
B
C
N
e
tw
o
rk
(N
E
W
)

M
o
v
e
o
f
1
0
0
0
u
s
e
rs
o
ff
B
B
C
n
e
tw
o
rk

1
0
5

1
0
5

1
1
0

1
1
0

5
0

5
1
4
8

0
1
4
8

D
a
ta
C
e
n
tr
e
M
ig
ra
ti
o
n
(N
E
W
)

T
o
p
ro
v
id
e
C
B
C
w
it
h
a
d
a
ta
c
e
n
tr
e
th
a
t
is
n
o
t
s
u
s
c
e
p
ti
b
le
to

p
o
w
e
r
o
u
ta
g
e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

IC
T
T
im
e
R
e
c
o
rd
in
g
S
y
s
te
m
(N
E
W
)

T
o
e
n
a
b
le
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
p
ro
je
c
t
c
h
a
rg
in
g

6
6

6
6

0
0

-6
6

0
-6
6

6
6

0
6
6

S
A
P
O
p
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
-
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
F
o
re
c
a
s
ti
n
g

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6
0

0
6
0

S
A
P
O
p
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
-
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
&
E
m
p
lo
y
e
e

S
e
lf
S
e
rv
ic
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

In
te
g
ra
te
d
A
s
s
e
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
S
y
s
te
m
(N
E
W
)
-
T
h
is
s
in
g
le

p
la
tf
o
rm
w
ill
b
e
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
c
ro
s
s
s
e
rv
ic
e
,
re
s
o
lv
in
g
th
e
c
u
rr
e
n
t

is
s
u
e
s
o
f
m
u
lt
ip
le
d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
.

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
5
0

0
1
5
0

C
o
-L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
D
W
P
fo
rm
e
r
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
H
u
b
s
-
T
o
ta
l
P
la
c
e
/

P
o
in
ts
o
f
P
re
s
e
n
c
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4
8
0

(2
1
5
)

2
6
5

O
p
ti
c
a
l
C
h
a
ra
c
te
r
R
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
(O
C
R
)

6
0

6
0

6
0

6
0

0
0

0
8
4

0
8
4

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
w
o
rk
s
-
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
H
o
u
s
e
(Y
o
u
r

S
p
a
c
e
)

0
5
7

5
7

5
7

0
5
7

3
5

0
3
5

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
C
a
p
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 13
Page 84



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

C
E
N
T
R
A
L
B
E
D
F
O
R
D
S
H
IR
E
C
A
P
IT
A
L
P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2
C
a
p
it
a
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

T
it
le
a
n
d
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
c
h
e
m
e

R
e
v
is
e
d
C
a
p
it
a
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
-

A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
1
1

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
1

P
R
O
F
IL
E
D
B
U
D
G
E
T
Y
T
D

A
C
T
U
A
L

V
A
R
IA
N
C
E

W
e
b
s
tr
a
te
g
y
-
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
w
e
b
s
tr
a
te
g
y
p
ro
je
c
t
h
a
s
3

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
:

•
T
o
g
e
n
e
ra
te
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s

•
T
o
s
u
p
p
o
rt
d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

•
T
o
im
p
ro
v
e
c
u
s
to
m
e
r
s
e
rv
ic
e

T
h
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
is
c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
w
e
b
s
tr
a
te
g
y
is

fu
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l
to
th
e
tr
a
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

3
7

3
7

4
2

4
2

5
0

5
7
2

0
7
2

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
/
C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
S
y
s
te
m
:

T
o
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
a
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
s
o
ft
w
a
re
s
y
s
te
m
o
r
s
y
s
te
m
s
w
h
ic
h

w
ill
a
llo
w
u
s
to
:

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
m
o
n
it
o
r,
re
p
o
rt
a
n
d
im
p
ro
v
e
o
n
o
u
r
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

A
n
a
ly
s
e
a
n
d
p
la
n
fo
r
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ri
s
k
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9
0

0
9
0

C
lo
p
h
ill
S
t
M
a
ry
's
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

7
5

7
5

0
0

-7
5

0
-7
5

7
5

0
7
5

IC
T
S
ta
b
ili
s
a
ti
o
n

7
5

7
5

0
0

-7
5

0
-7
5

5
5
9

0
5
5
9

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
o
ta
l
A
s
s
is
ta
n
t
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
-
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

8
7
6

(6
)

8
7
0

6
8
8

0
6
8
8

(1
8
8
)

6
(1
8
2
)

5
,7
3
3

(2
7
9
)

5
,4
5
4

(R
)=
R
o
ll
in
g
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
C
a
p
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 13
Page 85



C
E
N
T
R
A
L
B
E
D
F
O
R
D
S
H
IR
E
C
A
P
IT
A
L
P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
2

2
0
1
1
/1
2
C
a
p
it
a
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

O
ff
ic
e
o
f
th
e
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it

u
re

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it

u
re

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it

u
re

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
s
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it

u
re

E
x
te
rn
a
l

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
e
t

E
x
e
n
d
it
u
r

e

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

£
0
0
0
s

L
e
g
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
C
a
s
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

3
0

3
1

1
-2

0
-2

7
0

7

C
u
s
to
m
e
r
R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
(C
R
M
)
-

C
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f
tw
o
c
a
p
it
a
l
p
ro
je
c
ts
fr
o
m
th
e
2
0
1
0
/1
1

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
:
M
id
a
n
d
S
o
u
th
B
e
d
s
T
-G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
a
n
d
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
o
f
B
e
d
s
D
is
tr
ic
t

C
o
u
n
c
ils
(c
o
m
b
in
e
d
b
u
d
g
e
t
2
0
1
0
/1
1
o
f
£
3
4
3
k
).

6
8

0
6
8

6
8

6
8

0
0

0
1
4
7

0
1
4
7

T
o
ta
l
A
s
s
is
ta
n
t
C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
-
P
e
o
p
le

7
1

0
7
1

6
9

0
6
9

(2
)

0
(2
)

1
5
4

0
1
5
4

(R
)=
R
o
ll
in
g
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

T
it
le
a
n
d
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
c
h
e
m
e

R
e
v
is
e
d
C
a
p
it
a
l
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
-

A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
1
1

P
R
O
F
IL
E
D
B
U
D
G
E
T
Y
T
D

A
C
T
U
A
L

V
A
R
IA
N
C
E

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
1

1
1
1
2
0
2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
Q
2
C
a
p
A
p
p
e
n
d

Agenda Item 13
Page 86



 
 
 

Meeting: Customer & Central Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 19 December 2011 

Subject: Work Programme 2011 – 2012 & Executive Forward Plan 
 

Report of: Chief Executive 

Summary: The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted 
Committee work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Bernard Carter, Corporate Policy & Scrutiny Manager 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

The work programme of the Customer & Central Services Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee will contribute indirectly to all 5 Council priorities. 
 
Financial: 

n/a 
 
Legal: 

n/a 
 
Risk Management: 

n/a 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

n/a 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

n/a 
 
Community Safety: 

n/a 
 
Sustainability: 

n/a 
 

Agenda Item 14
Page 87



 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. that the Customer & Central Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

 (a) considers and approves the work programme attached, subject to 
any further amendments it may wish to make; 
 

 (b) considers the Executive Forward Plan; and 
 

 (c) considers whether it wishes to add any further items to the work 
programme and/or establish any Task Forces to assist it in 
reviewing specific items. 
 

 
 
Work Programme 
 
1. 
 

Attached at Appendix A is the currently drafted work programme for the 
Committee.  
 

2. 
 

Also attached at Appendix B is the latest version of the Executive’s Forward 
Plan so that Overview & Scrutiny Members are fully aware of the key issues 
Executive Members will be taking decisions upon in the coming months. 
Those items relating specifically to this Committee’s terms of reference are 
shaded in light grey. 
 

3. The Committee is now requested to consider the work programme attached 
and amend or add to it as necessary. This will allow officers to plan 
accordingly but will not preclude further items being added during the course 
of the year if Members so wish and capacity exists. 
 

Task Forces 
 
4. 
 

In addition to consideration of the work programme, Members will also need to 
consider how each item will be reviewed i.e. by the Committee itself (over one 
or a number of Committee meetings) or by establishing a Member Task Force 
to review an item in greater depth and report back its findings. 
 

Conclusion 
 
5. Members are requested to consider and agree the attached work programme, 

subject to any further amendments/additions they may wish to make and 
highlight those items within it where they may wish to establish a Task Force 
to assist the Committee in its work. 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 88



 Appendix A 

 
Work Programme for Customer & Central Services 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2011 – 2012 
 

Ref 

Indicative OSC  
Meeting Date 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

1. 19 December 2011 
 

Executive Member 
Update 

To receive a brief verbal update from the 
relevant Executive Member. 
 

 

  Draft Budget 
2012/13 

To consider the Council’s draft Budget for 
2012/13, as follows:- 
 

• Revenue 

• Capital 

• Fees & Charges 
 

 

  Quarter 2 Budget 
Monitoring  
 

To consider corporate budget and 
treasury management monitoring 
information for the second quarter of 
2011/12, together with specific 
information for Corporate Services 
(Resources and People & Organisation). 
 

 

2. 16 January 2012 
 

Executive Member 
Update 

To receive a brief verbal update from the 
relevant Executive Member. 
 

 

  Medium Term 
Objectives 

To consider the Council’s draft Medium 
Term Objectives 
 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 89



Ref 

Indicative OSC  
Meeting Date 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

  Corporate Asset 
Management 
Strategy 
 

To consider the Council’s Corporate 
Asset Management Strategy 

 

  Recovery 
Programme 
 

To receive a progress report regarding 
the recovery programme of the Corporate 
Services Directorate 
 

 

  Quarter 2 
Performance 
Monitoring 

To consider performance monitoring 
information for the second quarter of 
20011/12 
 

 

3. 27 February 2012 
 

Executive Member 
Update 

To receive a brief verbal update from the 
relevant Executive Member 
 

 

  Procurement 
Review & Priorities 

To receive a report regarding the broad 
direction for procurement at Central 
Bedfordshire Council 
 

 

  Medium Term 
Accommodation 
Plan 
 

To receive a report on progress with the 
Medium Term Accommodation Plan 
 

 

4. 16 April 2012 
 

Executive Member 
Update 

To receive a brief verbal update from the 
relevant Executive Member. 
 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 90



Ref 

Indicative OSC  
Meeting Date 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

  Quarter 3 Budget 
Monitoring  
 

To consider corporate budget and 
treasury management monitoring 
information for the third quarter of 
20011/12, together with specific 
information for Corporate Services 
(Resources and People & Organisation). 
 

 

  Quarter 3 
Performance 
Monitoring 

To consider performance monitoring 
information for the third quarter of 
20011/12 
 

 

  Channel Shift To receive a progress report regarding 
implementation of the Channel Shift 
programme 
 

 

  ICT Framework To receive the quarterly progress report 
regarding implementation of the ICT 
Framework 
 

 

5. 21 May 2012 
 

Executive Member 
Update 

To receive a brief verbal update from the 
relevant Executive Member. 
 

 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 91



P
age 92

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

Central Bedfordshire Council 
Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

1 December 2011 to 30 November 2012 
 
 

1) During the period from 1 December 2011 to 30 November 2012, Central Bedfordshire Council plans to make key decisions on the issues 
set out below.  “Key decisions” relate to those decisions of the Executive which are likely: 
 

 - to result in the incurring of expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant (namely £200,000 or above per annum) 
having regard to the budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 
 

 - to be significant in terms of their effects on communities living or working in an area comprising one or more wards in the area of Central 
Bedfordshire. 
 

2) The Forward Plan is a general guide to the key decisions to be determined by the Executive and will be updated on a monthly basis.  Key 
decisions will be taken by the Executive as a whole.  The Members of the Executive are: 
 

 Cllr James Jamieson Leader of the Council and Chairman of the Executive  
 Cllr Maurice Jones Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Corporate Resources  
 Cllr Mark Versallion Executive Member for Children’s Services  
 Cllr Mrs Carole Hegley Executive Member for Social Care, Health and Housing  
 Cllr Ken Matthews Executive Member for Sustainable Communities – Strategic Planning and Economic Development 
 Cllr Brian Spurr Executive Member for Sustainable Communities - Services  
 Cllr Mrs Tricia Turner MBE Executive Member for Economic Partnerships  
 Cllr Richard Stay Executive Member for External Affairs  
    
    
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 93



Appendix B 
3) Those items identified for decision more than one month in advance may change in forthcoming Plans.  Each new Plan supersedes the 

previous Plan.  Any person who wishes to make representations to the Executive about the matter in respect of which the decision is to be 
made should do so to the officer whose telephone number and e-mail address are shown in the Forward Plan.  Any correspondence should 
be sent to the contact officer at the relevant address as shown below.  General questions about the Plan such as specific dates, should be 
addressed to the Committee Services Manager, Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford SG17 5TQ. 
 

4) The agendas for meetings of the Executive will be published as follows: 
 

 Meeting Date 
 

Publication of Agenda  

 15 March 2011 03 March 2011  
 05 April 2011 24 March 2011  
 31 May 2011 19 May 2011  
 12 July 2011 30 June 2011  
 23 August 2011 11 August 2011  
 4 October 2011 22 September 2011  
 15 November 2011 3 November 2011  
 6 December 2011 24 November 2011  
 10 January 2012 22 December 2011  
 14 February 2012 2 February 2012  
 27 March 2012 15 March 2012  
 15 May 2012 3 May 2012  

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 94



 

Central Bedfordshire Council 
 

Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1 December 2011 to 30 November 2012 
 
Key Decisions 
 Date of Publication:  15 November 2011 
 

Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

1. Draft Budget 
2012/13 and 
Medium Term 
Financial Plan -  
 
 
 

To consider the draft 
budget for 2012/13 and 
the Medium Term 
Financial Plan including 
fees and charges and 
the capital programme. 
 

6 December 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 05/11/2011 to Contact 
Officer: 
Charles Warboys, Chief Finance 
Officer & Section 151 Officer  
Email:  
charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.
gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6147 
 

2. Quarter 2 Budget 
Monitoring -  
 
 
 

To consider the quarter 
2 budget monitoring 
report.  
 

6 December 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 05/11/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Charles Warboys, Chief Finance 
Officer & Section 151 Officer  
Email:  
charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.
gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6147 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 95



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

3. Draft Housing 
Revenue Account 
(HRA) Budget 
2012/13 and Self-
Financing HRA 
Business Plan -  
 
 
 

To consider the draft 
Housing Revenue 
Account budget for 
2012/13.  
 

6 December 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Social Care, 
Health and Housing, Deputy Leader 
and Executive Member for Corporate 
Resources 
Comments by 05/11/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Tony Keaveney, Assistant Director 
Housing Services and/or Charles 
Warboys, Chief Finance Officer & 
Section 151 Officer 
Email:  
charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.
gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6147 and/or 
tony.keaveney@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5213 
 

4. Future of Special 
Schooling in the 
South of Central 
Bedfordshire -  
 
 
 

To consider the 
alternative arrangement 
for Area Special Schools 
in light of the decision by 
the Department for 
Education to award 
Academy Status to 
Weatherfield Special 
School.  
 

6 December 
2011 
 

Statutory Notices. 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Children's 
Services 
Comments by 05/11/2011 to Contact 
Officer: 
Pete Dudley, Assistant Director 
Learning and Strategic Commissioning 
Email:  
pete.dudley@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k 
Tel:  0300 300 4203 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 96



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

5. 2011 Annual 
Assessment of 
Children's 
Services -  
 
 
 

Response to Ofsted 
Annual Assessment and 
agreement to the 
improvement strategy. 
 

6 December 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Children's 
Services 
Comments by 05/11/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Sylvia Gibson, Head of Learning  
Email:  
sylvia.gibson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5522 
 

6. Extension of the 
Household Waste 
Recycling Centres 
Management 
Contract -  
 
 
 

To consider the 
extension of the 
household waste 
recycling centres 
management contract 
with Viridor.  
 

6 December 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Services 
Comments by 05/11/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
John Atkinson, Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services  
Email:  Tracey Harris, Head of Waste 
Services 
tracey.harris2@centralbedfordshire.gov
.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 4031 or 
john.atkinson@centralbedfordshire.gov
.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6255 
 A

genda Item
 14

P
age 97



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

7. Harmonisation of 
the Housing 
Needs Service in 
Central 
Bedfordshire -  
 
 
 

To approve the 
harmonisation of the 
Housing Needs Service 
in Central Bedfordshire. 
 

10 January 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Social Care, 
Health and Housing 
Comments by 09/12/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Mary Goodson, Policy Advisor  
Email:  
mary.goodson@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5515 
 

8. Fairer Charging - 
Phase 2 -  
 
 
 

To receive an update on 
phase 2 fairer charging 
and to make a decision 
on the introduction of 
weekly charge for 
Telecare Services.  
 

10 January 
2012 
 

Current Telecare users (individual 
letter and survey); Stakeholder 
Groups and Public (email and 
web-based survey) 15 August 
2011 – 4 November 2011. 
 

Report 
Consultation 
document containing 
proposals 
Analysis of 
consultation 
responses 
 

Executive Member for Social Care, 
Health and Housing 
Comments by 09/12/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Tim Hoyle, Head of Business Systems 
Email:  
tim.hoyle@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6065 
 

9. ICT Framework 
Document -  
 
 
 

To approve the ICT 
Framework document.  
 

10 January 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 09/12/2011 to Contact 
Officer: 
Clive Jones, Chief ICT Officer  
Email:  
clive.jones@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 4168 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 98



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

10. Outcome of the 
Review of 
Children's Centres 
-  
 
 
 

To consider the outcome 
of the review of 
children's centres.  
 

10 January 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Children's 
Services 
Comments by 09/12/2011 to Contact 
Officer: 
Catherine Parry, Assistant Director 
(Acting), Children's Services 
Operations  
Email:  
catherine.parry@centralbedfordshire.g
ov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6441 
 

11. Treasury 
Management 
Policy and the 
Treasury 
Management 
Strategy -  
 
 
 

To recommend to 
Council the adoption of 
the Treasury 
Management Policy and 
Treasury Management 
Strategy. 
 

10 January 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 09/12/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Charles Warboys, Chief Finance 
Officer & Section 151 Officer  
Email:  
charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.
gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6147 
 

12. Local Sustainable 
Transport Fund 
bid for Central 
Bedfordshire -  
 
 
 

To approve the Local 
Sustainable Transport 
Fund bid for Central 
Bedfordshire. 
 

10 January 
2012 
 

Stakeholder consultees. 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Strategic Planning and 
Economic Development 
Comments by 09/12/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Paul Cook, Head of Transport Strategy 
Email:  
paul.cook@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6999 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 99



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

13. Review of Traded 
Services for 
Schools -  
 
 
 

To consider the review 
of traded services for 
schools.  
 

10 January 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Children's 
Services, Deputy Leader and Executive 
Member for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 09/12/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
John Unsworth, Interim Assistant Chief 
Executive (Resources)  
Email:  
john.unsworth@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5875 
 

14. Award of the 
Housing 
Responsive 
Maintenance and 
Void Repairs 
Contract -  
 
 
 

To award the housing 
responsive maintenance 
and void repairs 
contract. 
 

14 February 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Social Care, 
Health and Housing 
Comments by 09/12/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Basil Quinn, Housing Asset Manager 
Performance  
Email:  
basil.quinn@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k 
Tel:  0300 300 5118 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 100



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

15. Budget 2012/13 -  
 
 
 

To recommend to 
Council the proposed 
budget for 2012/13.  
 

14 February 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 13/01/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Charles Warboys, Chief Finance 
Officer & Section 151 Officer  
Email:  
charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.
gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6147 
 

16. Housing Revenue 
Account Budget 
2012/13 -  
 
 
 

To recommend to 
Council the Housing 
Revenue Account 
Budget 2012/13 for 
approval.  
 

14 February 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources, Executive 
Member for Social Care, Health and 
Housing 
Comments by 13/01/12 to Contact 
Officer: Charles Warboys, Chief 
Finance Officer & Section 151 Officer 
and/or 
Tony Keaveney, Assistant Director 
Housing Services  
Email:  
charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.
gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6147 and/or 
tony.keaveney@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5213 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 101



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

17. Localism Bill -  
 
 
 

To consider the 
Localism Bill and the 
delivery through the 
Community Strategy.  
 

14 February 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 13/01/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Peter Fraser, Head of Partnerships & 
Community Engagement  
Email:  
peter.fraser@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k 
Tel:  0300 300 6740 
 

18. Corporate Asset 
Management Plan 
-  
 
 
 

To approve the 
Corporate Asset 
Management Plan.  
 

14 February 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 13/01/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Ian Brown, Interim Chief Assets Officer 
Email:  
ian.brown@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5711 
 

19. Review of Central 
Bedfordshire 
Council Library 
Service -  
 
 
 

Approval is sought to: 
 
A:  agree the Central 
Bedfordshire vision for 
the Libraries Service; 
and 
B:  agree a sustainable 
model of future Library 
Service provision. 
 

27 March 2012 
 

Throughout May - July 2011 a 
series of focus groups and 
workshops with service users and 
partners and stakeholders.  From 
October 2011 – January 2012 a 
formal consultation on the vision 
and potential service delivery 
models. 
 
 

Emerging vision, core 
service offer and 
aspiration 
Libraries Service 
Review Report 
Outcomes from 
consultation process 
Equality Impact 
Assessment 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Services 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Kate McFarlane, Head of Community 
Regeneration & Adult Skills  
Email:  
kate.mcfarlane@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5858 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 102



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

20. Community Safety 
Partnership 
Priorities and the 
Community Safety 
Partnership Plan 
for 2012-2013 -  
 
 
 

To adopt the Community 
Safety Partnership 
Priorities and the 
Community Safety 
Partnership Plan for 
2012-2013. 
 

27 March 2012 
 

Strategic Assessment & 
Partnership Plan will be 
considered at the Community 
Safety Partnership Executive 
meeting in November/December, 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
and the Local Strategic 
Partnership. 
 
 

Strategic 
Assessment Priorities 
& Community Safety 
Partnership Plan 
2012-2013 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Services 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Jeanette Keyte, Community Safety 
Manager  
Email:  
jeanette.keyte@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5232 
 

21. Food Law 
Enforcement 
Service Plan 
2012-2013, Age 
Restricted Sales 
Plan 2012-2013 
and the Health 
and Safety (as a 
Regulator) 
Service Plan 
2012-2013 -  
 

To approve the Food 
Law Enforcement 
Service Plan 2012-2013, 
Age Restricted Sales 
Plan 2012-2013 and the 
Health and Safety (as a 
Regulator) Service Plan 
2012-2013. 
 

27 March 2012 
 

 
 
 

Central Bedfordshire 
Enforcement Policy; 
FSA Framework 
Agreement on Local 
Authority Food Law 
Enforcement; Food 
Law Code of Practice 
(England); HSE 
Section 18 Standard 
on Enforcement 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Services 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Susan Childerhouse, Head of Public 
Protection (North)  
Email:  
susan.childerhouse@centralbedfordshi
re.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 4394 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 103



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

22. Leighton Buzzard 
Town Centre 
Planning and 
Development 
Briefs -  
 
 
 

To endorse the planning 
document for two sites 
as Interim Technical 
Guidance for 
Development 
Management Purposes. 
 

27 March 2012 
 

Statutory consultation procedure 
to be carried out in Autumn 2011. 
 

Leighton Buzzard 
Town Centre sites 
Planning and 
Development Briefs 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Strategic Planning and 
Economic Development 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Liz Wade, Assistant Director Economic 
Growth and Regeneration  
Email:  
liz.wade@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6288 
 

23. Brewers Hill Road 
Sites, Dunstable 
Regeneration -  
 
 
 

To adopt the plans for 
the Brewers Hill Road 
sites as a 
Supplementary Planning 
Document or 
endorsement as Interim 
technical guidance for 
Development 
Management Purposes.  
 

27 March 2012 
 

Statutory consultation procedure 
to be carried out in 
November/December 2011 via 
exhibitions, meetings and 
questionnaires. 
 

Brewers Hill Road 
sites, Dunstable 
Development Brief 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Strategic Planning and 
Economic Development, Deputy 
Leader and Executive Member for 
Corporate Resources 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Peter Burt, MRICS, Head of Property 
Assets or Andy Lewis, Major Projects 
Officer 
Email:  
peter.burt@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5281 or 
andy.lewis@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5526 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 104



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

24. Quarter 3 Budget 
Monitoring -  
 
 
 

To consider quarter 3 
budget monitoring 
report.  
 

27 March 2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Charles Warboys, Chief Finance 
Officer & Section 151 Officer  
Email:  
charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.
gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6147 
 

25. Alternative Future 
Provision of the 
Pupil Referral Unit 
-  
 
 
 

To consider an 
alternative provision free 
school - Pupil Referral 
Unit  
 

27 March 2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Children's 
Services 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Pete Dudley, Assistant Director 
Learning and Strategic Commissioning 
Email:  
pete.dudley@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k 
Tel:  0300 300 4203 
 

26. Local Lettings 
Policy to Rural 
Exception Sites in 
Central 
Bedfordshire -  
 
 
 

To agree the Local 
Lettings Policy to 
allocate affordable 
housing to Rural 
Exception Sites in 
Central Bedfordshire.  
 

27 March 2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Social Care, 
Health and Housing 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Hamid Khan, Head of Housing Needs 
Email:  
hamid.khan@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k 
Tel:  0300 300 5369 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 105



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

27. All Age Skills 
Strategy and the 
Skills Role of the 
Local Authority -  
 
 
 

Approval is sought to 
agree the All Age Skills 
Strategy for Central 
Bedfordshire and to 
agree on the future role 
of the local authority in 
the skills agenda.  
 

27 March 2012 
 

The draft All Age Skills Strategy 
was created following a series of 
workshops, focus groups and 
interviews with partners, 
stakeholders and individuals, 
during June and July 2011.  From 
early August to late October 2011, 
a formal 13 week consultation on 
the draft strategy was held.  A 
follow up stakeholder workshop 
was held in mid October. 
 
Across November and December 
2011, a series of one to one 
meetings, structured interviews 
and workshops will be held 
internally to establish the existing 
skills role of the local authority and 
to seek views on the potential 
future role.  In January 2012 
external stakeholders will be 
consulted with, again through 
workshops and interviews to 
examine Central Bedfordshire 
wide skills governance 
arrangements. 
 

All Age Skill Strategy 
All Age Skills 
Strategy Consultation 
Report 
Report on the future 
role of the local 
authority in the skills 
agenda, with options 
analysis and 
implementation plan 
for the preferred 
option 
Equality Impact 
Assessment 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Strategic Planning and 
Economic Development 
Comments by 26/02/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Kate McFarlane, Head of Community 
Regeneration & Adult Skills  
Email:  
kate.mcfarlane@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5858 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 106



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

28. Outcome of 
Statutory 
Consultation on 
Special Schools in 
the South of 
Central 
Bedfordshire -  
 
 
 

To consider the outcome 
of the Statutory 
Consultation on the 
Special Schools in the 
south of Central 
Bedfordshire.  
 

27 March 2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Children's 
Services 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Catherine Parry, Assistant Director 
(Acting), Children's Services 
Operations  
Email:  
catherine.parry@centralbedfordshire.g
ov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6441 
 

29. Development 
Strategy -  
 
 
 

The Development 
Strategy will set out the 
broad approach to new 
development across 
Central Bedfordshire to 
2031, including new 
housing and 
employment targets and 
new large-scale 
development sites. The 
Executive will be 
requested to consider 
and agree the Central 
Bedfordshire 
Development Strategy 
for the purposes of 
Publication and 
subsequent Submission 
to the Secretary of 
State.)  
 

13 November 
2012 
 

Consultation expected in 
May/June 2012, Member 
consideration through 
Development Strategy Task 
Force/Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel. 
 

Draft Development 
Strategy (Pre-
Submission version) 
Sustainability 
Appraisal 
Report of 
consultation and 
other 
technical/evidence 
reports 
 

Executive Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Strategic Planning and 
Economic Development 
Comments by 12/10/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Richard Fox, Head of Development 
Planning and Housing Strategy  
Email:  
richard.fox@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 4105 
 
 
 A

genda Item
 14

P
age 107



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

 

NON KEY DECISIONS 
 

30. Outcome of the 
Disability Review 
Children's 
Services -  
 
 
 

A review of the non 
schools provision for 
disabled children is on 
going during September 
to December 2011. 
There may be need for 
structural changes which 
would form the content 
of an Executive report.  
 

10 January 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Executive Member for Children's 
Services 
Comments by 09/12/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Catherine Parry, Assistant Director 
(Acting), Children's Services 
Operations  
Email:  
catherine.parry@centralbedfordshire.g
ov.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 6441 
 

31. Quarter 2 
Performance 
Report -  
 
 
 

To receive quarter 2 
performance report. 
 

10 January 
2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 09/12/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Elaine Malarky, Head of Programmes 
& Performance Management  
Email:  
elaine.malarky@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5517 
 A

genda Item
 14

P
age 108



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

32. Quarter 3 
Performance 
Report -  
 
 
 

To receive quarter 3 
performance report. 
 

27 March 2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 26/02/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Elaine Malarky, Head of Programmes 
& Performance Management  
Email:  
elaine.malarky@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5517 
 

33. Quarter 4 
Performance 
Report -  
 
 
 

To receive quarter 4 
performance report.  
 

3 July 2012 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member 
for Corporate Resources 
Comments by 02/06/12 to Contact 
Officer: 
Elaine Malarky, Head of Programmes 
& Performance Management  
Email:  
elaine.malarky@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk 
Tel:  0300 300 5517 
 

 
 
Postal address for Contact Officers:  Central Bedfordshire Council, Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford  SG17 5TQ 
      
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 109



 

Central Bedfordshire Council  
Forward Plan of Decisions on Key Issues 

 
For the Municipal Year 2011/12 the Forward Plan will be published on the fifteenth day of each 
month or, where the fifteenth day is not a working day, the working day immediately proceeding 
the fifteenth day, or in February 2012 when the plan will be published on the fourteenth day: 
 

 Date of Publication Period of Plan 
 

 15.04.11 1 May 2011 – 30 April 2012 
 

 13.05.11 1 June 2011 – 31 May 2012 
 

 15.06.11 1 July 2011 – 30 June 2012 
 

 15.07.11 1  August 2011 – 31 July 2012  
 

 15.08.11 1 September 2011 – 31 August 2012 
 

 15.09.11 1 October 2011 – 30 September 2012 
 

 14.10.11 1 November  2011 –  31 October 2012 
 

 15.11.11 1 December 2011 – 30 November 2012 
 

 15.12.11 1 January 2012 – 31 December 2012 
 

 13.01.12 1 February 2012 – 31 January 2013 
 

 14.02.12 1 March 2012 – 28 February 2013 
 

 15.03.12 1 April 2012 – 31 March 2013 
  

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 110


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	10 Draft Budget 2012/13, Medium Term Financial Plan 2012 - 2016 and Capital Programme 2012/13 to 2015/16
	11 Fees and Charges 2012/13
	111129 2012 13 Fees  Charges schedule master v5

	12 Revenue Budget Management Report Quarter ended 30 September 2011 for Corporate Resources
	111202 Corporate Resources Q2 Rev Append

	13 Capital Budget Management Report Quarter ended 30 September 2011 for Corporate Resources
	111202 Corporate Resources Q2 Cap Append

	14 Work Programme 2011 - 2012 & Executive Forward Plan
	CCS OSC Work Programme App A
	CCS OSC Work Programme App B


